
 

 
You can view the agenda on the website  
or use a smart phone camera and scan the code 

 
 

 
  

To: 
 
The Chair and Members 
of the Investment and 
Pension Fund Committee 
 

 
County Hall 
Topsham Road 
Exeter 
Devon  
EX2 4QD 
 

 

Date:  22 February 2024 Contact:  Fred Whitehouse, 01392 381362 
Email:  fred.whitehouse@devon.gov.uk 

 
INVESTMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 

 
Friday, 1st March, 2024 

 
A meeting of the Investment and Pension Fund Committee is to be held on the 
above date at 10.30 am at Daw Room, Committee Suite - County Hall to consider 
the following matters. 
 
 Donna Manson 
 Chief Executive 
 

A G E N D A 
 
  
 PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE 

  
1 Chair's Announcements  
 
 
2 Apologies for Absence  
 
 
3 Minutes (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2023, attached. 

  
4 Items Requiring Urgent Attention  

 
 Items which in the opinion of the Chairman should be considered at the meeting 

as matters of urgency. 
 
  

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy


5 Devon Pension Board (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
 Minutes of the Devon Pension Board meeting held on 30 January 2024, attached. 

  
6 Brunel Oversight Board (Pages 9 - 16) 
 
 Minutes of the Brunel Oversight Board meetings held on 13 December 2023 and 

25 January 2024, attached. 
  

7 Internal Audit Plan 2024/25 (Pages 17 - 24) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (DFP/24/24), attached. 

  
8 Investment Management Report (Pages 25 - 52) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (DFP/24/25), attached. 

  
9 Treasury Management Strategy 2024/25 (Pages 53 - 60) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (DFP/24/26), attached. 

  
10 Actuarial Services Tender Outcome (Pages 61 - 62) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (DFP/24/27), attached. 

  
11 Pension Administration Strategy (Pages 63 - 114) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (DFP/24/28), attached. 

  
12 Communications Strategy (Pages 115 - 132) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (DFP/24/29), attached. 

  
13 Private Market Allocations (Pages 133 - 138) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (DFP/24/30), attached. 

  
14 Local Government Pension Scheme Update (Pages 139 - 142) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (DFP/24/31), attached. 

  
15 Employer Changes  
 



 Employer changes not previously reported to the Committee are set out below. 
 
(a) New admitted bodies - The following application for admitted body status has 
been approved: 

• On 1 September 2023 Direct Cleaning Services took on the cleaning 
contract for some of the schools within Thinking Schools Academy Trust. 

• On 30 October 2023 First Federation outsourced their out of hours school 
services to Fishkids. 

• On 30 October 2023 First Federation outsourced their catering services at 
Willowbank School to Norse 

 
(b) New academy conversions and changes: 
 

• On 1 September 2023  
➢ The Castle Partnership Trust (TCPT) merged with Uffculme 

Academy Trust and became Blackdown Education Partnership. 
They have academies in both the Devon and Somerset Pension 
Funds.  

➢ Gulworthy Primary and Lamerton Cof E Primary Schools became 
academies and joined the Learning Academy Partnership.  

➢ Bay Education Trust became part of Thinking Schools Academy 
Trust. 

➢ The Burton Academy changed name to the Loadstar Academy and 
joined the Thinking Schools academy Trust. 

➢ The Brunel Academy joined the Special Partnership Trust. 
➢ Matford Brook – A new School officially opened and became part of 

the Ted Wragg Trust. 
 

• On 1 October 2023  
➢ St Margarets C of E Junior School became an academy and joined 

Ventrus. 
➢ Newtown Primary School became an academy and joined Academy 

for Character & Excellence. 
➢ Pilton Infants and Horwood & Newton Tracey School joined TEAM 

Multi Academy Trust. 
 

• On 1 November 2023  
➢ Wolborough Cof E Primary School became an academy and joined 

Link Academy Trust.  
➢ Trinity C of E School became an academy and joined Academy for 

Character & Excellence. 
➢ St Christophers Secondary MAT became part of Athena Learning 

Trust.           
 

 



 
(c) Cessations: 

• With effect from 1 June 2023 Torbay Youth Trust ceased membership 
of the LGPS with all active staff tuping back to Torbay Council. The 
assets and liabilities will also transfer to Torbay Council.     

 
16 Annual Consultative Meeting with Staff and Retired Members  
 
 The Annual Consultative Meeting is being held in the afternoon following the 

Investment and Pension Fund Committee meeting, commencing at 2.15pm. 
Presentations will be made by Schroders Greencoat on the Wessex Garden 
Fund, Mark Gayler, Head of Investments, Rachel Lamb, Head of Peninsula 
Pensions, and Cllr Colin Slade, Chair of the Devon Pension Board. Members of 
the Committee are invited to attend. 
  

17 Dates of Future Meetings  
 
 Future meetings are scheduled for: 

  
14 June 2024 10.30 am 
13 September 2024 10.30 am 
29 November 2024 10.30 am 
28 February 2025 10.30 am 
28 February 2025 2.15 pm – Staff / Retiree Consultation 
   

 PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF PRESS AND 
PUBLIC ON THE GROUNDS THAT EXEMPT INFORMATION MAY BE 
DISCLOSED 
  

18 Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
 Recommendation: that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for 

the following item of business under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act, information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of an individual (including the authority holding that 
information). 
  

19 Brunel Business Plan and Reserved Matters Requests (Pages 143 - 212) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (DFP/24/32) (RESTRICTED), 

attached. 
  

20 Local Impact Portfolio Update (Pages 213 - 260) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (DFP/24/33) (RESTRICTED), 

attached. 
  



21 Brunel Climate Change Policy Implementation (Pages 261 - 266) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (DFP/24/34) (RESTRICTED), 

attached. 
 
 
Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain exempt information and should 
therefore be treated accordingly.  They should not be disclosed or passed on to any 
other person(s). They need to be disposed of carefully and should be returned to the 
Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal. 
 



MEETINGS INFORMATION AND NOTES FOR VISITORS 
 
Getting to County Hall and Notes for Visitors   
For SatNav purposes, the postcode for County Hall is EX2 4QD 
 
Further information about how to get to County Hall gives information on visitor 
parking at County Hall and bus routes. 
 
Exeter has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes. For further information 
see the Travel Devon webpages.  
 
The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High 
Street), St David’s and St Thomas. All have regular bus services to the High Street.  
 
Visitors to County Hall are asked to report to Main Reception on arrival. If visitors 
have any specific requirements, please contact reception on 01392 382504 
beforehand.  
 
Membership of a Committee  
For full details of the Membership of a Committee, please visit the Committee page 
on the website and click on the name of the Committee you wish to see.  
 
Committee Terms of Reference  
For the terms of reference for any Committee, please visit the Committee page on 
the website and click on the name of the Committee. Under purpose of Committee, 
the terms of reference will be listed. Terms of reference for all Committees are also 
detailed within Section 3b of the Council’s Constitution.  
 
Access to Information 
Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or background papers relating to 
an item on the agenda should contact the Clerk of the Meeting. To find this, visit the 
Committee page on the website and find the Committee. Under contact information 
(at the bottom of the page) the Clerk’s name and contact details will be present. All 
agenda, reports and minutes of any Committee are published on the Website  
 
Public Participation 
The Council operates a Public Participation Scheme where members of the public 
can interact with various Committee meetings in a number of ways. For full details of 
whether or how you can participate in a meeting, please look at the Public 
Participation Scheme or contact the Clerk for the meeting. 
 
In relation to Highways and Traffic Orders Committees, any member of the District 
Council or a Town or Parish Councillor for the area covered by the HATOC who is 
not a member of the Committee, may attend and speak to any item on the Agenda 
with the consent of the Committee, having given 24 hours’ notice. 
 
Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings 
The proceedings of any meeting may be recorded and / or broadcasted live, apart 
from any confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the 
press and public. For more information go to our webcasting pages  

https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/
https://www.traveldevon.info/cycle/
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=416&MId=2487&Ver=4&info=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/public-participation-at-committee-meetings/part-1-can-i-attend-a-meeting/
https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/public-participation-at-committee-meetings/part-1-can-i-attend-a-meeting/
https://devoncc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and 
public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, 
as directed by the Chair.  Filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible without 
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and 
having regard to the wishes of others present who may not wish to be filmed. 
Anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic 
Services Officer in attendance.  
 
Members of the public may also use social media to report on proceedings.  
 
Declarations of Interest for Members of the Council  
It is to be noted that Members of the Council must declare any interest they may 
have in any item to be considered at this meeting, prior to any discussion taking 
place on that item. 
 
WiFI 
An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for 
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall. 
 
Fire  
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately by the nearest 
available exit following the fire exit signs.  If doors fail to unlock press the Green 
break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect personal belongings; do not use 
the lifts; and do not re-enter the building until told to do so. Assemble either on the 
cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car park 
behind Bellair. 
 
First Aid 
Contact Main Reception (Extension 2504) for a trained first aider.  
 
Mobile Phones 
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council 
Chamber 
 
Alternative Formats 
If anyone needs a copy of an Agenda and/or a Report in 
another format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other 
languages), please contact the Customer Service Centre on 
0345 155 1015 or email: committee@devon.gov.uk or write to 
the Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat in G31, County Hall, 
Exeter, EX2 4QD. 
Induction Loop available  

 

mailto:committee@devon.gov.uk




1 
INVESTMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 

24/11/23 
 

 

INVESTMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
 

24 November 2023  
 
Present:- 
 
Devon County Council 
 
Councillors J Morrish (Chair), Y Atkinson, H Gent and G Gribble (remote) 
 
Unitary Councils 
 
Councillor M Lowry (remote) 
 
Union and Retired Members 
 
R Franceschini and M Daniell (remote) 
 
Other Employers 
 
Councillor R Bloxham 
 
Apologies:- 
 
L Parker-Delaz-Ajete and councillors P Bullivant (Vice Chair) and M Brook  
  

* 142   Announcements 
 
There was no announcement made by the Chair. 
  

* 143   Minutes 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2023 be 
signed as a correct record, subject to the amendment of Minute *133 to rectify 
a spelling error in R Franceschini’s name. 
  

* 144   Items Requiring Urgent Attention 
 
There was no item raised as a matter of urgency. 
  

* 145   Devon Pension Board 
 
The Committee noted the minutes of the Devon Pension Board meeting held 
on 13 October 2023. Minute *134 was commented on, which regarded a 
Government consultation on the future of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme investment pools and was discussed at the last meeting of this 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2 
INVESTMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
24/11/23 

 
Committee. The Government had now issued a response to the consultation. 
Officers would update further at the next meeting. 
  

* 146   Brunel Oversight Board 
 
The Committee noted the minutes of the Brunel Oversight Board meeting held 
on 7 September 2023. 
  

* 147   Audit Report on the Pension Fund Statement of Accounts 2022/23 
 
The Committee considered the Report of the Director of Finance and Public 
Value (DF/23/107) on the Audit Report of the Pension Fund’s Statement of 
Accounts for 2022/23. At the last meeting of the Committee, the external audit 
of the Fund had not been completed. It had now been, subject to a small 
number of remaining items, with a draft Audit Findings Report attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report. Members were also updated on the progress of the 
audit of the accounts for 2020/21 and 2021/22, which had been completed 
and ‘consistency’ audit opinions issued. 
  
The Committee heard from a representative of Grant Thornton, the external 
auditor, who outlined the remaining areas required for the audit of the 2022/23 
accounts, in particular some further work on IT controls. It was stated that the 
external auditors hoped to issue a finalised audit opinion on the 2022/23 
accounts in January 2024; and that the work that had already been completed 
on the audit of the 2022/23 accounts demonstrated that the Fund had 
effective arrangements in place to produce complete, accurate and timely 
accounts. 
  
Members noted the report. 
  

* 148   Investment Management Report 
 
The Committee considered the Report of the Director of Finance and Public 
Value (DF/23/108). The Report outlined the Fund value and asset allocation, 
Fund performance, funding level, 2023/24 budget forecast, cash management 
and voting and engagement activity. 
  
Member attention was drawn to the addition of £50 million to the Sterling 
Corporate Bonds portfolio as agreed by the Committee at its last meeting. 
  
As at 30 September 2023, the Fund value stood at £5,363.4 million which 
represented an increase of around £50 million over the financial year to date, 
albeit with little increase since the end of June. For the financial year to date 
up to 30 September 2023, the Fund’s return was +1.3% compared to the 
strategic benchmark of +2.7%, namely an underperformance. It was explained 
that the Sustainable Equities and Infrastructure portfolios had struggled in the 
quarter as banks and oil companies had led the market, with Infrastructure 
impacted by rising interest rates and gilt yields. 
  

Page 2

Agenda Item 3



3 
INVESTMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 

24/11/23 
 

 

Members discussion points included the diversification of the Fund; and 
employee contribution bands into the Fund, namely that these are set 
nationally and out of direct control of the Fund. 
  
Members noted the report. 
  

* 149   Future Cashflow Forecast 
 
The Committee considered the Report of the Director of Finance and Public 
Value (DF/23/109) which outlined three scenarios of future cashflows into the 
Fund, based on a model provided by the Fund Actuary, to project across a 25-
year period. The three scenarios reflected different degrees of deterioration of 
the Fund’s cashflow position. It was explained to members that there were 
other scenarios, but that in the case of, for instance, increased fund 
membership, then these other (positive) scenarios would not detriment the 
Fund’s cashflow and were therefore not of concern. 
  
Members heard, based on current projections of the Fund’s cashflow, that in 
the most severe of the scenarios outlined, the Fund would still be able to meet 
its obligations to pay pensions for the next six or seven years without needing 
to sell Fund assets, and that there was therefore no immediate call to refocus 
the current investment strategy to generate additional income. The next 
external review of the Fund’s investment strategy was planned for late 2024 
or early 2025, which was explained to be a suitable time to factor in future 
cashflow forecasts into any recommended changes to the strategy. 
  
Members noted the report. 
  

* 150   Employer Changes 
 
The Committee noted: 
  
(a)  New admitted bodies –The following application for admitted body status 
had been approved since the last meeting of the Committee:  

• 1 June 2023 - Plymouth City Council tuped staff to PEC Management 
Services Ltd which they had previously seconded to them.  

• 1 July 2023 - Delt Shared Services won the contract to provide IT, 
Finance, HR and Estates management including catering, cleaning, 
maintenance etc for Mount Tamar School, an academy within the 
Transforming Futures Trust.  

  
(b)  Employer Cessations - None  
  
(c)  New academy conversions and changes.  

• 1 June 2023 - Avanti Hall part of Reach South changed to Thomas 
Hall.  

• 1 July 2023 - Honiton Community College joined Ted Wragg Trust.  
• 1 August 2023 - Honiton MAT moved to Learning Academies Trust  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



4 
INVESTMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
24/11/23 

 
• 1 August 2023 - Sparkwell All Saints Primary School moved to Link 

Academy Trust   
  

* 151   Dates of Future Meetings 
 
Members noted the dates of future meetings of the Committee as: 
  
1 March 2024 10.30am 
1 March 2024 2.15pm - Staff/Retiree Consultation 
14 June 2024 10.30am 
13 September 2024 10.30am 
29 November 2024 10.30am 
  

* 152   Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
RESOLVED that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act, information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of an individual (including the 
authority holding that information). 
  

* 153   Local Impact Investment 
 
(An item taken under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
during which the press and public were excluded). 
  
Members considered the Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value 
(DF/23/110) on progress made committing the approved 3% allocation to local 
impact investments, which was agreed previously by this Committee in June 
2023; and provided an update on the due diligence done in relation to three 
proposed investments, with final decisions delegated to officers, also as 
agreed at the June meeting (Minute *126 refers). 
  
Members noted the report. 
 
 
NOTES: 

1. Minutes should always be read in association with any Reports for a 
complete record. 

2. If the meeting has been webcast, it will be available to view on the 
webcasting site for up to 12 months from the date of the meeting 
 

*  DENOTES DELEGATED MATTER WITH POWER TO ACT 
 
The Meeting started at 10.31 am and finished at 11.30 am 

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3

http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


1 
DEVON PENSION BOARD 

30/01/24 
 

 

DEVON PENSION BOARD 
 

30 January 2024  
 
Present:- 
 
Councillors C Slade (Chair) and S Randall Johnson 
A Bowman (Vice-Chair), I Arrow, R Jeanes, P Phillips and D Walshe 
 
Apologies:- 
 
C Hearn 
  

* 137   Chair's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements made by the Chair. 
  

* 138   Minutes 
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 October 2023 be 
signed as a correct record. 
  

* 139   Items Requiring Urgent Attention 
 
No item was raised as a matter of urgency. 
  

* 140   Review of Attendance 
 
The Board noted the Report of the Director of Finance (DFP/24/07) on a 
review of the Board Member attendance at meetings and training events. A 
log of attendance of both board meetings and training events were attached in 
Appendix 1 of the Report. 
  
Officers commented that one member of the Board had attended a 
stewardship review training session, and that this would be added to the 
training log. 
  

* 141   Devon Pension Fund Risk Register 
 
The Board considered and noted the Report of the Director of Finance 
(DF/24/08) on the Pension Fund Risk Register and proposed mitigation 
actions. 
  
At the meeting, the Board received a presentation from the Devon Audit 
Partnership on how risk within Devon, including with regard to the Devon 
Pension Fund, is identified and managed. It covered areas such as how risk is 
defined and how risk level is set (including examining the likelihood of a risk 
occurring, and the potential impact of that risk); that, despite mitigation, it 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



2 
DEVON PENSION BOARD 
30/01/24 

 
would not be possible to eliminate risk altogether; and key resources on risk 
such as updates at committee, a live Power BI dashboard, and documentation 
produced by the Government. 
  
During discussion, a member of the Board suggested that risk related to the 
Government proposals regarding the amalgamation of Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) investment pools should be considered for addition 
to the risk register. 
  

* 142   Communications Policy Review 
 
The Board considered the Report of the Director of Finance (DFP/24/09) on 
the updated Communications Policy, which was one of four statutory 
statements which the Fund was required to have in place. The Policy was last 
updated in November 2019, with a revised policy attached as Appendix 1 to 
the Report. This iteration of the Policy had undergone mostly cosmetic 
changes, as outlined in the Report. 
  

* 143   Contribution and Breaches Monitoring 
 
The Board noted the Report of the Director of Finance (DFP/23/10) which 
updated members on the current procedures for the monitoring of timely 
payment of contributions from employers. Although there were fourteen 
contributions received late during the quarter, officers advised that this largely 
constituted of new employers and were all one-off incidents, with no pattern of 
concern arising. 
  

* 144   Investment and Pension Fund Committee 
 
The Board noted the Minutes of the Investment and Pension Fund Committee 
held on 24 November 2024. 
  

* 145   Audit Plan 2024/25 
 
The Board received the Report of the Director of Finance (DFP/24/11) on the 
proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2024/25, which reflected the Local Authority’s 
statutory duty to arrange proper administration of its financial affairs. The audit 
service would continue to be delivered by Devon Audit Partnership. 
  
An officer highlighted and corrected an error in the Report, on pages 77 and 
78, where two references were made to 2023/24 which should refer to 
2024/25.  
  
Members discussed the split of allocation days under the audit plans (35 days 
allocated for internal audit support for the Pension Fund, and 50 days for 
Peninsula Pensions) and how this differed to previous years.  
 
 
  

Page 6

Agenda Item 5



3 
DEVON PENSION BOARD 

30/01/24 
 

 

* 146   Peninsula Pensions Administration Update and Performance Statistics 
 
The Board noted the Report of the Director of Finance (DFP/24/12) which 
provided an update on the performance against the Occupational and 
Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) Regulations 2013.  
Appendices 1 to 3 of the Report highlighted key aspects of performance for 
the attention of the Board. The Report also updated on the McCloud remedy 
and the review of Peninsula Pensions’ Administration Strategy, on which a 
consultation had ceased at the end of 2023. 
  
Member discussion centred around the mechanisms for admitting employers 
into the Fund and what knowledge testing was done in advance of their 
admission into the Fund; and strategies for following up on non-payment from 
Fund employers. 
  

* 147   Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Update Report 
 
The Board noted the Report of the Director of Finance (DFP/24/13) updating 
on the latest developments impacting the LGPS. 
  

* 148   Future Work Programme 
 
The Board noted the Report of the Director of Finance (DFP/24/14) on the 
future work programme. 
  

* 149   Dates of Future Meetings 
 
The Board noted that future meetings would be held at 10.30am on: 
  
Tuesday 30th January 2024 
Monday 29th April 2024 
Monday 15th July 2024 
Monday 21st October 2024 
Wednesday 29th January 2025 
Thursday 3rd April 2025 
  
It was suggested that the April 2024 meeting of the Board would need to be 
rescheduled owing to a Devon County Council Full Council meeting that had 
been scheduled for the same date and time. 
 
NOTES: 

1. Minutes should always be read in association with any Reports for a 
complete record. 

2. If the meeting has been webcast, it will be available to view on the 
webcasting site for up to 12 months from the date of the meeting 
 

*  DENOTES DELEGATED MATTER WITH POWER TO ACT 
 
The Meeting started at 10.31 am and finished at 11.24 am 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home




 

Information Classification: PUBLIC 

BRUNEL OVERSIGHT BOARD 

Public Minutes 

Wednesday 13th December 2023, 10:30 am – 12:15 pm 

Attendees 

 

 

 

Pension Committee Representatives 

Paul Crossley Avon  

Timothy Butcher Buckinghamshire  

Jayne Kirkham Cornwall  

James Morrish Devon  

John Beesley Dorset  

Robert Gould EAPF Chair 

Lynden Stowe Gloucestershire  

Kevin Bulmer Oxfordshire Vice-Chair 

Peter Seib Somerset Apologies 

Richard Britton Wiltshire  

Fund Officers and Representatives 

Nick Dixon Avon  

Julie Edwards Buckinghamshire  

Sean Johns Cornwall  

William Cresswell Cornwall Minutes 

James Rich Cornwall  

Mark Gayler Devon  

David Wilkes Dorset  

Craig Martin EAPF  

Matthew Trebilcock Gloucestershire  

Sean Collins Oxfordshire  

Anton Sweet Somerset  

Member Representative Observers 

Andy Bowman Scheme Member rep.  

Alistair Bastin Scheme Member rep.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 

Information Classification: PUBLIC 

 

Minutes 

Brunel Pension Partnership 

Laura Chappell Brunel, CEO  

Denise Le Gal Brunel, Chair  

Liz Mckenzie Brunel, SNED  

David Vickers Brunel, CIO  

Joe Webster Brunel, COO  

Tim Dickson Brunel, HoCRT  

Alice Spikings Brunel, SO  

No. Item 

1. Confirm agenda 

Requests for urgent or for information items 

Any new declarations of conflicts of interest 

 AB noted they attended the LAPFF conference representing the Oxfordshire fund. 

AB was informed by LAPFF that Brunel isn’t a member which LC confirmed.  

2. Review 7th September BOB minutes 

- Review and sign-off of the previous meeting minutes. 

 The minutes were approved with no comment. 

3. Chair and Vice-Chair election 

 WC stated that they had sent around an email asking if BOB members wanted to 

nominate themselves for the role of BOB Chair and Vice-Chair. WC noted that both 

RG and KB were willing to continue in their respective roles and LS kindly supported 

this proposal. WC noted there were no other nomination received and confirmed 

RG and KB as Chair and Vice-Chair of BOB respectively for 2024. 

The group congratulated RG and KB. 

4. Brunel Chair Recruitment update 

 RG noted the Brunel Chair recruitment is on track.  

5. Brunel CEO report 

 - An update from the Brunel CEO on its business activities. 

 LC presented the highlights from the CEO report: 

JK asked that for the next meeting if FW’s update could include an update from the 

asset owner round table. 

6. Brunel CIO update 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



 

Information Classification: PUBLIC 

 

 JK noted the portfolios are struggling with performance and asked DV’s update to 

focus on why. 

DV presented the Q3 2023 investment performance. DV noted they are producing 

a report to provide additional context and it will be available for Q1 next year. 

DV noted the Middle East conflict has had little impact on the portfolios, but has 

potential for a bigger impact if Iran and US are brought in. 

RG asked DV for on his view on hedged or unhedged currency exposure? 

- DV noted currency evens out over a 20-year horizon and hedged would be 

unnecessary over this time period. DV noted they personally half-hedge their 

exposure.    

- DLG noted historically, LGPS funds hedge half of their currency exposure. 

7. Client Assurance Framework (including Investment Update) 

 

 SJ presented the Client Assurance Survey. JW thanked SJ for his work in the 

Operations Sub-Group on the quarterly performance report. 

SJ presented the BOB assurance report. SJ noted the first face to face assurance 

meeting was held and there was a big advantage to having the long sessions.  

SJ noted there are comments on the Red, Amber, Green rating and the rationale 

behind them were challenged at the meeting. Clients are comfortable with the 

ratings. 

SJ noted this will be his last assurance piece and MT will be taking over next month.  

8. Brunel Chair/SNED Update 

 LM noted most of their update has been covered in earlier discussions. LM added 

they have had a meeting with two Shareholders, Avon and Wiltshire, and covered 

local issues. DLG noted they accompanied LM.  

JB noted Teresa Clay is at the next Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) meeting. 

9. Any other urgent or for information items 

Future Meeting Dates: 

• 25th January 2024 

• 7th March 2024 

• 6th June 2024 

• 5th September 2024 

• 5th December 2024 

 RG requested comments on the BOB format to be fed in via email and noted 

holding them in person is being considered. 

- JK noted they attended in person, and it was useful. JK noted it would be useful 

if the meetings were occasionally moved closer to Cornwall.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 6





 

Information Classification: PUBLIC 

BRUNEL OVERSIGHT BOARD 

Public Minutes 

Thursday 25th January 2024, 10:30 am – 12:30 pm 

Attendees 

 

 

 

Pension Committee Representatives 

Paul Crossley Avon  

Timothy Butcher Buckinghamshire  

Jayne Kirkham Cornwall  

James Morrish Devon  

John Beesley Dorset  

Robert Gould EAPF Chair 

Lynden Stowe Gloucestershire  

Kevin Bulmer Oxfordshire Vice-Chair 

Peter Seib Somerset Apologies 

Richard Britton Wiltshire Apologies 

Fund Officers and Representatives 

Nick Dixon Avon  

Julie Edwards Buckinghamshire  

William Cresswell Cornwall Minutes 

James Rich Cornwall  

Mark Gayler Devon  

Craig Martin EAPF  

Matthew Trebilcock Gloucestershire  

Sean Collins Oxfordshire  

Anton Sweet Somerset  

Member Representative Observers 

Andy Bowman Scheme Member rep.  

Alistair Bastin Scheme Member rep.  

Page 13



 

Information Classification: PUBLIC 

 

Minutes 

Brunel Pension Partnership 

Laura Chappell Brunel, CEO  

Denise Le Gal Brunel, Chair  

Liz Mckenzie Brunel, SNED  

David Vickers Brunel, CIO  

Joe Webster Brunel, COO  

Faith Ward  Brunel CRIO  

Tim Dickson Brunel, HoCRT  

Alice Spikings Brunel, SO  

David Anthony Brunel, HOF  

No. Item 

1. Confirm agenda 

Requests for urgent or for information items 

Any new declarations of conflicts of interest 

 RG noted RB’s apologies. 

2. Review 13th December 2023 BOB minutes 

- Review and sign-off of the previous meeting minutes. 

 The minutes were approved with no comment. 

3. Business Plan and Budget Update 

 MG introduced the business plan which outlines Brunel’s proposed budget for 

2024/25. MG noted the budget was first presented to and scrutinised by Brunel’s 

Finance Sub-Group. 

MG noted Brunel have presented the following two years budgets to indicate there 

should be no other additional increases beyond the items stated. 

JW highlighted opportunities Brunel have identified to increase savings. These 

opportunities will be presented to the Client Group. 

Budget figures were queried and challenged by JK, JB, LS, ND and TB. DA and JW 

answered. 

ND and KB supported the budget. 

4. COP 28 Update 

Page 14



 

Information Classification: PUBLIC 

 FW presented the COP28 presentation and noted they attended as the chair of 

IIGCC. 

FW presented the key outcomes from an investment perspective. 

FW presented the areas which they were hoping to be covered but were not. 

FW presented the goals of their attendance, the Climate Action Tracker, and the 

next steps. 

KB asked whether there were any developments on standardising data. 

- FW noted the International Sustainability Standards Board work was 

promoted following launch of standards in June 2023. The formation of the 

ISSB was announced at COP26. The aim is to standardise carbon reporting 

into an accounting standard.  

- FW noted the UK is one of the furthest ahead. and the FCA had indicated 

the adoption of the ISSB standards. 

- FW noted political pressure to support the adoption of the standards as 

minimum baseline, recognising there will be additional UK investor's needs 

(building blocks approach), would be welcome. 

JK asked what objectives FW would have wanted from COP on biodiversity and 

nature. 

- FW noted more detail on article 6 was required. FW noted their belief that 

well-functioning carbon markets are an essential to enhance capital flows, 

and global standards are required to reduce greenwashing and even fraud. 

- FW noted Brunel are an early adopter of TNFD in a best endeavours 

capacity.  

JM commented on the focus on methane and asked if FW believes this is being 

linked to agriculture. 

- FW noted agriculture could be considered a large contributor of methane 

and an area for potential solutions. FW noted the discussion on methane at 

COP recognised the emissions produced in other sectors, oil and gas, 

manufacturing, as well as agriculture. 

JM noted their scheme members most important issue is their investment 

performance.  

- JK noted Cornwall’s members have expressed a large interest in where their 

pensions are invested and the ethical concerns with their investments. 

JM asked for clarification on the number of fossil fuel lobbyists. 

- FW noted there was an estimated 2000 fossil fuel lobbyists in attendance 

which is a concerning amount and made up 2% of total attendance.  

ABo requested a version of the presentation that can be shared. 

 

5. PWC Consultation 

Page 15



 

Information Classification: PUBLIC 

 

 RG started the discussion and requested BOB members share their viewpoints on the 

LGPS and Pooling developments at a high level. 

There was a discussion on the consultation. KB, ABo JB, ND, and ABa shared their 

views. 

LC summarised the discussion, and noted an external party has been hired to help 

Brunel devise future strategy. LC noted the consultation with shareholder 

representatives and the Brunel Board is a useful exercise and there will be workshops 

with the Brunel board. 

6. Brunel Update  

 - An update from the Brunel CEO on its business activities. 

 LC presented a list of items Brunel have accomplished since the last meeting in 

December. 

LM provided an update on the Chair recruitment process. 

7. Any other urgent or for information items 

Future Meeting Dates: 

• 7th March 2024 

• 6th June 2024 

• 5th September 2024 

• 5th December 2024 

 

 RG noted the future meeting dates and closed the meeting. 

Page 16



 

 
 

DFP/24/24 
Investments and Pension Fund Committee 
01 March 2024 
 

Proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2024/25 

Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value  

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  

 
 

1) Recommendation 
 
That the Committee be asked to: 
 

(a) Consider and agree the proposed Internal Audit plan for 2024/25 which has been 
considered by Devon Pension Board on the 30 January 2024 with no further  
comments 

 
 

2) Introduction 
 
2.1 Under the Local Government Act 1972 the Authority, and specifically the Chief 

Financial Officer (the Director of Finance and Public Value), has a statutory duty to 
“make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs”. 
Assurance that this is the case is given through the reporting of Internal Audit.  The 
audits are carried out in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
and in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 

 
2.2 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the purpose, authority, and 

responsibility of Internal Audit activity to be formally defined in an Internal Audit 
Charter, consistent with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and 
the Standards.  
 

2.3 The latest Internal Audit Charter and Strategy 2021/22 for Devon County Council 
was approved at the 25 February 2021 Audit Committee meeting. The document 
can be viewed at Democracy Devon Audit Committee.   
 

2.4 The Internal Audit Charter and Strategy is applied in relation to Devon Pension Fund 
and Peninsula Pensions Internal Audit activity, with associated reporting provided to 
the Devon Pension Board and Investment & Pension Fund Committee.   
 
 

3) Internal Audit Plan 2024/25 
 
3.1 The Internal Auditors for the Pension Fund are responsible for providing assurance 

that financial and other systems are operating effectively and in line with legislation 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 

 
 

and the Authority’s financial regulations. This is achieved through two audit plans: 
one for the Devon Pension Fund and one for Peninsula Pensions 
 

3.2 The Internal Audit Service for the Pension Fund is delivered by the Devon Audit 
Partnership. This is a shared service arrangement between Plymouth, Torbay, 
Devon, Mid Devon, Torridge and North Devon and South Hams and West Devon 
councils along with Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue constituted under section 
20 of the Local Government Act 2000.    
 

3.3 The audit plans for the financial year 2024/25 allow for up to 35 days of internal audit 
support for the Pension Fund and 50 days of internal audit support for Peninsula 
Pensions, providing 85 days of internal audit provision overall.  Further detail is set 
out in Appendix 1.  
 
 

4) Conclusion 
 
4.1 The Committee is asked to approve the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2024/25. 
 
 
 
Angie Sinclair 
Director of Finance and Public Value 
 
Electoral Divisions: All  
 

Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers 

Nil 
 
Contact for enquiries: 
Name: Bradley Hutton  
Telephone: 01392 382593 
Address: Room 180 County Hall 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7



  

  

Internal Audit 
 
DRAFT Internal Audit Plan 
2024/25 
 
Devon Pension Fund and 
Peninsula Pensions 
 
 

March 2024 

 
Not Protectively Marked 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7

Mark.Gayler
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1



  

 

Introduction  

Internal auditing is defined by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which set out the requirements of a ‘Board’ and of ‘senior management’.  For the 
purposes of the internal audit activity within Devon Pension Fund and Peninsula Pensions, the role of the Board within the Standards is taken by the Council’s 
Investments and Pension Fund Committee and senior management is Pension Fund’s Senior Management.  The Investments and Pension Fund Committee, under 
its Terms of Reference contained in the Council’s Constitution, is required to consider the Internal Audit Plan to provide assurance to support the governance 
framework. 
  

This Council’s Internal Audit Charter formally describes the purpose, authority, and principal responsibilities of the Council’s Internal Audit Service, which is provided 
by the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) and the scope of Internal Audit work. The PSIAS refer to the role of ‘Chief Audit Executive’. For the Council this role is fulfilled 
by the Head of Devon Audit Partnership.  
  

The Chief Audit Executive is responsible for developing a risk-based plan which considers the organisation’s risk management framework, including using risk 
appetite levels set by management for the different activities or parts of the organisation.  
  
The need for robust and effective controls to ensure that resources are used to the best effect and deliver the authority’s objectives has never been greater. Internal 
audit helps provide independent assurance that risks are known, understood, and addressed, and that systems and procedures are sound, effective, and free (as 
far as can be) from waste, error, or fraud. Preparing a plan that addresses the emerging risks and developing areas for the council, whilst still covering the material 
and cross cutting systems is essential and ensures that internal audit resources are directed in the most appropriate way.  
  
The audit plan represents the proposed internal audit activity for the year and an outline scope of coverage.  At the start of each audit the scope will be discussed 
and agreed with management with the view to providing Senior Management, the Director of Finance (Section 151) and Members with assurance on the control 
framework to manage the risks identified. The plan will remain flexible, and any changes will be agreed formally with management on a regular basis and reported 
to the Investments and Pensions Fund Committee.  
  
Expectations of the Investments and Pension Fund Committee for this annual plan 
Investments and Pension Fund Committee members are requested to consider and approve the proposed audit plan for 2024/25. 
 
  

Tony Rose 
Head of Devon Audit Partnership   
  

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 7



  

 
 
 
 

 
  

Devon Audit Partnership Confidentiality and Disclosure Clause 

The Devon Audit Partnership has been formed under a joint committee arrangement 
comprising of Plymouth, Torbay, Devon, Mid Devon, North Devon, Torridge, South Hams and 
West Devon councils, along with Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue.  We aim to be 
recognised as a high-quality assurance service provider in the public sector.  We work with 
our partners by providing a professional internal audit service that will assist them in meeting 
their challenges, managing their risks, and achieving their goals.  In carrying out our work we 
are required to comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards along with other best 
practice and professional standards.  The Partnership is committed to providing high quality, 
professional customer services to all; if you have any comments or suggestions on our 
service, processes or standards, the Head of Partnership would be pleased to receive them 
at: tony.d.rose@devon.gov.uk 

This report is protectively marked in accordance with the 
government security classifications. It is accepted that issues 
raised may well need to be discussed with other officers within 
the Council, the report itself should only be copied / circulated / 
disclosed to anyone outside of the organisation in line with the 
organisation’s disclosure policies.  
 
This report is prepared for the organisation’s use.  We can take 
no responsibility to any third party for any reliance they might 
place upon it. P

age 21

A
genda Item

 7



  

 

Annual Flexible Audit Plan 
There has been a growing trend in the sector towards more flexible audit plans to enable internal audit to be more responsive to changing risks, in turn maximising 
resource focus to clients’ needs as and when needed – Agile Auditing.   
 
Key benefits provide for: 

 reduction in non-productive resource planning. 

 improved opportunity to keep plan aligned to current risks within Service Areas and for the wider Council. 

 more effective and timely pre-audit engagement with Service Leads. 

 greater and more regular discussion with client leads – supporting current risk and work priorities.  

 the current trend for more flexible audit plans – agile auditing. 

 experience that plans change regularly. 

 changes in external risk drivers are more easily picked up in audit assurance needs. 
 
Our audit plans are always built around the risks identified through risk management, audit needs and perceptions of current issues and in discussion with client 
management.  
 
The 2024/25 internal audit plan and resourcing is set out in the table below.  This shows a good spread of coverage across the Pension Service which we feel will 
provide good opportunity to provide assurance on the wider control framework from which to build our annual assurance opinion for Devon County Council.  
 

Since 2021/22 our approach was revised to scope, schedule, and resource plans throughout the year with Senior Management in an agile way incorporating risk 
changes as necessary.  This was effective and this approach will continue in 2024/25.  
 

Follow-up and implementation 
We will follow-up prior year reviews which identified limited assurance and ensure that evidence is in place to support any high-risk issues. 

 
Anti-fraud and Corruption 
All our work will contain elements to ensure that sound and effective arrangements are in place to prevent and detect fraud and / or irregularity. 
  

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 7



  

 
The Aim of the Plan 

 The audit plan is agreed on an annual basis, incorporating the key risks identified through the Fund’s risk register and areas identified by Internal Audit in consultation 
with management. However, recent good practice also recognises that it is advisable for plans to remain flexible, to enable them to be amended according to 
prevailing risks and changes to the control environment in the organisation, so whilst the annual plan should be approved at an appropriate level, it should also be 
capable of being flexed as necessary. The plan will also be regularly reviewed alongside the service to provide any updates or noteworthy items. 

 
The Plan 
The audit plans for the financial year 2024/25 allows for up to 35 days of internal audit support for Devon Pension Fund (DPF) and 50 days of internal audit support 
for Peninsula Pensions (PP), providing 85 days internal audit provision overall.  The allocation of days between DPF and PP has changed for 2024/25 with additional 
days being allocated to PP where there is an increased level of risk due to a number of regulatory changes coming into effect in 2024. 
 
We have worked with senior management to determine the key risks to the Fund and from this have developed a plan for the coming year. The plan considers both 
financial and non-finance-based systems, and our work will provide assurance to Senior Leaders and Members on the effectiveness of arrangements. Our working 
papers are available to external audit colleagues for their consideration in planning their work. 
 
Any significant findings from the previous year’s audit work will be reviewed to ensure that agreed recommendations have been implemented and are effective.  
 
As part of the audit plan, we will also provide assistance and advice and be a central contact point for senior management.    

 
Timetable 

 The audits will be completed at specified times of the year through consultation and prior agreement with senior management.  

 All findings will be reviewed with senior management at the end of each audit programme and prior to the issue of any draft reports. 

 A summary of all final reports will be provided to the Devon Pension Board 

 
2024/25 Plans 
The following table sets out the planned internal audit work for 2024/25. Other issues and systems are sometimes identified during the course of the audits and, if 
found, will be discussed with senior management. These issues may be incorporated into future audit plans dependent upon priority and risk assessment.   
 
The plans for both the Devon Pension Fund and Peninsula Pensions include following up of recommendations made previously at the next audit of that function or 
as part of other audits where there are links between functions / recommendations.  This activity is shown within ‘Audit Planning, Advice and Reporting’ in the audit 
plan tables below. 
 
Management track progress and completion of audit actions and report to the Devon Pension Board throughout the year. 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7



  

 

Devon Pension Fund Audit Plan 2024/25 

Audit risk areas Days 

1. Private Market Accounts Reconciliation 10  

2. Communications Policy and Compliance 8 

3. Responsible Investment 8 

4. Good Governance Review 7 

5. Audit Planning, Advice and Reporting   2 

Total days 35 

 
 

Peninsula Pensions Plan 2024/25 
 

Audit risk areas Days 

1. Employer Performance Reports (support with Power BI) 3 

2. Employer Data Quality Review 8 

3. Pension Admin Strategy Compliance 10 

4. Quality Control and Assurance 8 

5. McCloud 8 

6. HMRC Reports 10 

7. Audit Planning, Advice and Reporting  3 

Total days 50 

 
 
Our standard daily rate for this work will be £338. 
 
 

Tony Rose 
Head of Devon Audit Partnership 
 

March 2024 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 7



 

 
 

DFP/24/25 
Investment and Pension Fund Committee  
1 March 2024 
 

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT REPORT  

Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value  

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  

 

1) Recommendation 

That the Committee be asked: 
(a) To note the Investment Management Report. 
(b) To approve rebalancing within the Equities allocation by adding £25 million to the 

Sustainable Equities and £35 million to the Emerging Markets portfolios, funded from 
the Passive Equities allocation. 

(c) To note compliance with the 2023-24 Treasury Management Strategy. 

 

2) Fund Value and Asset Allocation 

 
The table below shows the Fund value and the asset allocation for the Fund compared to 
the proposed 2023/24 target asset allocation as at 31 December 2023. 
 
Fund Value and Asset Allocation as at 31 December 2023 
 

Fund Value 

as at 

31/12/23

Fund asset 

allocation 

at 31/12/23

Variation 

from 

Target

£m % % %

Fixed Interest

Sterling Corporate Bonds 427.4 7 7.6

Multi-Asset Credit 694.1 12 12.3

Cash 162.5 1 2.9

1,284.0 20 22.8 +2.8

Equities

Passive Equities 1,533.4 25 27.2

Global High Alpha Equities 325.8 5 5.7

Global Smaller Companies 289.7 5 5.1

Emerging Markets 239.3 5 4.2

Sustainable Equities 539.7 10 9.6

2,927.9 50 51.8 +1.8

Target 

allocation 

2023/24

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

Fund Value 

as at 

31/12/23

Fund asset 

allocation 

at 31/12/23

Variation 

from 

Target

£m % % %

Alternatives/Other

Diversifying Returns Funds 163.7 3 2.9

UK Property 364.4 8 6.5

International Property 98.5 2 1.7

Infrastructure 517.9 9 9.2

Private Equity 72.1 3 1.4

Private Debt 192.3 4 3.4

Local Impact Portfolio 17.3 1 0.3

1,426.2 30 25.4 -4.6

Total Fund 5,638.1 100 100.0

Target 

allocation 

2023/24

 

The key points with regard to the end of quarter asset allocation are summarised below: 

a) The Fund value as at 31 December 2023 stood at £5,638.1 million, an increase of 
£275 million over the last quarter, and around £325 million over the financial year to 
date. 

b) Sterling Corporate Bonds and Multi-Asset Credit are both above the target weighting. 
While there is still significant uncertainty around the global economy, the expectation 
is that interest rates in the US and the UK will begin to come down in the latter half of 
2024. In those circumstances, it is proposed to retain the small overweight position 
for the time being. 

c) The passive allocation has now been consolidated into the Global Paris Aligned 
Benchmark passive fund. As part of the consolidation, £50 million was withdrawn to 
rebalance the allocation back towards target. However, the strong equity 
performance during November and December means that the weighting remains 
above the target level. 

d) Within equities, Sustainable Equities and Emerging Markets are both underweight. It 
is proposed to add £25 million to the Sustainable portfolio and £35 million to the 
Emerging Markets portfolio to bring them up to target, funded from the overweight 
passive allocation. 

e) The main underweight allocation continues to be that to Alternatives/Other. The 
Property allocation in particular has struggled over the last year, and now stands at 
1.8% below target (UK and International combined). Brunel have made commitments 
to a couple of property funds as part of bringing our portfolio in line with their model 
portfolio.  

f) Significant commitments have been made to bring private debt and private equity up 
to the target level, but these will still take some time to be fully drawn. 

Geographical Weighting of Equity Allocation 

g) The following chart gives the geographical split of the Fund’s equity allocations 
against the FTSE All World Index geographical weightings. 

Page 26

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

 

 

h) The decision to consolidate the Fund’s passive equity allocation, including the UK 
Fund, into the global developed Paris aligned benchmark fund was implemented in 
late October. This has reduced the UK allocation from 17.7% to 4% of the Equities 
allocation, meaning that the geographical split of holdings now more closely aligns to 
the weightings in the FTSE All World and other global indices. 

 
 
3) Fund Performance 

The performance of the Total Fund over the last quarter, the financial year to date, and on a 
rolling three and five year basis is shown in the following chart. 
 
Longer Term Fund Performance Summary 

 
Source for LGPS Universe: PIRC Local Authority Pension Performance Analytics 
 

Geographical Split of Equity Allocation compared to the FTSE All World Index

UK Europe North Asia/ Emerging

Ex UK America Pacific Markets

                %

Fund: March 2023 17.7 15.1 50.0 6.9 10.3

Fund: Dec 2023 4.0 17.1 62.0 6.7 10.2

FTSE All World 3.9 12.5 63.1 10.7 9.8

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

Latest Quarter 2023/24 3 Years 5 Years

% % % pa % pa

Fund 5.2 6.6 5.1 6.9

Benchmark 4.8 7.7 6.9 8.3

Relative Return 0.4 -1.1 -1.8 -1.4

LGPS Universe 4.6 5.5 4.8 7.0

0

5

10

Return
%

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

The performance statistics quoted are net of fees. The LGPS universe figures for the last 
quarter are based on the asset allocation of the PIRC Local Authority Universe with index 
returns applied. The previous periods are updated to include actual Universe returns.  
 
The Fund achieved a positive return of +5.2% for the quarter to 31 December, taking the 
return for the financial year to date up to +6.6%, compared with the fund strategic 
benchmark of +7.7%. Despite lagging the Fund’s benchmark, the return was ahead of the 
LGPS Universe average of +5.5%. The key areas of under-performance against benchmark 
were Sustainable Equities and Infrastructure.  
 
A breakdown of the performance of the Total Fund for the financial year to date and three 
years to 31 December 2023 and the comparative Index returns are shown in the following 
table:  
 
Performance to 31 December 2023 

Financial Year 

To Date
Three Years

Benchmark Description

Fund 

Return

Bench 

mark

Fund 

Return

Bench 

mark

% % % %

Fixed Interest

Investment Grade Bonds +7.6 +6.1 -4.5 -4.9 iBoxx Sterling Non-Gilts 
1

Multi-Asset Credit +9.4 +6.7 +1.5 +5.9 GBP SONIA +4% 
1

Cash +4.9 +3.6 +2.0 +2.0 GBP 7 Day LIBID

Equities

Passive Equities +12.4 +12.4 +9.4 +9.5 Devon Passive Index

Global High Alpha Equities +9.7 +11.9 +7.3 +10.3 FTSE World / MSCI World

Global Smaller Companies +3.1 +8.1 +3.1 +5.8 MSCI World Small Cap

Emerging Markets +1.1 +2.8 -4.6 -2.5 MSCI Emerging Markets

Sustainable Equities +3.6 +10.9 +3.6 +8.7 MSCI AC World 

Alternatives/Other

Diversifying Returns Funds +6.3 +6.7 +3.0 +6.1 GBP SONIA +4%

UK Property -0.9 -1.4 +1.9 +1.3 AREF/IPD UK All Property

International Property -4.9 -5.0 +6.1 +5.3 MSCI Global Property

Infrastructure +1.4 +5.6 +7.2 +10.8 CPI + 4%
 1

Private Equity -0.6 +10.9 - - MSCI AC World 

Private Debt +9.1 +5.6 +10.6 +10.8 CPI + 4%
 1

Local Impact Portfolio +1.0 +2.3 - - 7% p.a. Return

Total Fund +6.6 +7.7 +5.1 +6.9  Devon Bespoke Index

Sector

 
Notes 
1. the benchmark shown is the current benchmark, but the benchmark return will also incorporate 

the benchmarks applicable for the earlier part of the 3 year period where the benchmark has 
changed as a result of transition to Brunel.  

 

Page 28

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

a) The Sterling Corporate Bonds and Multi-Asset Credit portfolios have both delivered a 
positive return ahead of benchmark over the year to date, having previously 
struggled during the period of rapid increases in interest rates. 

b) Over the quarter, the Sustainable Equities and Emerging Markets portfolios 
performed above benchmark, but all the active equity portfolios have 
underperformed against benchmark over both the current financial year to date and 
over the three year period. Over the medium term, underweights on the big seven 
tech stocks and on the energy sector have detracted from performance across the 
equity portfolios. The last quarter performance has been more impacted   by 
individual stock selection, rather than macro-economic factors. 

c) Infrastructure was the other significant area of relative underperformance over the 
quarter. Rising interest rates have impacted on both Infrastructure and Private 
Equity, as they have fed through to an increase in the cost of capital, most obviously 
in debt funding costs. This has impacted on valuations to some extent, while the use 
of an inflation plus benchmark for Infrastructure has contributed to the 
underperformance given the continuing high level of inflation.  

d) Both UK and International Property have seen negative returns over the year to date 
during a period where property markets in general have fallen. But both are ahead of 
their respective benchmarks over both the financial year to date and the three year 
period. 

Currency Hedging 

e) The following graph shows the value of Sterling against a weighted average of the 
other major currencies, over the three years to 31 December 2023. The currency 
strategy agreed by the Committee is to increase or decrease the hedge ratio on the 
Fund’s global passive equity funds based on the ranges as shown on the chart. The 
middle (base 100) position reflects a weighted average of £1 = $1.40, £1 = €1.15 and 
£1 = ¥150. 

Value of Sterling v. Weighted Average of US Dollar, Euro and Yen 

 

Change to 100% Hedge Change to 50% Hedge

Change to 75% Hedge

80

85

90

95

100

105

110

115

25% Hedge

0% Hedge

50% Hedge

75% Hedge

100% Hedge

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

f) Previously, the currency hedging strategy was applied to the Global Developed 
Passive allocation. Following the consolidation of the passive allocation into the 
Global Developed Paris Aligned Benchmark (PAB) fund, the strategy has now been 
applied to the PAB allocation. The dotted line in the chart below marks the date of 
transition, and the return figures represent the returns of the Global Developed 
Passive funds up to 31 October and the Paris Aligned funds (hedged and unhedged) 
thereafter.  

g) The hedge ratio had increased to 75% at the end of September, after the pound had 
fallen to $1.2207. The pound then rose to $1.2747 as at the end of December. As a 
result of the increasing value of the pound, over the quarter the hedged portfolio 
delivered a higher return than the unhedged portfolio. 

h) Over the longer periods of one and three years the hedging strategy has delivered a 
better return than both a fully hedged or a fully unhedged portfolio. This is illustrated 
in the following chart.  

 

 

4) Funding Level 

The triennial actuarial valuation, as at 31 March 2022, carried out by the Fund Actuary, 
Barnett Waddingham, determined that the Devon Pension Fund had a funding level of 
98.4%.  
 
The Fund Actuary has provided a funding update, as at 31 December 2023, using the 
approach of rolling forward the data from the 2022 valuation, and updating it for subsequent 
investment returns, pension and salary increases. While it is not possible to assess the 
accuracy of the estimated liability as at 31 December 2023 without completing a full 
valuation, the results will be indicative of the underlying position.  

Returns Cumulative Last Annualised

Since 31/12/20 Quarter 1 Year 3 Years

Hedged +27.3% +10.1% +23.5% +8.4%

Unhedged +32.6% +6.9% +17.2% +9.9%

Devon +33.8% +9.3% +22.9% +10.1%

80

100

120

140

World Developed Passive Performance

Cumulative Return over Three Years

Hedged Unhedged Devon

P
a

ri
s 

A
li

g
n

e
d

F
u

n
d

Page 30

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

 
a) The returns over the period since the 2022 Triennial Valuation are shown in the 

following table. 
 

Return since 31 March 2022 compared with Actuarial Assumption 

 

 
b) The annualised investment return of +2.1% since March 2022 is well below the 

Actuary’s assumption of a +4.7% return. This has a negative impact on the value of 
Fund assets and therefore on the funding level.  

 
c) The valuation of liabilities depends on the assumptions used by the Actuary, in 

particular those for pension and salary increases and the discount rate applied to 
liabilities. The assumptions used by the Actuary for the December 2023 funding 
update, compared with those used in the 2022 Triennial Valuation are shown in the 
following table. 
 

 
 

d) The assumption for pension and salary increases has been reduced, but this is offset 
by the pension increase applicable from April 2023 and the increase that will be 
applicable from April 2024, which are now reflected as actual increases. 
 

e) The assumed discount rate going forward has also increased slightly. Other LGPS 
Funds, where their actuaries have based their discount rate on a margin above gilt 
yields, have seen significant improvements in funding levels due to the current 
elevated level of gilt yields. In some cases, discount rates in excess of 6% are being 
applied. However, it is thought that the discount rate used by Barnett Waddingham, 
based on the Fund’s investment strategy, provides a more realistic view of the 
current funding position. 
 

f) The chart below shows the change in the estimated funding level between 31 March 
2022 and 31 December 2023. The circled items show the effect of employer and 
employee contributions paid into the fund over the year offset by the additional 
pension liability accrued over the year, and then the impact of the April 2023 pension 
increase and the increase to be applied from April 2024, offset by the reduced 
inflation assumption going forward. The biggest impact is from the negative 
investment return during 2022/23 which has the effect of reducing the funding level 
by 4.5%. 
 

Actuarial Actual

Assumption Return

2022/23 4.7% -1.5%

2023/24 4.7% 5.2%

Return since 31/3/22 (annualised) 4.7% 2.1%

Pension Increases (CPI) 2.90% 2.43%

Salary Increases 3.90% 3.43%

Discount Rate 4.70% 4.79%

Actuarial Assumptions March 

2022

December

2023

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

 
 

g) In summary, the estimated funding level as at 31 March 2023 is 93.0%, compared 
with the funding level as at the 2022 Triennial Valuation of 98.4%. 
 

 

5) Budget Forecast 2023/24 

Appendix 1 shows the income and expenditure for 2023/24 against the original budget 
forecast. The following points should be noted. 

a) Contributions income to date is ahead of the budget and is forecast to be higher than 
the original budget forecast for the year. There have also been a high number of 
transfers in processed during the year to date, and these are now forecast to be 
higher than the original budget. 

b) Pension lump sum payments have been higher than anticipated, and there have 
been more transfers out. These are both now forecast to be higher than the original 
budget forecast. 

c) Investment income from property, infrastructure and private debt is received in cash 
and can be used to aid cashflow. Income to date is ahead of budgeted income. 

d) The high actual expenditure to date on Peninsula Pensions is because the annual 
licence fee for the pension administration system is paid during the first quarter. In 
addition, the invoice for the quarter to December to the Somerset Pension Fund had 
yet to be issued. However, a small overspend of £60,000 is anticipated resulting from 
the IT updates required to implement the McCloud judgement. 

e) The invoiced investment management fees line represents the overhead costs of 
Brunel. All Brunel invoices for the year have now been paid with a small underspend 
of £16,000. All other fees are taken directly from the funds and are charged based on 

Page 32

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

a percentage of the value of the assets under management. No significant variances 
are expected at this stage, but much will depend on asset performance over the rest 
of the financial year. 

f) Transaction costs for the year to date are higher than expected, to some extent 
reflecting initial costs in relation to new private market fund commitments, particularly 
private equity. The forecast for the year has been increased to reflect that. 

g) Oversight and Governance costs are anticipated to be broadly in line with the budget 
forecast, with small variances on actuarial costs and performance measurement. The 
pattern of expenditure on these headings will be variable across the year depending 
on when charges are raised.  

 

6) Cash Management 

The following table shows that the unallocated cash on deposit, as at 31 December 2023, 
was £164.2 million, plus $1.7 million in US Dollars. At 31 January, the cash on deposit was 
little changed at £167.6 million, plus $4.5 million in US Dollars. A higher proportion of the 
cash was held in immediately available funds, in anticipation of a £42 million capital call 
from the Greencoat Wessex Gardens Fund.  

As agreed at the September meeting of the committee, a higher level of cash is currently 
being held, given that rates of between 5% and 6% can now be achieved. 

Cash on Deposit 

 
 
Points to note: 

a) The weighted average rate being earned on GBP cash deposits, as at 31st 
December 2023, was 5.55%. Given that rates have now stabilised, the average rate 
was little changed at the end of January. 

b) The deposits in place during 2023-24 have fully complied with the Fund’s Treasury 
Management and Investment Strategy. 

 
 

GBP Deposits £m % £m %
Call and Notice Accounts Immediate 39.2 5.31 67.6 5.26

35 Day Notice 0.0 0.0

Term Deposits <30 Days 0.0 0.0

>30 Days 125.0 5.62 100.0 5.68

TOTAL GBP 164.2 5.55 167.6 5.51

USD Deposits $m % $m %

Call and Notice Accounts Immediate 1.7 5.44 4.5 5.40

Current 

as at 

31/01/24

Average 

Interest 

Rate

Type of Deposit Maturity 

period

Actual 

as at 

31/12/23

Average 

Interest 

Rate

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

7) Voting and Engagement 

As a responsible investor, the Fund should report regularly on its engagement activity. The 
Devon Pension Fund is committed to responsible stewardship and believes that through 
stewardship it can contribute to the care, and ultimately long-term success, of all the assets 
within our remit. 
 
Each year the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) publishes a list of asset owners and asset 
managers who are accredited signatories to the UK Stewardship Code, which sets high 
standards for how asset owners should fulfil their responsibilities as owners of the assets 
they hold.  
 
During February we have been notified that the Devon Pension Fund has been re-
accredited as signatories to the Code for the third consecutive year on the basis of its 
stewardship activity and reporting in 2022/23. The outcome letter commented that there 
had been improvements in reporting compared to the previous year. It also noted some 
minor areas for further improvement which will be addressed in the 2023/24 Annual Report. 
 
Voting and engagement are delegated to the Brunel Pension Partnership for the actively 
managed equity portfolios and to Legal and General Investment Management (LGIM) for 
the passive portfolios. On significant issues, Brunel may request that their shares held by 
LGIM are split out and a different vote made. The voting records of Brunel and LGIM at 
company meetings held over the last quarter are summarised in the following table. 

Votes Cast at Company Meetings in the quarter to 31 December 2023 

 
 

Points to note: 

a) Brunel and LGIM actively vote the shares held within their funds on behalf of their 
client funds, including Devon.  

b) The votes against management recommendations will reflect matters where there is 
concern that the company is not addressing the relevant issue and managing it 
effectively. The Devon Fund would expect that the votes against management 
should be primarily on the priority areas set out in the Fund’s Investment Strategy 
Statement. An analysis of the issues where votes have been cast against 
management recommendations is set out below. 

Manager

Number of 

Meetings

Number of 

Resolutions

Votes against 

management 

recommendation

Brunel / LGIM Passive Portfolios 61                  653                171                          

Brunel - Active Portfolios 101                630                116                          

Quarter to 31 December 2023

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

Votes against management recommendation by issue 
Quarter to 31 December 2023 

     Board stucture

     Remuneration

     Shareholder

 resolutions

     Capital structure and

 dividends

     Amend articles

     Audit and accounts

     Investment, mergers

 and acquisitions

     Other

45

32

10

5

17

5

1

Brunel Active Portfolios

 

Director Related

Remuneration

Capital Structure and Dividends

Audit and accounts

Environmental/Climate

Social/Human Rights/Diversity

Corporate Governance

Restructuring/M&A

Other

90

45

3

20

4 6 3

Brunel Passive (LGIM) Portfolios

 

 

c) The Fund is also a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF), 
who undertake engagement activity on behalf of their member funds. Where 
significant issues arise on the agendas of company meetings, LAPFF will issue 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

voting alerts, with recommendations on how to vote. The Devon Fund will then pass 
on these recommendations to Brunel and ask them to report back on how they have 
voted. We only received one voting alert during the quarter, related to BHP Billiton, 
which was not held in any of our portfolios at the time of the AGM. 

d) We also received representations from a fund member in relation to the Microsoft 
AGM held on 7th December, asking us to support two shareholder resolutions, one 
related to reporting on human rights, and one around the risks of Artificial Intelligence 
(AI). These are summarised in the table below: 

Microsoft AGM Shareholder Resolution Votes 

Resolution LGIM 
(Passive) 

Vote 

Brunel 
(Active) 

Vote 

Rationales 

Report on Risks of 
Operating in Countries 
with Significant Human 
Rights Concerns 

For For A vote FOR this proposal was 
warranted. Shareholders 
would benefit from increased 
disclosure regarding how the 
company is managing human 
rights-related risks in high-risk 
countries. 

Report on Risks Related to 
AI Generated 
Misinformation and 
Disinformation 

Against For Brunel supported the 
resolution as the proposal 
promoted better management 
of ESG opportunities and risks 
and promoted transparency.  

LGIM applied a vote against 
this resolution as they 
considered that at the present 
time the company is a leader 
in its disclosures, governance 
processes and mitigation 
steps it is taking on risks 
posed by its operations from 
generative AI. 

 

e) Neither resolution was approved at the AGM. The human rights item gained 33.6% 
support from shareholders; the AI resolution was supported by 21.2% of 
shareholders. 

f) Brunel conduct significant engagement with investee companies on behalf of the 
Devon Fund and other clients. A breakdown of the engagement undertaken over the 
last quarter is summarised in the following charts: 

 

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

Number of Companies 
Engaged With, By Region 

 Breakdown of Issues  
Engaged On 

         

United Kingdom Environmental

Europe Social and Ethical

North America Governance

Asia/Pacific Strategy Risk and Communication

Emerging Markets  

 

g) More details on Brunel’s engagement can be found in their quarterly report. 

h) The LAPFF quarterly engagement report for the quarter to 31 December is attached 
at Appendix 2 to this report. Highlights include:   

 An overview of the 2023 LAPFF conference, detailing discussions on various 
important topics including electric vehicle (EV) supply chains and the biodiversity 
crisis. 

 A continued push on the ‘Say on Climate’ initiative, aimed at encouraging more 
companies to present their climate transition plans for shareholder voting. 

 Active engagement with insurance companies regarding climate change, which 
included meetings with AIA, AXA, Legal & General, Lloyds Banking Group, and 
Ping An. 

 Engagement efforts focused on mining and human rights, particularly with Grupo 
Mexico and Glencore. This included organising a seminar for investors featuring 
communities from Colombia and Peru impacted by Glencore’s mining projects. 

 Discussions with German technology giant SAP to address the management of 
adverse human rights impacts, including issues of discrimination, arising from 
advancements in artificial intelligence (AI) technologies. 

 Issuance of a voting alert concerning BHP, highlighting concerns over the 
company’s climate-related practices and its corporate culture regarding human 
rights.  

 Continued engagement with The Home Depot through the Investor Alliance for 
Human Rights’ Uyghur Working Group, aimed at addressing the company’s 
response to allegations of Uyghur forced labour within its supply chains. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

 Meeting with the chair of Barclays to gain insight into the company’s efforts to 
enhance its corporate governance in light of allegations associated with its 
former executive and Jeffrey Epstein.  

 

 
 
Angie Sinclair 
Director of Finance and Public Value 
 
Electoral Divisions: All  
 

Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers 

Nil 
 
Contact for enquiries: 
Name: Mark Gayler  
Telephone: 01392 383621 
Address: Room 196 County Hall 

Page 38

Agenda Item 8



Appendix 1

Actual

Original 

Forecast

Actual to 

31 Dec Revised Variance

2022/23 2023/24 2023/24 Forecast 2023/24
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Contributions

Employers (141,245) (165,000) (132,945) (180,000) (15,000)

Members (49,905) (52,000) (39,711) (52,000) 0

Transfers in from other pension funds: (13,253) (14,000) (17,962) (20,000) (6,000)

(204,403) (231,000) (190,618) (252,000) (21,000)

Benefits

Pensions 176,799 200,000 146,736 200,000 0

Commutation and lump sum retirement benefits 27,720 30,000 26,032 33,000 3,000

Lump sum death benefits 3,826 4,000 4,262 4,000 0

Payments to and on account of leavers 981 1,000 723 1,000 0

Transfers Out 9,140 10,000 10,296 12,000 2,000

218,466 245,000 188,049 250,000 5,000

Net Withdrawals from dealings with fund members 14,063 14,000 (2,569) (2,000) (16,000)

Investment Income (39,113) (40,000) (32,873) (40,000) 0

Administrative costs

Peninsula Pensions 2,602 2,864 2,934 2,924 60

2,602 2,864 2,934 2,924 60

Investment management expenses

External investment management fees - invoiced 1,511 1,650 1,634 1,634 (16)

External investment management fees - not invoiced 21,602 24,000 16,503 24,000 0

Custody fees 30 35 7 35 0

Transaction costs 1,980 1,800 3,135 3,500 1,700

Class Action Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0

Other investment management expenses 27 30 14 30 0

25,150 27,515 21,293 29,199 1,684

Oversight and governance costs

Investment & Pension Fund Committee Support 92 95 65 95 0

Pension Board 41 45 31 45 0

Investment Oversight and Accounting 388 420 243 420 0

Brunel Pension Partnership 20 10 0 10 0

Legal Support 37 30 4 30 0

Actuarial Services 107 40 98 70 30

Investment Performance Measurement 72 75 56 56 (19)

Subscriptions 58 61 16 61 0

Internal Audit fees 21 24 0 24 0

External Audit fees 47 50 (13) 50 0

883 850 500 861 11

Total Management Expenses 28,635 31,229 24,727 32,984 1,755

Devon County Council Pension Fund  Budget Forecast 2023/24

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
������
���������������������������� ��� !" #$%&�'()  *�'%!"�$ +,%-) ./)  0* 1!,2& !"  .23%"(33 �"-  42&�" 5%67'3)  5%! 8%"'! 9::;<=>?@A
Page 40

Agenda Item 8



Page 41

Agenda Item 8



������������	
��
�����	�������
���
����������
��������
����� ����  !"#$%!"&'()*+,-./,0+0/)/,12'34)+1/./,0+0/)/,12�����5678986:5;75<=>?9@65<A97865@AB;C8A5D;@A5E;=><F597G5<;?E97F5678986?67@5<A9776=:H5IA>:5GC9=59EEB;9<A5>:576<6::9BF5@;567:CB65@A9@5<;?E97>6:5A9J65975679D=>78567J>B;7?67@5@;5EB;?;@65@A6>B55<=>?9@65<A97865?>@>89@>;7597G59G9E@9@>;75K;BLH5MNOPQRPSTUVNWXYDZ6<@>J6[5\]̂_̀a]bac]b̂̀dèfgheabèi]̂aj]eabk̀̂l̂bmnbgòjha]bgched]pbèi]̂amk̂bhk]bemab_kmìq]qbr̀acbhb̂_]g̀fgbima]bstb̀ei]̂a]]bgmj_hè]̂bmebcmrbac]tbhk]b̂]]l̀edbambq]ghksmè ]̂bac]̀kbsû è]̂ b̂jmq]ôvbwdh̀êabac]bshglqkm_bmnbdkmr̀edbgòjha]bk̀̂l̂pbk̀̂ èdb]x_]gahàmêbnkmjbèi]̂amk̂bnmkbgmj_hè]̂bambmuaòe]bac]̀kbgòjha]b̂akha]dtpbgmeàeu]qbkhagc]àedbu_bmnbgòjha]bk]duohàmêbheqb]j]kd̀edbk]gmjj]eqhàmêbnkmjbac]bykhê à̀mebzohebyĥlnmkg]pb{wz||bcĥbs]]eb]edhd̀edbgmj_hè]̂bnmkbac]b_ĥabn]rbt]hk̂bmeb_uaàedbac]̀kbakhê à̀meb_ohêbambhbĉhk]cmoq]kbima]vb{ĥab}uhka]kpb{wz||bgmmkq̀eha]qbheb̀ei]̂amkbo]aa]kbamb~�b|y��bgmj_hè]̂b̀ebc̀dcb]j̀aàedb̂]gamk̂bk]}u]̂àedb̂ugcbhbima]vbyc]bo]aa]kbrĥb^̀de]qbstb��bmac]kb̀ei]̂amk̂br̀acbhkmueqb��v�aebw��vb�<A>6J6G[5{wz||bcĥbk]g]̀i]qbûŝaheài]bk]̂_mê]̂bambac]bo]aa]kpbr̀acbm̂j]bgmj_hè]̂bmuaòèedbac]̀kbh__kmhgcbambgòjha]bheqb̂ahàedbachabac]tbhk]bgmê q̀]k̀edb̂ugcbhbima]bnmkbac]̀kbw��be]xabt]hkvb�mj]bgmj_hè]̂bmuaòe]qb_k]ìmûbima]̂bheqbac]̀kb̀ea]eàmebambgmeàeu]bambcmoqb̂̀j̀ohkbima]̂b̀ebac]bnuauk]vb�mr]i]kpbmac]k̂b̂aha]qb]̀ac]kbachabac]tbq̀qbemab_ohebambcmoqb̂ugcbhbima]bheqb]edhd]qb̂chk]cmoq]k̂backmudcbmac]kbj]hêbmkbachabrc̀o]bchìedbhbima]b̀ebac]b_ĥapbac]tbq̀qbemabchi]b̀jj]q̀ha]b_ohêbambqmb̂mbhdh̀evb�75EB;8B6::[5\]̂_̀a]bhqq̀àmehobgmj_hè]̂bchìedbakhê à̀meb_ohebima]̂pbac]tbhk]bemab̂aheqhkqb_khgàg]bheqbmna]ebhŝ]eabhabw��̂brc]k]bgòjha]bk̀̂l̂bhk]bjm̂abhgua]vb{wz||br̀oobgmeàeu]bambrmklbr̀acbmac]kb̀ei]̂amk̂b]edhd̀edbgmj_hè]̂bmebchìedbakhê à̀meb_ohebima]̂bamb]ehso]bèi]̂amk̂bambchi]bhb̂_]g̀fgb̂htbmebac]bgòjha]b̂akha]d̀]̂bmnb̀ei]̂a]]bgmj_hè]̂v {wz||�̂bjh̀ebgmj_hetb]edhd]j]eâbmebgòjha]bac̀ b̂}uhka]kbr]k]br̀acb�hàmehob�k̀qbheqb�zvb�NWUQRNTP��U�PYDZ6<@>J6[5{wz||pbhomedbr̀acbarmbmac]kbèi]̂amk̂bmnb�w����b�mkl̀edb�kmu_pb�cukgcbmnb�edoheqbheqb�mkac]kebykûapbcĥbs]]eb̂]]l̀edbamb̀j_kmi]b�hàmehob�k̀q�̂bq̀ ĝom̂uk]bheqbhggmueahs̀òatbmebq̀k]gabheqb̀eq̀k]gabomsst̀edvbyc]b�w����bs]egcjhklbmeb�hàmehob�k̀qb_ohg]̂b̀abs]omrb̀âb_]]kbgmj_hè]̂bueq]kbèq̀ghamkb�bmebomsst̀edvb�eb�ue]b���~pb�hàmehob�k̀qb_o]qd]qbamb_usò̂cb̀âbakhq]bĥ m̂g̀hàmebj]js]k̂c̀_̂bheqbu_qha]qbgòjha]b_mògtbhc]hqbmnbac]be]xabw��vb{wz||bac]k]nmk]b̀̂b̂]]l̀edbamb]êuk]bac]bgmj_het�̂bq̀ ĝom̂uk]b̀̂bàj]otbheqbmnbhbc̀dcb̂aheqhkqvb{wz||bcĥbhômbs]]eb̂]]l̀edbamb]êuk]bac]bgmj_hetb̀̂bjmk]bakhê_hk]eabhsmuabà̂b_ohêbamb̂u__mkabac]b]e]kdtbakhê à̀mebheqbk]qug̀edbdk̀qbgmee]gàmevbyc]bms�]gài]brĥbamb]egmukhd]bq̀ ĝom̂uk]bheqbambm�]kbac]bm__mkauèatbamb_kmìq]bn]]qshglbmebac]bgmj_het�̂bh__kmhgcbèbsmacbk]̂_]gâvb{wz||bhômb̂mudcabhb̂]_hkha]bgòjha]bj]]àedbr̀acbac]bgmj_hetbheqbambrk̀a]bhbomsst̀edbo]aa]kbamb�hàmehob�k̀qb̂]]l̀edbq̀ ĝom̂uk]bmnbèqûaktbĥ m̂g̀hàmêbheqbhebu_qha]qbgòjha]b_mògtv�<A>6J6G[5�eb�mi]js]kpb{wz||bamd]ac]kbr̀acbac]b�cukgcbmnb�edoheqbrkma]bambac]bgmj_hetpb̂ahàedb]x_]gahàmêbnmkb̀âbu_gmj̀edbomsst̀edbk]_mkavbwabac]b]eqbmnb�mi]js]kpb{wz||bj]abac]b�c̀]nb�ûah̀ehs̀òatb��g]kbmnb�hàmehob�k̀qvb�ebac̀ b̂j]]àedb{wz||bĥl]qbnmkbhebu_qha]bmebac]bshglomdbmnbdk̀qbgmee]gàmêbheqbhebu_qha]bmebac]bakhê à̀meb_ohevbyc]bk]g]eabgched]b̀ebk]duohàmêbcĥb]ehso]qbac]bshglomdbamb̂ahkabambs]bgo]hk]qvbyc̀ b̂cĥbs]]ebhbjh̀ebgmeg]kebĥbac]bhi]khd]bàj]bs]ar]]ebk]}u]̂àedbhbgmee]gàmebheqbs]̀edbm�]k]qbme]bcĥb̀egk]ĥ]qbnkmjb��bjmeaĉb̀eb�������bamb�bt]hk̂b̀eb���~pbĥbk]_mka]qbstbac]bgmj_hetvbyc]b]ĥ èdbmnbk]duohàmêbr̀oobhoomrbac]bgmj_hetbamba]kj̀eha]b_km�]gâbemab_kmdk]̂^̀edbheqb_ûcb_km�]gâbrc̀gcbhk]bk]hqtbambac]bnkmeabmnbac]b}u]u]vb�̀i]ebachabac]b]x_]ga]qb_mr]kbambs]bd]e]kha]qbnkmjbac]̂]bc]oq�u_bgmeakhgâb`̂bĥbjugcbĥb���b�̀dhrhaâbr̀acbgmee]gàmebqha]̂bmnb��~�bmkboha]kpbac̀ b̂ gched]br̀oobc]o_bamrhkq̂bq]ghksmè^̀edbac]b_mr]kb̂t̂a]ĵ bstb��~�vb�mr]i]kpbac]k]b̀̂b̂àoobhbgchoo]ed]b̀eb̂_]]q̀edbu_bsùoq̀edbe]g]̂ ĥktb̀enkĥakugauk]bamb_ct̂ g̀hootb]ehso]bac]bdk̀qbgmee]gàmêvb{wz||br̀oobjmèamkbac]b]�]gabmnbònàedbac]̂]bk]duohàmêbheqbcmrb}ùglotbac]bgmj_hetbgo]hk̂bac]bshglomdbheqb̀̂bhômbomml̀edbnmkbgohk̀atb̀eb̀âb̀enkĥakugauk]bq]i]om_j]eab_ohêvbyc]bj]]àedbhômbq̀ ĝû ]̂qbac]be]rbakhê à̀meb_ohebambs]b_usò̂c]qbe]xabt]hkvb{wz||br]ogmj]qbac]bnhgabachabac̀ b̂`̂bòl]otbambs]bu_qha]qbe]xabt]hkbheqbr̀oobs]b_uabambhb̂chk]cmoq]kbima]vb{wz||bhômb]egmukhd]qbac]bgmj_hetbamb]êuk]bac]bk]_mkab̀̂bemabmeotbhsmuabk]qug̀edb]j̀^̂m̀êbsuabcmrbac]bgmj_hetbghebnhg̀òaha]be]rb̀enkĥakugauk]bambs]bsùoapbheqb̀âbr̀q]kbkmo]b̀ebac]b]e]kdtbakhê à̀mevbyc]bgmj_hetbhômbk]gmdè ]̂qbhbgchoo]ed]bèbk]hgc̀edbomed�a]kjbahkd]âbmnbe]ab ]kmbstb����b̀ebhŝ]eg]bmnbhb_hacrhtbnmkbdĥbq̀ âk̀suàmeb̀ebac]b��vb�75�B;8B6::[5yc]bk]o]ĥ]bmnbac]bomsst̀edbq̀ ĝom̂uk]bk]_mkabe]xabt]hkb̀ebdmmqbàj]bs]nmk]bac]bw��b̀̂b]x_]ga]qbheqbr̀oob]ehso]bac]b|mkujbambĥ ]̂̂ b̂ac]b_kmdk]̂ b̂jhq]b̀ebac]bgmj_hetbmebac̀ b̂hk]hvb�mbnhkb�hàmehob�k̀qbh__]hk̂bambs]bk]̂_meq̀edbr]oovb{wz||bhômb]x_]gâbac]be]rbakhê à̀mebk]_mkabambs]bk]o]ĥ]qbheqbambhqqk]̂ b̂ac]b_m̀eâbchi]bkh̀̂]qbc]k]vbwbl]tbmuâaheq̀edb̀̂ û]b̀̂bdĥbq̀ âk̀suàmeb̀ebac]b��pbrc]k]bac]bgmj_hetbĥ ]̂kâbac]bmedm̀edb̀j_mkaheg]bmnbdĥbe]armkl̂bambac]bsû è]̂ b̂qu]bamb̀âb]x̀̂ àedbènkĥakugauk]bheqbgm̂ab]�g̀]egtbheqb]eì̂hd]bsmacbctsk̀qb̂mouàmêbheqbgo]hebdĥvbymbhqqk]̂ b̂ac̀ b̂{wz||br̀oob̂]]lbambueq]k̂aheqbac]b��b]e]kdtbjhkl]ab̀ebjmk]bq]ah̀ovb�eb]edhd]j]eab̂_]g̀fĝpb{wz||b`̂bmkdhè^̀edbhbr̀q]kb�w����bj]]àedbèb�heuhktbheqbr̀oobhkkhed]b̂mj]bq̀k]gabnmoomrbu_bj]]àed̂backmudcb����v¡¢YDZ6<@>J6[5�àcbac]b̂uk_k̀̂]bq]_hkauk]bmnb�c̀]nb�x]guài]b�]kehkqb{mme]tpb{wz||bk]}u]̂a]qbhbj]]àedbr̀acbac]b�ch̀kpb�]od]b{ueqpbambc]o_bĥg]kah̀ebrc]ac]kbachabq]_hkauk]bh�]ga]qb�ẑbgòjha]bgmjj̀aj]eâv�<A>6J6G[5{wz||bhaa]eq]qbhbj]]àedbr̀acb{ueqb̀eb�mi]js]kpbrc]k]br]br]k]bamoqbachabac]bq]_hkauk]bmnbac]b���bchqb
Page 42

Agenda Item 8



������������	
��
�����	�������
���
����������
����������
����� ���̂_̀ab̂cd?+*/*.,(/26,.*+8,02/62+21-*21*@./13B1/:,*06)(521-D*5):,*-))3+D*/13*)7(3)).*8.)370(+D*Cef*g):8/12,+*2+*,;8)+,3*()*4/.2)7+*0)::)32(2,+*(5/(*8)(,1(2/669*621=*()*3,<).,+(/(2)1*21*2(+*+78869*05/21>*h)A,4,.D*2(*07..,1(69*6/0=+*/*87@620*3,<).,+(/(2)1*8)6209*/13*3),+*1)(*/33.,++*(52+*2++7,*21*2(+*4,13).*0)3,*)<*0)1370(>�_iâb̂jcdE?FGG*212(2/(,3*/*32/6)-7,*A2(5*Cef*g):8/12,+*/13*:,(*A2(5*.,8.,+,1(/(24,+*<).*(5,*k.+(*(2:,*()*32+07++*(5,*3,4,6)8:,1(*)<*+705*/*8)6209>*C5,*0)14,.+/(2)1*@,-/1*A2(5*/1*)4,.42,A*)<*(5,*0):8/19l+*+7+(/21/@262(9*8.2).2(2,+D*(.2/6*+05,:,+*<).*1,(*m,.)*5):,+D*/13*,1-/-,:,1(*A2(5*+:/66,.*+78862,.+*)1*(5,*(./1+2(2)1>*nodpqrsq̂ttc*E?FGG*A266*@,*<)66)A21-*(5,*3,4,6)8:,1(*)<*5)7+,@7263,.+l*(./1+2(2)1*86/1+*/13*3,624,.21-*)1*(5,*(/.-,(+*(5/(*(5,9*5/4,*+,(>uvwxyz{|}|w~���y~u{E?FGG*5/+*/6+)*.,B+(/.(,3*2(+*����*,1-/-,:,1(*A2(5*21+7./10,*0):8/12,+*)1*(5,2.*062:/(,*+(./(,-2,+*/13*8./0(20,+>*?<(,.*:,,(21-*A2(5*�71205*�,*6/+(*�7/.(,.*()*32+07++*(5,*0):8/19l+*8.)-.,++*)1*/++,++21-*2(+*2:8/0(*)1*062:/(,*05/1-,*/13*21(,-./(21-*062:/(,*0)1+23,./(2)1+*21()*0).8)./(,*+(./(,-9*/13*)8,./(2)1+D*E?FGG*:,(*A2(5*�����������������������������������������������D*/13*�������*()*32+07++*(5,*+/:,*2++7,+>*�24,1*(5,*21(,.,+(*)<*E?FGG*:,:@,.+*21*1/(7./6*.,+)7.0,+* */13*+8,02k0/669*@2)324,.+2(9* *E?FGG*/6+)*/+=,3*(5,+,*21+7.,.+*5)A*(5,9*/.,*/33.,++21-*1/(7./6*.,+)7.0,+*A2(521*(5,2.*062:/(,*+(./(,-2,+>*¡526,*(5,.,*5/+*@,,1*+):,*8.)-.,++*21*21+7.,.+l*713,.+(/1321-*)<*(5,*1,,3*()*/++,++*(5,2.*2:8/0(+*)1*062:/(,*05/1-,*21*).3,.*()*713,.+(/13*(5,2.*062:/(,B.,6/(,3*@7+21,++*.2+=+*¢)(5,.A2+,*=1)A1*/+*3)7@6,*:/(,.2/62(9£D*21*E?FGGl+*42,A*(5,.,*5/+*1)(*@,,1*,1)7-5*8.)-.,++*)1*(52+*<.)1(>*¤1*8/.(2076/.D*21+7.,.+*/.,*<)07+21-*/6:)+(*,;067+24,69*)1*(5,2.*214,+(:,1(*@7+21,++,+*21*.,6/(2)1*()*062:/(,*:2(2-/(2)1>*C52+*/88.)/05*:/=,+*+,1+,*/(*</0,*4/67,D*@7(*E?FGG*A)763*62=,*u¥x¦y~§|{~̈ ÿ {x{~z�1)(*05/1-,3*HF+*062:/(,*0)::2(:,1(+>nod�qrsq̂ttc*©210,*(5/(*:,,(21-*gªF�«*5/+*+(.,1-(5,1,3*(5,*,:85/+2+*<).*+)67(2)1+*()*(5,*(./1+2(2)1*/A/9*<.):*<)++26*<7,6+D*A5205*,:,.-,3*/+*/*6/+(B:217(,*0):8.):2+,*21+(,/3*)<*(5,*).2-21/6*-)/6*()*¬85/+,*)7(*<)++26*<7,6+>*F.2).*0)::2(:,1(+*A,.,*21*(5,*<).:*)<*</.*:).,*:/66,/@6,*-)/6+*)<*¬1,(*m,.)*@9*��®�*/13*0):8620/(21-*:/((,.+*A2(5*©0)8,*̄D*©0)8,*�*/13*©0)8,*°*,:2++2)1+>*E?FGGl+*8)6209*<).*+,4,./6*9,/.+*5/+*@,,1*(5/(*<)++26*<7,6*0):8)1,1(+*)<*@7+21,++,+*1,,3*()*@,*87(*21()*:/1/-,3*3,0621,>*¡2(5*/*06)+,.*:/(05*@,(A,,1*gªF*/13*E?FGG*8)6209D*(5,*,:85/+2+*)1*85/+,*)7(*A266*@,*(5,*<)07+*)<*HF*/13*)(5,.*)26*/13*-/+*0):8/12,+>*©0)8,*°*,:2++2)1+D*).2-21/(21-*<.):*(5,*8.)370(+*+)63*@9*<)++26*<7,6*0):8/12,+D*5/4,*@,,1*)@<7+0/(,3*@9*/*<)07+*)1*(5,*0):8/./(24,69*:21).*©0)8,*̄*/13*©0)8,*�*,:2++2)1+D*:2++21-*(5,*)@42)7+*8)21(*(5/(*6,++*©0)8,*°*,;(./0(2)1*1/(7./669*6,/3+*()*6,++*©0)8,*̄*/13*©0)8,*�>*h)7+,@726321-*/6+)*5/+*/*6/.-,*2:8/0(*)1*062:/(,*05/1-,>*?+*8/.(*)<*/1*)1-)21-*,1-/-,:,1(*A2(5*(5,*+,0().D*E?FGG*:,(*A2(5*�����±±��*(52+*�7/.(,.>²TYUSOONR[\]̂_̀ab̂c*�212:2+21-*(5,*214,+(:,1(*.2+=+*/++)02/(,3*A2(5*062:/(,*05/1-,*214)64,+*3,0/.@)12+21-*5)7+21-*+()0=>*h)7+,@7263,.+*(5,.,<).,*86/9*/1*2:8).(/1(*.)6,*21*.,37021-*,:2++2)1+*/+*A,66*/+*</021-*.,-76/().9*.2+=+*2<*(5,9*</26*()*8.,8/.,*<).*52-5,.*,1,.-9*,³02,109*/13*,:2++2)1+*+(/13/.3+>*?+*8/.(*)<*E?FGGl+*,1-/-,:,1(+*A2(5*́µ*5)7+,@7263,.+D*E?FGG*+,,=+*()*,1+7.,*(5/(*/3,�7/(,*(./1+2(2)1*86/1+*/.,*21*86/0,>*¡2(5*(5,*4/+(*:/¶).2(9*)<*,:2++2)1+*1)(*0):21-*<.):*(5,2.*)A1*/0(242(2,+D*(5,*,1-/-,:,1(+*<)07+*)1*86/1+*<).*3,0/.@)12+21-*+78869*05/21+*/13*3,0/.@)12+21-*5):,+*21*7+,>*�_iâb̂jcdE?FGG*:,(*A2(5*.,8.,+,1(/(24,+*<.):*(5,*GC©·̄��*5)7+,@7263,.*F,.+2::)1>*¤1*(5,*:,,(21-*E?FGG*5/3*/1*)8,1*32+07++2)1*/@)7(*(/.-,(*+,((21-*A5205*0)4,.,3*2++7,+*/.)713*,:@)32,3*0/.@)1>*C5,*:,,(21-*0)4,.,3*(./1+2(2)1*86/1121-*/13*86/1+>*C5,*32+07++2)1*()705,3*)1*+)B0/66,3*5/.3*()*/@/(,*+,0().+*A2(521*(5,*+78869*05/21D*+705*/+*0,:,1(*/13*)̧+,((21-D* �¹º»¼½½¾¿�À¾Á»¼¿Â�¹»ÃÄÃ¹�ÅÁÆÆ¾ÇÈÉ��Ê
Page 43

Agenda Item 8



������������	
��
�����	�������
���
����������
����������
����� ��� !!"#$%&"#'()*+,-./0-1,10*0-23456789:;<5:<6=9>?@A<?:B<A:AC;DE<FA45CA<8G94@9:;<@5<@GA<@5H96<54<BA45CA8@?@95:IJKL�MNOMPQQRLSG98<>?CT8<@GA<65>>A:6A>A:@<54<5:;59:;<B98678895:8<U9@G<SVWE<?<65>H?:D<87F8@?:@9?==D<GA=B<FD<XYZ[[I<SGA<[5C7><?9>8<@5<65:@9:7A<A:;?;9:;<U9@G<SVW<@5<?B\56?@A<45C<@GA<FA:A]@8<54<9>H589:;<BA45CA8@?@95:<CÂ79CA>A:@8<5:<9@8<\A:B5C8I_̀ abcdefeg̀h̀ìjkblm̀enhjlopcbpj̀ekiqerclskb̀ertkih̀uvwPxyz{PRL|:<@GA<65:@A}@<54<@GA<?;C9~455B<8A6@5C�8<8G94@<@5U?CB8<>5CA<878@?9:?F=A<HC?6@96A8E<XYZ[[<857;G@<?<>AA@9:;<U9@G<�A8@=�<@5<?88A88<?:B<7:BAC8@?:B<@GA<9:@A;C?@95:<54<CA;A:AC?@9\A<?;C967=@7CA<9:@5<9@8<8@C?@A;DI<SG98<9:6=7BA8<7:BAC8@?:B9:;<@GA<65>H?:D�8<8HA69]6<;5?=8E<9:9@9?@9\A8E<?:B<HC5;CA88<9:<9>H=A>A:@9:;<CA;A:AC?@9\A<HC?6@96A8E<?8<UA==<?8<9@8<65:@C9F7@95:8<@5<6=9>?@A<6G?:;A<>9@9;?@95:<?:B<F95B9\AC89@D<65:8AC\?@95:I<�x�zP{P�R<�7C9:;<XYZ[[�8<>AA@9:;<U9@G<�A8@=�E<@GA<[5C7><;?9:AB<9:89;G@8<9:@5<@GA<8@C?@A;9A8<?:B<9:9@9?@9\A8<9:\5=\AB<9:<9>H=A>A:@9:;<CA;A:AC?@9\A<?;C967=@7CAI<�98678895:8<=55TAB<?@<G5U<@G98<U57=B<FA<9:65CH5C?@AB<9:@5<@GA9C<FC5?BAC<6=9>?@A<8@C?@A;D<?:B<65\ACAB<F95B9\AC89@D<>5CA<U9BA=DI<�G9=A<@GA<=5:;~@AC><A�6?6D<54<@GA8A<?6@95:8<98<DA@<@5<FA<>A?87CABE<@GA<65:\AC8?@95:8<9:B96?@AB<?<8@C5:;<65>>9@>A:@<4C5><�A8@=�E<?=@G57;G<47C@GAC<A\?=7?@95:<U9==<FA<CÂ79CAB<9:<@GA<47@7CA<@5<;?7;A<@GA<9>H?6@8<54<8@C?@A;9A8IJKL�MNOMPQQRLXYZ[[<U9==<65:@9:7A<@5<A:;?;A<U9@G<�A8@=�E<456789:;<5:<>5:9@5C9:;<@GA<9>H=A>A:@?@95:<54<@GA9C<CA;A:AC?@9\A<?;C967=@7CA<HC?6@96A8I<XYZ[[<U9==<?=85<=55T<>5CA<U9BA=D<?6C588<@GA<?;C9~455B<8A6@5C<?8<5@GAC8<?CA<9:65CH5C?@9:;<@G98<9:@5<@GA9C<F789:A88<8@C?@A;9A8<?8<:AU<>A@G5B8<?:B<@A6G:5=5;9A8<FA65>A<?\?9=?F=AIrtl��bc̀efe�kb̀je�b̀�kjqatl�uvwPxyz{PRLXYZ[[<G?8<FAA:<A:;?;AB<U9@G<�G9H5@=A<5:<9@8<?HHC5?6G<@5<U?@AC<8@AU?CB8G9H<89:6A<����I<SGA<9:9@9?=<A:;?;A>A:@<5F�A6@9\A<U?8<>A@<B7C9:;<����E<U9@G<@GA<65>H?:D<7:BAC@?T9:;<?:< 9:;CAB9A:@<=A\A=<U?@AC<C98T<?88A88>A:@<@5<9BA:@94D<?CA?8<54<U?@AC<8@CA88<U9@G9:<@GA<87HH=D<6G?9:I<SGA<C98T<?88A88>A:@<457:B<@G?@<?<89;:9]6?:@<HC5H5C@95:<54<@GA<65>H?:D�8<87HH=9AC8<5HAC?@A<9:<?CA?8<54<U?@AC<8@CA88I<XYZ[[<:5U<65:89BAC8<9@<9>HAC?@9\A<@G?@<@GA<65>H?:D<7@9=98A<@GA<CA87=@8<54<@G98<C98T<?88A88>A:@<@5<8A@<>A?87C?F=A<?:B<@9>A~F57:B<@?C;A@8<9:<5CBAC<@5<CAB76A<:A;?@9\A<9>H?6@8<5:<4CA8GU?@ACI�x�zP{P�RL|:<�6@5FAC<����E<�����<H7F=98GAB<?<65CH5C?@A<FA:6G>?CT<?88A889:;<@GA<U?@AC<8@AU?CB8G9H<HC?6@96A8<54<��<65>H?:9A8<?;?9:8@<@GA<89}<�5CH5C?@A<�}HA6@?@95:8<45C<�?=79:;<�?@ACE<9:6=7B9:;<�G9H5@=AI<�G9H5@=A<7:BACHAC45C>AB<CA=?@9\A<@5<@GA<̂796T<8AC\96A<CA8@?7C?:@<�����<HAAC<;C57HI<XYZ[[<�}A67@9\A<>A>FAC<V5G:<Y:�?:9<>A@<U9@G<@GA<65>H?:D<9:<�A6A>FAC<@5<B986788<HC5;CA88<9:<?B5H@9:;<?<>5CA<?>F9@9578<?HHC5?6G<@5<9@8<U?@AC<8@AU?CB8G9H<HC?6@96A8IJKL�MNOMPQQRLXYZ[[<98<@GA<=A?B<9:\A8@5C<45C<�G9H5@=A<?8<H?C@<54<@GA<�?=79:;<�?@AC<[9:?:6A<|:9@9?@9\A<���[|�<?:B<U9==<65:@9:7A<@5<A:;?;A<U9@G<�G9H5@=A<5:<@G98<F?898<B7C9:;<����I<|@<98<XYZ[[�8<A}HA6@?@95:<@G?@<�G9H5@=A<=A\AC?;A8<@GA<U5CT<9@<G?8<7:BAC@?TA:<9:<>?HH9:;<A}H587CA<@5<U?@AC<8@CA88<9:<5CBAC<@5<8A@<?>F9@9578<@?C;A@8E<H?C@967=?C=D<;9\A:<@G?@<B7C9:;<��<����<@GA<869A:6A~F?8AB<@?C;A@8<:A@U5CT<G?8<CA=A?8AB<;79B?:6A<45C<65>H?:9A8<@5<8A@<@GA<CA=A\?:@<4CA8GU?@AC<@?C;A@8I<< �� �¡L¢J£�¤¥L¦¡£�£¦ ¦¡¤¥¥z§z̈©MLyNLy�PLẍz§©yPLQª©xP«L�¬§©KLMzO�yQLªN̈zxL©K�LªM©xyzxPL§¬QyL©̈zOKL®NMLxN§ª©KzPQLyNLvPL©v̈PLyNLz§ª̈P§PKyLy�PzML�¬§©KLMzO�yQLMPQªNKQzvz̈zyzPQ̄L�POzQ̈©yzNKLMP°¬zMzKOL§©K�©yNML�¬§©KLMzO�yQL©K�LPK{zMNK§PKy©̈L�¬PL�z̈zOPKxP«LzKẍ¬�zKOLy�PLz§§zKPKyL±NMªNM©yPL¥¬Qy©zK©vz̈zyL²¬PL²z̈zOPKxPL²zMPxyz{PL³©̈QNĹKNµL©QLy�PL¶±¥LyMzª̈PL²·̧«L§©́PQLy�PLKPP�L®NMLy�zQL©̈zOK§PKyLªMPQQzKŌL�����L�©QLy©́PKL©LK¬§vPMLN®L§P©Q¬MPQLy�zQL°¬©MyPMLyNLµNḾLyNµ©M�Ly�zQL©̈zOK§PKȳ�����·QL{zPµLzQLy�©yLzK{PQyNMQL©MPLQyz̈̈LQyM¬OÖzKOLyNL¬K�PMQy©K�Ly�PL̈zḰLvPyµPPKL�¬§©KLMzO�yQL©K�L®zK©Kxz©̈L§©yPMz©̈zȳL�����LQPPQLy�zQL̈zḰL§NMPL©K�L§NMPLẍP©M̈«Lª©Myzx¬̈©M̈Ly�MN¬O�LzyQLµNḾLµzy�L§zKzKOLxN§ª©KzPQ̄L�����LMPO¬̈©M̈L¬K�PMy©́PQL{©MzN¬QL©{PK¬PQLN®LPKO©OP§PKyLNKL�¬§©KLMzO�yQ«L©K�µz̈̈LxNKyzK¬PLyNLQPṔLzKLzyQLPKO©OP§PKyQLµzy�LvNy�LxN§ª©KzPQL©K�LzK{PQyNMQLyNLẍ©Mz®Ly�zQLz̈Ḱ L̄¤�PLON©̈LzQLy�©yL�¬§©KLMzO�yQLvPxN§PL©KLzK{PQyNMLz§ªPM©yz{PLyNLy�PLP¹yPKyLy�©yLẍz§©yPLx�©KOPLzQ«LKNyL̈P©QyLvPx©¬QPLN®Ly�PLKPP�L®NML©Lw¬QyLyM©KQzyzNK̄º_e»�jpsekiqe��j¼lihe½j�p�e�ie¾palìaaekiqe¿pskieglhtba�:<@GA<H5=96D<4C5:@E<XYZ[[<U?8<?;?9:<�ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆ��ÆÇÁÈÉÊ��ËÁÅÅ�ÉÄ��ÁÊÆÉÂÂÅÆ��ÃÌÌÃÊÍÎ�ÏÄÐÉËÄÎ�ÑÅÃËÁÒÉ
Page 44

Agenda Item 8



������������	
��
�����	�������
���
����������
����������
����� ���̂;=@45K:L=;F<:;5:HF>458>>:A59:IFGA5:J4KB7>:W;5>FV7A74;5:;5:4568>7;=>[:_̀L[:A59:BFGA5:=4KB7>P:\B8:K;AV:;Z:7B4>:W;5>FV7A74;5:4>:8aAW7VY:7;:<F>B:AV4K5G857:O87?885:VA?:A59:<=AW74W8:;5:BFGA5:=4KB7>P:b58:;Z:7B8:GA45:<;457>:QRSEE:GA98:4>:7BA7:W;=<;=A78:A59:W;GG8=W4AV:V8KAV:Z=AG8?;=@>:GF>7:AV4K5:?47B:4578=5A74;5AV:BFGA5:=4KB7>:VA?:<=45W4<V8>[:Z;=:8aAG<V8:;Z:c;457:6857F=8>[:7;:ZAW4V47A78:K;;9:W;=<;=A78:<=AW74W8P:()*+,-./0-1,10*0-23*002d-13e5:78=G>:;Z:W;G<A5Y:85KAK8G857>[:fghijklh:A59:flmnkophqrjko?8=8:W;G<A548>:;Z:Z;WF>:7B4>:sFA=78=P:QRSEE:K858=AVVY:BA>:A7:V8A>7:A5:A55FAV:G88745K:?47B:7B8:LV85W;=8:tBA4=P:\B4>:G88745K:?A>:47>:>8W;59:?47B:tBA4=:uAV49A>:vA9BA6<8994P:RV7B;FKB:QRSEE:BA9:=8sF8>789:A:G88745K:?47B:t_b:LA=Y:DAKV8:7;:94>WF>>:O;7B:WV4GA78:A59:BFGA5:=4KB7>:<8=Z;=GA5W8:A7:LV85W;=8[:v=P:vA9BA6<8994:?A>:AWW;GG;9A745K:A59:B8V<ZFVP:QRSEE:A>@89:AO;F7:7B8:W;G<A5YT>:85KAK8G857:?47B:AX8W789:W;GGF54748>[:OF7:v=P:vA9BA6<8994:949:5;7:>BA=8:GFWB:;5:7B4>:Z=;57PQRSEE:>FO>8sF857VY:B8V9:A:>8G45A=:Z;=:4568>7;=>:?47B:W;GGF54748>:Z=;G:t;V;GO4A:A59:S8=F:?B;:A=8:AX8W789:OY:LV85W;=8T>:t8==8c;5:A59:R57A<AWWAY:<=;c8W7>[:=8><8W7468VYP:e7:BA>:AV>;:O885:45:7;FWB:?47B:e59F>7=4RQQ:=8<=8>857A7468>:?B;:?;=@89:?47B:4568>7;=>:VA>7:Y8A=:7;:O=45K:A:WV4GA78]=8VA789:=8>;VF74;5:7;:LV85W;=8T>:RLvP:QRSEET>:648?:Z=;G:><8A@45K:7;:7B8>8:>7A@8B;V98=>:4>:7BA7:45:7B8:W;G45K:Y8A=[:LV85W;=8:4>:V4@8VY:7;:O8:7B8:7A=K87:;Z:A:W;5W8=789:F54;5:A59:W;GGF547Y:WAG<A4K5:O8WAF>8:;Z:47>:BFGA5:=4KB7>:A59:8564=;5G857AV:<=AW74W8>P:\B8=8Z;=8[:QRSEE:BA>:=8AWB89:;F7:7;:7B8:W;G<A5Y:Z;=:A:Z;VV;?:F<: G88745K:7;:94>WF>>:7B8>8:>7A@8B;V98=:W;5W8=5>:A59:7;:<F>B:7B8:W;G<A5Y:7;:OF4V9:A59:94>WV;>8:>7=;5K8=:>7A@8B;V98=:85KAK8G857:G8WBA54>G>:A59:WV4GA78:<=AW74W8>P20(w-)x)1./()*+,-d03/,-y/wz*,-/{d1w23|}~��������L;68=5A5W8:;Z:58?:78WB5;V;KY:4>:?8VV:=8W;K54>89:A>:A5:4568>7G857:=4>@P:I;?868=[:>FWB:=4>@>:BA68:W;G8:7;:7B8:Z;=8:AKA45:?47B:>4K54�WA57:A96A5W8>:45:Re:78WB5;V;K48>P:RV;5K>498:7B8:>4K54�WA57:<;78574AV:O858�7>:;Z:Re[:47:BA>:7B8:<;78574AV:7;:A968=>8VY:4G<AW7:<8;<V8T>:8G<V;YG857:A59:W=8A78>:BFGA5:=4KB7>:=4>@>[:5;7:V8A>7:A=;F59:94>W=4G45A74;5P:\B8>8:=4>@>:A=8:;Z785:K=8A78>7:A7:W;G<A548>:9868V;<45K:A59:>8VV45K:Re:>8=64W8>:A59:<=;9FW7>P:R>:?47B:;7B8=:BFGA5:=4KB7>:=4>@>[:QRSEE:8a<8W7>:78WB5;V;KY:W;G<A548>:7;:BA68:9F8:94V4K85W8:<;V4W48>:45:<VAW8:7;:<=86857:58KA7468:4G<AW7>P:����������QRSEE:8a8WF7468:G8GO8=:I8A7B8=:�;B5>;5:G87:?47B:7B8:L8=GA5:78WB:W;G<A5Y:̀RSP:\B8:W;G<A5Y:ZAW8>:><8W4�W:=4>@>:=8VA789:7;:Re[:45WVF945K:<=;9FW7>:?B4WB:>F<<;=7:IJ:ZF5W74;5>P:\B8:G88745K:W;68=89:B;?:7B8:W;G<A5Y:?A>:GA5AK45K:7B8:=4>@>:;Z:A968=>8:BFGA5:=4KB7>:4G<AW7>[:45WVF945K:94>W=4G45A74;5P:\B8:94>WF>>4;5:W;68=89:498574�WA74;5:;Z:=4>@>:A59:7B8:W;G<A5Y:>87:;F7:7B8:Z=AG8?;=@:A59:<=;W8>>8>:47:BA>:45:<VAW8:Z;=:<=8685745K:58KA7468:4G<AW7>P:\B8: G88745K:AV>;:W;68=89:B;?:7B8:W;G<A5Y:BA9:=8><;5989:7;:7B8:L8=GA5:̀F<<VY:tBA45:�F8:�4V4K85W8:RW7P:�������������Re:4>:A5:8G8=K45K:78WB5;V;KY:?47B:=4>@>:V4@8VY:7;:O8W;G8:K=8A78=:A59:G;=8:W;G<V4WA789P:QRSEE:?4VV:W;5745F8:7;:85KAK8:78WB5;V;KY:W;G<A548>:45:B;?:7B8>8:=4>@>:A=8:O845K:GA5AK89:7;:85>F=8:A<<=;<=4A78:Z=AG8?;=@>:A59:>AZ8KFA=9>:A=8:45:<VAW8P{03+)-3d�x0//*d-0{,x3/�/0x0(2{d(/�0wd(x0/*,-z�,(2z{�0{3/��){y�/{0-,zx2/,-y/*0{(0y03�/|}~���������R>:B4KBV4KB789[:7B8=8:4>:A5:45W=8A>45K:7=859:45:4578=5A74;5AV:=8KFVA74;5>:7;:4G<;>8:7B8:=8><;5>4O4V47Y:Z;=:BFGA5:=4KB7>:9F8:94V4K85W8:;5:W;G<A548>P:\B8>8:=8KFVA74;5>:B4KBV4KB7:7B8:8V8W7=4W:68B4WV8:459F>7=YT>:;OV4KA74;5:7;:85>F=8:87B4WAV:A59:>F>7A45AOV8:<=AW74W8>[:<A=74WFVA=VY:45:>F<<VY:WBA45>P:\B4>:9868V;<G857:4>:<A=7:;Z:A:O=;A98=:KV;OAV:G;68G857:7;?A=9>:85BA5W89:W;=<;=A78:AWW;F57AO4V47Y:A59:7=A5><A=85WYP:b68=:=8W857:Y8A=>[:QRSEE:BA>:W;5>4>7857VY:85KAK89:?47B:6A=4;F>:8V8W7=4W:68B4WV8:GA5FZAW7F=8=>:;5:7B4>:GA778=[:A96;WA745K:Z;=:4G<=;689:9F8:94V4K85W8:A59:7=A5><A=85WY:A>:7B8>8:=8KFVA74;5>:BA68:86;V689P����������QRSEE:BA>:GA457A4589:;5K;45K:94AV;KF8>:?47B:E;=9[:J85AFV7[:A59:v8=W898>[:G88745K:?47B:E;=9:A59:J85AFV7:Z;=:7B8:>8W;59:74G8[:A59:?47B:v8=W898>:Z;=:7B8:7B4=9:74G8:;5:7B4>:��������� ¡¢£�¤�¥������£¦§¢£�̈ © �ª��«�£�¬¬ ��ª¦«�© �® � �ª¬¢ ̄�¢�©����̄�̈ ¨��¬��¬ �©°��«���¦¬��� ¡¢£�
Page 45

Agenda Item 8



������������	
��
�����	�������
���
����������
����������
����� ���̂_�̀ab̀cdde_8HIJKKfL8G=:F8=L8MS;M8=6G:LM5?L8;?:8LM=998LM?QRR9=6R8M58Q67:?LM;678MS:89=6<8N:MF::68SQP;68?=RSML8;678g6;6C=;98P;M:?=;9=MOD8HIJKK8L::L8MS=L89=6<8P5?:8;678P5?:8C9:;?9O@84;?M=CQ9;?9O8MS?5QRS8=ML8F5?<8F=MS8P=6=6R8C5P4;6=:LD8hS:?:T5?:@8HIJKK8F=998C56M=6Q:8M58L::<8=68=ML8:6R;R:P:6ML8F=MS8N5MS8C5P4;6=:L8;678=6G:LM5?L8M58C9;?=TO8MS=L89=6<8L58MS;M8SQP;68?=RSML8N:C5P:8;68=6G:LM5?8=P4:?;M=G:8M58MS:8:BM:6M8MS;M8C9=P;M:8CS;6R:8=L@865M89:;LM8N:C;QL:85T8MS:86::78T5?8;8iQLM8M?;6L=M=56Dj-k032)l/,mmj,-(0/n)l/op*,-/lj1o23HIJKK8C56M=6Q:78M58F5?<8C95L:9O8F=MS8MS:8C55?7=6;M:78F=MS8H567568A=6=6R8W:MF5?<8M58S5978;68=6q4:?L568L:P=6;?8FS=CS8L=B8=6G:LM5?L8;MM:67:7D8hS:8r595PN=;68;678J:?QG=;68C5PPQ6=MO8P:PN:?L8LS;?:78MS:8L:G:?:8:6G=?56P:6M;98=P4;CML8r:??:i568F;L8S;G=6R8568=ML8?=G:?L8;678L5=9@8FS=CS8=L89:;7=6R8M58L=R6=gC;6M8S:;9MS8C56C:?6L8=68N5MS8C5Q6M?=:LD8I8HIJKK8?:4?:L:6M;M=G:8;9L58P:M8F=MS8C5PPQ6=M=:L8F=MS8C56M=6Q:78C56C:?68;N5QM8XEJfL84?;CM=C:L8=68X?;s=9D8HIJKK8S:978569=6:8P::M=6RL8F=MS8C5PPQ6=M=:L8T?5P8X?;s=98;678A:B=C5D8HIJKK8C56M=6Q:L8M58:6R;R:8F=MS8MS:8C5PPQ6=MO8P:PN:?L8F=MS8FS5P8=M8G=L=M:78=68X?;s=9@84;?M=CQ9;?9O8=68?:9;M=568M58MS:8?:4;?;M=56L8;M8>;P;?C5q;\:CM:78C5PPQ6=M=:LD8I9MS5QRS85G:?8tuu8S5QL:L8S;G:8?:45?M:79O8N::68NQ=9M8=6856:85T8MS:8?:L:MM9:P:6ML8v8X:6M58Y57?=RQ:L8q8MS:L:8C5PPQ6=MO8P:PN:?L8C56M=6Q:8M58N:8C56C:?6:78MS;M8MS:8UQ;9=MO85T8MS:8S5QL:L8=L8455?@8;678MS:O8?:45?M8MS;M8MS:O8756fM8<65F8FS58M58C56M;CM8;M8w;9:85?8XEJ8M58C5P49;=6D8J;?M85T8MS:84?5N9:P8=L8MS;M8MS:8Y:65G;8K5Q67;M=568rxy8F=MS8FS5P8HIJKK8P:M8=68X?;s=98S;L8N::68L;C<:78NQM865M8?:49;C:78LQCC:LLTQ99OD8E=L8=PP:7=;M:8LQCC:LL5?89;LM:78MF58P56MSL@8;CC5?7=6R8M58MS:8C5PPQ6=MO8P:PN:?LD8HIJKK8=L8F;=M=6R8M58S:;?8FS:MS:?8;84:?P;6:6M@8LQCC:LLTQ98rxy8S;L865F8N::68;445=6M:785?8FS:MS:?8MS:8L:;?CS8C56M=6Q:LDZ68?:9;M=568M58A:B=C5@8HIJKK8F;L8;LLQ?:78:;?9=:?8=68MS:8O:;?8MS;M8z{|}~������~�S;78P:M8=ML8?:4;?;M=56L85N9=R;M=56L8=68?:9;M=568M58=ML8�ut�8M;=9=6RL8=LLQ:D8I998MS?::8C5P4;6=:L8S;G:8LS5F6865M;N9:84?5R?:LL8=68MS:=?8SQP;68?=RSML8P;6;R:P:6M84?5C:LL:L8;678:\5?ML8M58C5P49O8F=MS8?:RQ9;M=56L@8:L4:C=;99O8=68MS:87:4MS85T8MS:=?84QN9=C8?:45?M=6RD8�:L4=M:8L5P:8;?:;L8LM=998?:UQ=?=6R8=P4?5G:P:6M@8=M8F5Q978;44:;?8MS:O8;?:8P5?:8;CM=G:9O8:6R;R=6R8F=MS8LQ449=:?L8;6784Q?LQ=6R8:MS=C;98L5Q?C=6R8M58P::M8=6M:?6;M=56;98SQP;68?=RSML8LM;67;?7LD]̂_�̀ab̀cdde_HIJKK8F=998C56M=6Q:8M58P56=M5?8;678L::<8:6R;R:P:6M8F=MS8MS5L:8C5P4;6=:L8:B45L:78M58MS:8G;?=5QL8SQP;68?=RSML8?=L<L8;LL5C=;M:78F=MS8:9:CM?=C8G:S=C9:L@8FS=CS8N:C5P:8:G:?8P5?:8:G=7:6M8;L84?57QCM=568=L8LC;9:78Q4D()mm,�)l,2jk0/0-1,10*0-23+lj/,�k,-(0HIJKK8C56M=6Q:78=ML8:6R;R:P:6M8F=MS8����8;678����~����{�����MS?5QRS8MS:8JYZ8I7G;6C:8SQP;68?=RSML8=6=M=;M=G:@8=6C9Q7=6R8MS?5QRS8N?=6R=6R8=6G:LM5?L8=685MS:?8JYZ8I7G;6C:8R?5Q4L8=6M58LM;<:S597:?8:6R;R:P:6M8P::M=6RL8568[9:6C5?:@8XEJ@8;678��~�����~D8hS:L:8=6=M=;M=G:L8;?:8P5G=6R8UQ=M:8L95F9O@8=684;?M8=68HIJKKfL8G=:F@8N:C;QL:8=6G:LM5?L8;?:8R:6:?;99O89:LL8;F;?:85T8;6789:LL8;MMQ6:78M58SQP;68?=RSML8C56L=7:?;M=56L8MS;68MS:O8;?:8C5?45?;M:8R5G:?6;6C:8;678:6G=?56P:6M;98=LLQ:LD8hS:?:T5?:@8MS:O8;?:8LM=998C56L=7:?=6R8S5F8N:LM8M58:6R;R:8C5P4;6=:L8568SQP;68?=RSML@8FS=CS8M:678M587:;98F=MS8�L5TMf8=LLQ:L8LQCS8;L8=99:R;987=LC?=P=6;M=568;678T?::75P85T8;LL5C=;M=568?;MS:?8MS;68�S;?7f8=LLQ:L89=<:8C9:;?8g6;6C=;98C5LMLDm)-�)-/*j-j-1//-02�)l�/,-�/()*�*p-j2j03/,nn0(20�/�./*j-j-1HIJKK8C56M=6Q:L8M58g678R?:;M8G;9Q:8=68:6R;R=6R8F=MS8C5PPQ6=MO8R?5Q4L8;\:CM:78NO8P=6=6R8C5P4;6O854:?;M=56LD8hS:8P::M=6R8F=MS8C5PPQ6=M=:L8;\:CM:78NO8[9:6C5?:854:?;M=56L8=68r595PN=;8;678J:?Q8F;L8MS:8g?LM8=6q4:?L568P::M=6R85T8MS=L8<=678MS;M8HIJKK8S;78S:978L=6C:8MS:8r5G=784;67:P=CD8A5LM8C5PPQ6=MO8P::M=6RL8;?:8569=6:8N:C;QL:8;\:CM:78C5PPQ6=MO8P:PN:?L8M:678M58N:8=687:G:954=6R8C5Q6M?=:L@8;678:G:?O56:8S;L89=P=M:78M?;G:98NQ7R:ML8�65M89:;LM8T5?8C9=P;M:8?:;L56L�D8E5F:G:?@8HIJKK8 ��������� �¡�� ¢���¢�£¤���¥ �¥�¦�§����̈� �� ���
Page 46

Agenda Item 8



������������	
��
�����	�������
���
����������
����������
����� ��� !!"#$%&"#'()**+,)-+./012134+41513.6 789:;<=>:?@9A78B<89=CADEFGGA>9A8?H:<7IJ8KA=LI=A=L8AH:MNI?OA>9AP>;;>?JA=:AK>9H<99AL:PA=:AM:Q8AR:7PI7KA:?A=L8A78B<89=AI?KAH:?=>?<89A=:AS8AL:N8R<;A=LI=A=L8AH:MNI?OAP>;;AM88=A>=TADEFGGA>9AN<79<>?JAR<7=L87AK>I;:J<8AP>=LA=L8AH:MNI?OA:?A=L>9A>99<8AI?KAP>;;A=IU8AIAQ>8PAIR=87A=L8AVWVXAEYZAPL8=L87A=L8A789:;<=>:?A[;>?JAN7:H899A?88K9A=:AS8A789<M8KT1\]/3)-E9ANI7=A:RA>=9A>?Q:;Q8M8?=AP>=LÂ:7;KA_8?HLMI7U>?JAE;;>I?H8À<9=A=7I?9>=>:?A>?>=>I=>Q8CADEFGGANI7=>H>NI=8KA>?AIAH:;;IS:7I=>Q8AHI;;AP>=LAa:7P8J>I?A8?87JOAH:MNI?OCAbB<>?:7TAbB<>?:7ALI9AIAN:;>HOAH:MM>=M8?=A=:AIÀ<9=A=7I?9>=>:?AI?KA=L8A8?JIJ8M8?=AN7:Q>K8KAIA<98R<;A:NN:7=<?>=OA=:AK>9H<99AL:PA=L8AN:;>HOAPI9AS8>?JA>MN;8M8?=8KTAcL8AM88=>?JAH:Q878KA=L8AH:MNI?O@9AINN7:IHLA=:AI99899>?JAI?KAM>=>JI=>?JA?8JI=>Q8A9:H>I;A>MNIH=9A:RA=L8A8?87JOA=7I?9>=>:?CAJ:Q87?I?H8A:RÀ<9=A=7I?9>=>:?A>99<89CÀ<9=A=7I?9>=>:?AN;I??>?JAI?KAM8=7>H9AI?KA=I7J8=9TAAdef�ghigjkklffE9ANI7=A:RADEFGG@9A>?Q:;Q8M8?=A>?A=L8Â_EA>?>=>I=>Q8CA>=AP>;;AH:?=>?<8A:>;AI?KAJI9AH:MNI?>89A:?À<9=A=7I?9>=>:?AN;I?9TADEFGGAP>;;AH:?=>?<8A=:A8?JIJ8AM>?>?JAH:MNI?>89A:?A<?K87=IU>?JA>?K8N8?K8?=API=87A>MNIH=AI99899M8?=9TA,)+-m2m/01-6/.n2134+41513.6opqjrstujlfv=A>9AP8;;wK:H<M8?=8KAI=A=L>9AN:>?=CAS:=LA>?AIHIK8M>HA;>=87I=<78AI?KA>?A=L8AH:7N:7I=8AJ:Q87?I?H8AP:7;KCA=LI=AS:I7KAK>Q879>=OA>MN7:Q89AH:7N:7I=8AN87R:7MI?H8TAx>Q879>=OAH:Q879AIA7I?J8A:RAI78I9CA>?H;<K>?JAJ8?K87CAH<;=<7I;CAI?KA8H:?:M>HAyR:7A8zIMN;8AP:7U879A:?AS:I7K9{TA|:?98B<8?=;OCADEFGGA8?JIJ89AH:MNI?>89A:?AS:I7KAK>Q879>=OAI?KAH:MN:9>=>:?AI9AIAMI==87A:RAH:<798A=:AP:7UA=:PI7KA>MN7:Q8KA[?I?H>I;A78=<7?9AIH7:99AM8MS87AN:7=R:;>:9T�r}tjuj~lfDEFGGA>9AIA;:?Jw9=I?K>?JAM8MS87A:RA=L8A�W�A|;<SAv?Q89=:7AY7:<NCAPL>HLAS8JI?AP>=LAIAR:H<9A:?AJ8?K87AK>Q879>=OAI?KALI9A?:PA8zNI?K8KA>=9AP:7UA=:A>?H;<K8A7IH>I;AK>Q879>=OA:?AS:I7K9TA�Q87A=>M8CA=L>9AJ7:<NALI9AI;9:A8zNI?K8KAR7:MAR:H<9>?JA:?A��AH:MNI?>89A=:A8?JIJ>?JAZOI?MI7CAI?KA=L8A�HH<N>8KAFI;89=>?>I?Ac877>=:7>89T0)./342+*1-.6DEFGGAI;9:A>99<8KAIAQ:=>?JAI;87=AR:7A_�FA8zN7899>?JAH:?H87?A=LI=A=L8AH:MNI?O@9A7L8=:7>HAI?KAN7IH=>H89A:?AH;>MI=8AI78A?:=AI;>J?8KAI?KA8zN7899>?JAH:?H87?9AIS:<=A=L8AH:7N:7I=8AH<;=<78A>?A789N8H=A:RAL<MI?A7>JL=9TA_�FA>9AH<778?=;OA=L8A9<S̀8H=A:RAN:=8?=>I;;OAH:9=;OA;>=>JI=>:?A>?A_7I�>;CA=L8A��CAI?KAE<9=7I;>IA>?A78;I=>:?A=:A>=9ARI>;>?J9A78;I=8KA=:A=L8A�IMI7H:A=I>;>?J9AKIMAH:;;IN98AI;:?8TADEFGGAH:?=>?<89A=:ALIQ8A987>:<9AH:?H87?9A=LI=A=L8AH:MNI?OA>9A?:=A=IU>?JAINN7:N7>I=8AIHH:<?=IS>;>=OAI?KA789N:?9>S>;>=OAR:7A>=9AL<MI?A7>JL=9AI?KA8?Q>7:?M8?=I;AN7IH=>H89CAI?KA=LI=A=L>9A:M>99>:?AH:<;KA;8IKA=:A;I7J8A[?I?H>I;A;:9989AR:7AS:=LA=L8AH:MNI?OAI?KA>?Q89=:79T�]6.2.-+36/./)32134+41513.6������kf�t�ftkfshf�hujf����f�gh�fkt�hj~f���fjei�ij�jeskftefgjrhietsthefh�fs}jfhujg���fpjs�jjefs}jkjfs}gjjf�gj�kftef��gk�teif�fq�ksfsg�ektsthe�f�}jgjf�gjfr�ggjes��fs�hf~j~tr�sj~f�hg�fksgj��kfrhujgteif�fq�ksfsg�ektsthefk�jrt�tr�����f��s}h�i}fs}jfr�t��sjf�e~f}���efgti}skf�hg�fp�f~j�tetsthef�~~gjkkjkfq�ksfsg�ektsthefshf�f~jigjj�f-/)2./3.)26�+-1�)*m1-2-16)*]./)3^>=L>?A=L8AB<I7=87ADEFGGA8zN;:78KA=L8A:N=>:?A:RA[;>?JAIÀ<9=A=7I?9>=>:?A9LI78L:;K87A789:;<=>:?AI=A�>:Ac>?=:@9AVWVXAEYZA78B<89=>?JA=L8AH:MNI?OA<?K87=IU8A>?K8N8?K8?=API=87A>MNIH=AI99899M8?=9AI=A>=9AM>?8A9>=89TAcL8AN7:N:98KA789:;<=>:?A9:<JL=A=:A8?9<78A=LI=A=L8AH:MNI?OAIK8B<I=8;OAI9989989A>=9A>MNIH=9A:?API=87A789:<7H89A9:A=LI=A>=AHI?AN7:N87;OA>K8?=>ROA:N87I=>:?I;CA78N<=I=>:?I;CA;8JI;CAI?KAH:?98B<8?=;OA[?I?H>I;A7>9U9A=:A=L8AS<9>?899AI?KA>?Q89=:79Tv?A=L8A8?KCADEFGGAK>KA?:=A[;8A=L8A789:;<=>:?TADEFGGA>9AH<778?=;OA>?AK>I;:J<8AP>=LA�>:Ac>?=:CAI?KA�>:Ac>?=:ALI9A>99<8KAIAPI=87A>MNIH=AI99899M8?=A>?A78;I=>:?A=:A>=9A�ZZA:N87I=>:?A>?AZIKIJI9HI7TAE;=L:<JLA=L8AH:MNI?OA>9A?:=AR<;;OAM88=>?JA=L8Av?Q89=:7AE;;>I?H8AR:7A�<MI?A�>JL=9CAS:=LA>?A78;I=>:?A=:A=L8A�OJL<7AY7:<NAI?KA>?A78;I=>:?A=:AH:?�>H=wI�8H=8KAI?KAL>JLw7>9UAI78I9Ay|E��E{TA��� ¡¢£¤¥¦§§̈©�ª ¥«£¤¥¬®©�¥¯̈°±¢¡¥²¥³± ¥¬£® ¥́ µ£¢¥��ªopqjrstujlfE9AIANI7=A:RA=L8Av?Q89=:7AE;;>I?H8AR:7A�<MI?A�>JL=9@A�OJL<7A:̂7U>?JAY7:<NCADEFGGA;8KA:?AI?A8?JIJ8M8?=AP>=LAcL8A�:M8Ax8N:=CAPL>HLAPI9A>MN;>HI=8KA>?AI;;8JI=>:?9A:RA�OJL<7AR:7H8KA;IS:<7A>?A>=9A;<z<7OAQ>?O;A=>;8AyD¶c{A�::7>?JA9<NN;OAHLI>?9CAP>=LAF¶|AK87>Q8KAR7:MA·>?̀>I?JTADEFGGA9:<JL=A=:A<?K879=I?KAL:PA�:M8Ax8N:=A789N:?K8KA=:A=L898AI;;8JI=>:?9CAI?KAL:PA=L8AH:MNI?OALI9A<?K87=IU8?AP:7UA=:A8;>M>?I=8AR:7H8KA;IS:<7A7>9U9AI?KAH:MN;OAP>=LAL<MI?A7>JL=9A9=I?KI7K9T�r}tjuj~lfDEFGGCAI;:?J9>K8A:=L87A>?Q89=:79CAM8=AP>=LA�:M8Ax8N:=AR:7AIA98H:?KA=>M8AR:;;:P>?JA78N:7=9A>?AE<J<9=A=LI=A9L>NM8?=9A:RAD¶cAR7:MAE9>IAP878AS8>?JAS;:HU8KASOA��A|<9=:M9CA>?H;<K>?JA=L:98AK89=>?8KAR:7A�:M8Ax8N:=TAx<7>?JA=L8AHI;;CADEFGGA9:<JL=AI?9P879A:?APLI=A=L8AH:MNI?OAPI9AK:>?JA=:A8?9<78A=LI=A>=9AH:MNI?OA9<NN;OAHLI>?API9AR788A:RAR:7H8KA;IS:<7CAN:=8?=>I;A>MN;>HI=>:?9A:RAS>R<7HI=>:?A:RA9<NN;OAHLI>?9CAI?KAPLI=A?8PAM8=L:K9A�:M8Ax8N:=API9A>MN;8M8?=>?JA=:ALIQ8A9<̧ H>8?=AI<K>=AN7:H8K<789A>?AN;IH8Tdef�ghigjkklfDEFGGAP>;;AH:?=>?<8A=:AM:?>=:7A=L8AH:MNI?O@9AINN7:IHLA=:AJ;:SI;AL<MI?A7>JL=9AK<8AK>;>J8?H8AI?KA988UAR<7=L87A8?JIJ8M8?=A>?AK<8AH:<798AR:7A<NKI=89A:?A=L8A>99<8CAP>=LAIAR:H<9A:?A=L8AH:MNI?O@9A>MN;8M8?=I=>:?A:RA8?LI?H8KAI<K>=AN7:H8K<789T(+�-+2¹/*).2¹-)�1(.DEFGGAPI9A>?Q>=8KA=:À:>?AvE��@9A|E��EAN>;:=AN7:̀8H=TAcL8AN7:̀8H=ALI9AS88?A>?>=>I=8KA>?ANI7=AS8HI<98A:RA=L8A89HI;I=>:?A:RAH:?�>H=9AJ;:SI;;OCA>?H;<K>?JA>?A�U7I>?8CAaIJ:7?:A�I7ISIULCAI?KAv97I8;AI?KAYI�ICAPL>HLA78>J?>=8KA=L>9AB<I7=87TADEFGGALIKAI;78IKOAS88?AI==8?K>?JAIA?<MS87A:RAvE��AP8S>?I79A:?A=L>9A=:N>HA=:A<?K879=I?KAS8==87AL:PA=:A8?JIJ8AH:MNI?>89A:?A|E��EA>99<89CA9:A=L8A:NN:7=<?>=OA=:ANI7=>H>NI=8A>?A=L>9AN>;:=A>9AP8;H:M8CA89N8H>I;;OAJ>Q8?ADEFGG@9A8?JIJ8M8?=9AP>=LAH:MNI?>89A:N87I=>?JA>?A�<99>ICA
Page 47

Agenda Item 8



������������	
��
�����	�������
���
����������
����������
����� ��� !!"#$%&"#'()**+,)-+./012134+41513.6 789:;<=>?@<A@B<>C8D@E8>F<=9GHIJJKLMNOPQRMQLMPMSTSUTRMVWMXOTMYPLZWVRNTMV[M\VNQP]MJPNXVRL̂M_OQNOM_PLMTLXPU]QLOT̀MUaMXOTMbcIM_QXOMNRVLLdT̀ePRXST[XP]MP[̀MSf]XQdRTgf]PXVRMQ[hV]hTST[XiMYOTMXPLZWVRNTM_PLMTLXPU]QLOT̀MXVMVfX]Q[TMOV_MXRfLXTTLMNVf]̀MP[̀MLOVf]̀MP̀ R̀TLLMLVNQP]MRQLZLMP[̀MVeeVRXf[QXQTLiM\eTNQjNP]]âMXOTMgRVfeMOPLM]VVZT̀MPXMXOTMSPXTRQP]QXaMVWMLfNOMQLLfTL̂M̀PXPMV[MLVNQP]MWPNXVRL̂MP[̀MXOTMPNXQV[LMeT[LQV[LMWf[̀LMNP[MXPZTiMbfRQ[gMXOTMkfPRXTR̂MXOTMgRVfeKLMQ[QXQP]Mj[̀Q[gLM_TRTMefU]QLOT̀MWVRMNV[Lf]XPXQV[iMcQXOQ[MXOTMRTeVRXMPMLTRQTLMVWMRTNVSST[̀PXQV[LM_TRTMLTXMVfXMXVMeT[LQV[MXRfLXTTL̂MXOTMQ[hTLXST[XMQ[̀fLXRâMRTgf]PXVRL̂MgVhTR[ST[X̂MNQhQ]MLVNQTXaMP[̀MUfLQ[TLLTLi51l/+2()01-+412�m��nopqrstuv��m���pquwtxyz�{��m��nopqrstu
tt|�}~}v�	����xwto�r�yq�ts�qu��opqrstur��xww��tu��w�|xsq�ptsq�xs������q|�ss�o���t|�xo�qr���
tt|�}~}n��v�nopqrstur��txw�s�to��uqxsqr��wxs�tu|�st�rsuqo�s�qo���|xo�u���sr�rsq�xuyr�������q�r���n����q��t�osv��wt�xw��qur�q�s�pqv��r��m���x��o��w���rqup��q�st���|xo�u���sr������q��t�os��m���q�r�op�uto|qosxw���oxo�qv���	��	�����xww��tu��w�|xsq�ptsqr�xs�������q|�ss�o���rq�stur�qor�tor���nopqrs|qosrv�������opqrstur�s�uo����s�q��qxs�to��txuyr��tu��w�|xsq�suxor�s�to��wxorm�rsx�ox�wq���|qrv�nopqrstur��xox��o���}����u�ww�to�
xww���tu��w�|xsq�msuxsq����tsqr�xs����t|�o����m���~��	��rn��v�nopqrstu��ut����xwwr��tu��w�|xsq�ptsq�xs������q|�ss�o���t|�xo�qr�qs��qut��opqrstuv��}��suo��opqrstur��xww��tu��w�|xsq�ptsq�xs������q|�ss�o���t|�xo�qr��oyr����ut�q��t|v�nopqrstur�rqq���w�|xsq�ptsqr�xs������u�r����u|r�qor�tor�	�q��x�x��oqv��nopqrstu��ut����xwwr��tu��w�|xsq�ptsq�xs�������xu�to�q|�ss�o����m���~����u|r��q����t���v��t�o��w��qor�to���oyr��xww��tu��w�|xsq�ptsqt�xw�tp��t���v��t�o��w��qor�to���oyr��xww��tu��w�|xsq�ptsqnopqrs|qos��qq�v��nopqrstur�tpqurqq�o���}��so��o�xrrqsr��xww��tu�	���ptsqr�to��w�|xsq�suxor�s�to��wxorXVM\XP[]TaMPXMXOTMXQSTMVWMQ[hTLXQgPXQV[iMYOTMNVSeP[aMLXPXT̀MQXMOPLMLXRT[gXOT[T̀MXOTQRMUVPR̀MRTNRfQXST[XMeRPNXQNTLMP[̀MRTSPQ[T̀MhQgQ]P[XiM�V_ThTR̂MGHIJJM_Q]]MUTMSV[QXVRQ[gMXOTMgVhTR[P[NTMgVQ[gMWVR_PR̀iM�VRTM_Q̀T]âMGHIJJMRTkfTLXT̀MP[MfèPXTMVWM�PRN]PaLKLMN]QSPXTMeV]QNaMP[̀MOPhTMPRRP[gT̀MXVMOPhTMPMLeTNQjNMSTTXQ[gMV[MXOQLMXVeQNMLTePRPXT]ai����� ¡�¢££¤MJV]]V_Q[gMXOTMRTNT[XMUVPR̀MNOP[gTLMTPR]QTRMXOQLMaTPRMPXM�PRN]PaL̂MQ[N]f̀Q[gMXOTMPeeVQ[XST[XMVWM[T_MT¥TNfXQhTL̂MGHIJJM_Q]]MNV[XQ[fTMXVM_PXNOMXOTMNVReVRPXTMgVhTR[P[NTM[VSQ[PXQV[LMP[̀MLfNNTLLQV[Me]P[LMVWMXOTMNVSeP[aMUVPR̀iMGHIJJMSPQ[XPQ[LMPMNVR̀QP]MQ̀P]VgfTM_QXOMXOTMNOPQRMP[̀MPQSLMXVMNV[XQ[fTMT[gPgQ[gMV[MXOQLMXVeQNi¦§,*/(2̈1+*.̈2134+41513.2E©ª««@ªACFC8FC¬?9@«?9F8®=8AF@©AFC̄C<FC>9@°A±8±?²?AF@³@«?9F8®=8AF@́=8Aµ9@ªAF?=A8FC<A8D@¶«́ ª·¹̧º¢»¼½¾¢¤MJH¿ÀÀKLMÀTLXPfRP[XMH[XQUQVXQNLMT[gPgTST[XMWVNfLTLMV[MRT̀fNQ[gMXOTMfLTMVWMP[XQUQVXQNLMQ[MeRVXTQ[MLfee]aMNOPQ[LiMYOQLMQ[QXQPXQhTMQ[hV]hTLMNVSeP[QTLM_QXOQ[MXOTMWPLXdWVV̀MP[̀MNPLfP]M̀Q[Q[gMLTNXVR̂M_QXOMXOTMPQSMVWMSQXQgPXQ[gMXOTMRQLZLMPLLVNQPXT̀M_QXOMP[XQUQVXQNMRTLQLXP[NTM̀fTMXVMXOTMVhTRfLTMVWMP[XQUQVXQNLMQ[M]QhTLXVNZiMYOTMVUÁTNXQhTMQLMXVMLPWTgfPR̀MefU]QNMOTP]XOi�»Â½¢¾¢Ã¤�GHIJJMÁVQ[T̀MPMNP]]M_QXOMJH¿ÀÀMP[̀MVXOTRMQ[hTLXVRLM_QXOMÀTLXPfRP[XM�RP[̀LM¿[XTR[PXQV[P]MÄÀ�¿ÅiMHLMPMjRLXMNP]]M_QXOMXOTMNVSeP[âMQ[hTLXVRLMLOPRT̀MZTaMPLZLMVWMXOTMT[gPgTST[XMP[̀MefLOT̀MWVRMT[OP[NT̀MXRP[LePRT[NaMV[MXOTMNVSeP[aKLMTÆVRXLMXVMRT̀fNTMP[XQUQVXQNLMQ[MQXLMLfee]aMNOPQ[iMM����� ¡�¢££¤�GHIJJMLQg[T̀MV[XVMPMLTRQTLMVWM]TXXTRLMLT[XMUaMJH¿ÀÀMP[̀M_Q]]MLTTZMXVMÁVQ[MSTTXQ[gLMPLMPeeRVeRQPXTM_OT[MXOTaMUTNVSTMPhPQ]PU]TiMGHIJJMQLMP]LVMOVeQ[gMXVMNV[XQ[fTMLfeeVRXQ[gMT[gPgTST[XM_QXOMÀ�¿MPLMXOTM̀QP]VgfTM̀ThT]VeLiNVSeP[QTLMQ[MVXOTRMNVf[XRQTLiMYOTM]PXTLXMRVf[̀MVWMT[gPgTST[XLMOPLMUTT[M_QXOMPMRP[gTMVWMHLQP[MNVSeP[QTL̂MQ[N]f̀Q[gMÇÇÀMÈMÉVMP[̀M\OQ[OP[MJQ[P[NQP]MÊRVfeiGHIJJMP]LVMkfTLXQV[T̀MÊ]T[NVRTMV[MQXLMUVPR̀MNVSeVLQXQV[MXOQLMkfPRXTRiMYOTMNVSeP[aMOPLMPMLSP]]MUVPR̀MNVSePRT̀MXVMQXLMeTTRLMQ[MXOTMSQ[Q[gMLTNXVR̂MP[̀MGHIJJM_V[̀TRT̀MQWMQXLMLSP]]MLQËTMP]]V_T̀MWVRMT[VfgOM̀QhTRLQXaMVWMhQT_LiMH]XOVfgOMXORTTMVWMXOTMTQgOXMUVPR̀MSTSUTRLMPRTMWTSP]T̂MGHIJJMQLMP]LVM]VVZQ[ĝMWVRMT¥PSe]T̂MWVRMUVPR̀MSTSUTRLM_QXOMUPNZgRVf[̀LMQ[MN]QSPXTMNOP[gTMP[̀MOfSP[MRQgOXLM_OVMPRTMLfÌNQT[X]aMQ[̀TeT[̀T[XMXVMNOP]]T[gTMXOTMUVPR̀MV[MQXLMN]QSPXT̂MOfSP[MRQgOXL̂MP[̀MQ[XTR[P]MNV[XRV]LMLaLXTSL̂MTLeTNQP]]aMgQhT[MXOTMNVRRfeXQV[MNOP]]T[gTLMXOTMNVSeP[aMQLMNV[XQ[fQ[gMXVMWPNTi����� ¡�¢££¤��VPR̀M̀QhTRLQXaMQLMPMNV[XQ[fQ[gM_VRZLXRTPSMWVRMGHIJĴMPLMQXMefLOTLMNVSeP[QTLMXVMSVhTMWRVSMSTRT]aMPeeVQ[XQ[gMNTRXPQ[M[fSUTRLMVWM̀QhTRLTMUVPR̀MSTSUTRLMXVMXRf]aMNV[LQ̀TRQ[gMP[̀MQ[XTgRPXQ[gMXOTQRMhQT_LMQ[XVMNVSeP[aMLXRPXTgaMP[̀MeRPNXQNTiMYOQLMVUÁTNXQhTMRT]QTLMV[MNf]XfRP]MNOP[gTM_OQNOMXPZTLMPM]V[gMXQSTMXVMPNOQThTMLVMQLMLVSTXOQ[gMPXM_OQNOMGHIJJMNOQeLMP_PaMTPNOMkfPRXTRMV[MQ̀ÆTRT[XMWRV[XLiMGHIJJMOPLMP]LVMLTNfRT̀MPMSTTXQ[gM_QXOMÇÇÀMÈMÉVMWVRMÍÎMVRMÏÐÏÑMXVMQ̀LNfLLM̀QhTRLQXaMXPRgTXLi4)01-3+3(12134+41513.228́=>D8Ò9¹̧º¢»¼½¾¢¤M¿[MÓNXVUTR̂MWVRSTRM�PRN]PaLMT¥TNfXQhTMÔTLM\XP]TaM_PLMUP[[T̀MUaMXOTMJÉHMWRVSMOV]̀Q[gMLT[QVRMeVLQXQV[LMQ[Mj[P[NQP]MLTRhQNTLMP[̀MNOPRgT̀M_QXOMPMÕÎiÖSMj[TMWVRMP]]TgT̀]aMSQL]TP̀Q[gMXOTM_PXNÒVgMPUVfXMOQLMePLXMRT]PXQV[LOQeM_QXOMNV[hQNXT̀MLT¥MVÆT[̀TRMÔTÆRTaM×eLXTQ[iM¿[MXfR[̂MGHIJJMWT]XMQXMQSeTRPXQhTMXVMT[gPgTM_QXOM�PRN]PaLMXVM̀QLNfLLM]TPR[Q[gLMWRVSMXOQLMXfSf]XfVfLMTeQLV̀TMP[̀MLVfgOXMXVMLTTMPNXQV[LMXOTMUP[ZMOP̀MXPZT[MXVMLXRT[gXOT[MNVReVRPXTMgVhTR[P[NTMPXMUVXOMUVPR̀MP[̀MSP[PgTST[XM]ThT]i�»Â½¢¾¢Ã¤�GHIJJMSTXM_QXOMXOTMÉOPQRMVWM�PRN]PaL̂MØQgT]M�QggQ[L̂MPXMXOTMT[̀MVWMÓNXVUTRiMYOTMÉOPQRMVeT[]aM̀QLNfLLT̀MXOTMThT[XMP[̀MPNXQV[LMXOTMUP[ZMOP̀MXPZT[̂MQ[N]f̀Q[gMWRTTËQ[gM̀TWTRRT̀MUV[fLTLM
Page 48

Agenda Item 8



������������	
��������
�������������������������������� �� !""#$%&'#$()*+,-./0,1*21344013,*1566�789:;<=>?�@>A>�><B;B>C�8D>A�EF>�GH;AE>AIJKLMNOPQROSTUV �WXYZYXPV [KMYWV \]XWKLT�89:;<̂_̀<C>a� 
7E=D=Ê� �8:=7� �HE789>
̀
����	������ �>>E=<B� <D=A8<9><E;b��=?c� �=;b8BH>
d�����
��̀���
����
�����
��e���̀��d������>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>
f̀f
����� �>>E=<B� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>
g
� �>>E=<B� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �8C>A;E>�̀9:A8D>9><E�
�d�d��d����� �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>�
hh
f������	������ �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>�
���
�d��
�h����� �>>E=<B� �8D>A<;<7>�i�><>A;bj� �=;b8BH>�
���
�d����� �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>������� �>>E=<B� �8D>A<;<7>�i�><>A;bj� �=;b8BH>���
�̀������ �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>�è������g̀�
����̀���̀��� �>>E=<B� <D=A8<9><E;b��=?c� �F;<B>�=<��A87>??��e����� �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>
d�k������ �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>���
������ �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>gg������̀��������
�̀��� d><E��8AA>?:8<C><7>� d87=;b��=?c� 
@;=E=<B��>?:8<?>l��������������
��� �>>E=<B� dH::b̂��F;=<��;<;B>9><E� �=;b8BH>l�d�̀�������� �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>����������� �>>E=<B� �8;AC��89:8?=E=8<� �=;b8BH>e
���	����������� �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>ed���e���̀��d����� �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>�̀���
�̀��
���̀d��̀�	�̀��d�d�f̀�d����� d><E��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �8D>A<;<7>�i�><>A;bj� 
@;=E=<B��>?:8<?>k�e��m�������	������ �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>hh��n����̀��� �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �=D>A?=Ê�GH=Ê�;<C�̀<7bH?=8<� d9;bb�̀9:A8D>9><E��
��n����
�����	������ �>>E=<B� <D=A8<9><E;b��=?c� �=;b8BH>�����d��
�h̀������	������ �>>E=<B� <D=A8<9><E;b��=?c� d9;bb�̀9:A8D>9><E����do��p����	��
�� �>>E=<B� eH9;<��=BFE?� d9;bb�̀9:A8D>9><E�
�̀��
����̀���
d����� �>>E=<B� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>�
�md�����	������ �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>�d���d
� �>>E=<B� <D=A8<9><E;b��=?c� �F;<B>�=<��A87>??��d̀��������� �>>E=<B� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>�̀���
��̀�d	�
������	�� �>>E=<B� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �F;<B>�=<��A87>??��	���̀
������ �>>E=<B� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �F;<B>�=<��A87>??��
	���d
� �>>E=<B� dH::b̂��F;=<��;<;B>9><E� �8C>A;E>�̀9:A8D>9><E�d�
	�
�����
��d�̀����
�̀��
��̀��� �>>E=<B� dH::b̂��F;=<��;<;B>9><E� �=;b8BH>�̀���̀�������� �>>E=<B� <D=A8<9><E;b��=?c� �8�̀9:A8D>9><E����do�����e���̀��d����� �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>d
��l̀� �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� <D=A8<9><E;b��=?c� dHq?E;<E=;b�̀9:A8D>9><Ed
��d� �>>E=<B� eH9;<��=BFE?� �=;b8BH>de������� �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>d�
��
����e
��������� �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>�e�e��������̀��� �>>E=<B� dH::b̂��F;=<��;<;B>9><E� �8C>A;E>�̀9:A8D>9><E�e��kg�����
�̀d�̀��I� �>>E=<B� <D=A8<9><E;b��=?c� d9;bb�̀9:A8D>9><E�̀�l�	̀��d�d��d����� �>7>=D>C��8AA>?:8<C><7>� �b=9;E>��F;<B>� �=;b8BH>f
��d
� �>>E=<B� eH9;<��=BFE?� �=;b8BH>
Page 49

Agenda Item 8



�������������	
��
�����	�������
���
����������
����������
����� ��� !!"#$%&"#'()*+*(,()-./+-+0 1 20 21 30 31 4056789:;<5=9>?;@>A7BC>8;>:96<D7EFGHII6J<5=97><K9>9?;8;>:LH89><D7?=:EMCA;B>9>N;<OM;>;B96PQ7A;BE7:J<@RH7:J<9>S<T>N6HE7C>GCN796<D7EFUC9BS<5C8ICE7:7C>VWX�XVYVWZ[Z\�]̂_YVVZ]WX[VWX�XVYVWZ[\̀ Ẑ\YV_�̂Z]a]Zb�\_]Z]\W[VWX�XVc\̂Y��Wb[c\Y]̂]�V_[[ d e fd fe gd gehiijklmnioikpiqrstuuivwtlqiloixiljrstuuivwtlqiloiy z {y {z |y |z }y }z ~y��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� � �� �� �� ��  �¡¢£¤¥¦§£¦¢£¦©̈¤ª£«¬¦®̄ ¡¬®¦¤¥°©±¬®© ² ³ ²́ ³́ µ² µ³ ¶² ¶³·̧¹º»¼½»¾¿À·¿¼ÁÁÂÃ¼»Ä̧¹Ä¾ÅÆ
Page 50

Agenda Item 8



������������	
��������
�������������������������������� �� !""#$%&'#$()*+,+)-)*./0,., 123456276829:6;<123456276829:6;=123456276829:6;>123456276829:6;?123456276829:6;;123456276829:6;@123456276829:6A123456276829:6B123456276829:6�����CDEFCGHF�FGIGHJD CK���LM��N��NOPQRS� �K����M�TPQN�UVWXPQ� �K����M��NNY�UPZ[R\�ZWY�]P[[̂�P_WX� `K���̀M��VZ[_RS�YVaZR_NW� `K���bM��PWYPQ�cVZ[_RS� �K���dM��[PZW�]ZRPQ�ZWY�KZW_RZR_NW� �K���eM�
ffNQYZg[P�ZWY��[PZW�WPQXS� LK���hM��PaPWR�]NQi�ZWY�aNWNj_a��QNkR\� dK���lM�mWYVnRQSo�mWWNOZR_NWo�ZWY�mWfQZnRQVaRVQP� bK���L�M��PYVaPY�mWPcVZ[_R_Pn� eK���LLM�KVnRZ_WZg[P��_R_Pn�ZWY��NjjVW_R_Pn� bK��L�M��PnpNWn_g[P��QNYVaR_NW�ZWY��NWnVjpR_NW� L�K���L�M��[_jZRP�
aR_NW� �LK���L̀M��_fP��P[Nk�]ZRPQ� bK���LbM��_fP�NW��ZWY� L�K���LdM��PZaPo�qVnR_aPo�ZWY�KRQNWX�mWnR_RVR_NWn� LK���LeM�KRQPWXR\PW�R\P��PZWn�Nf�mjp[PjPWRZR_NW�ZWY��PO_RZ[_nP�R\P���[NgZ[��ZQRWPQn\_p�fNQ�KVnRZ_WZg[P��POP[NpjPWR�� � ����������rst�urst�vw rst�xrst�vy rst�wrst�vu rst�zrst�{rst�v|rst�vv rst�}rst�vz rst�~rst�yrst�v}
Page 51

Agenda Item 8



������������	
��������
�������������������������������� �� !""#$%&'#$(
)*+��,+-.*+�/0+1�234.+5�2+1��25,+627��,+-.*+�/0+1�23+,8��,+-.*+�/0+1�,19*31-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1��,34-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1�,:;,<�=�*+1*+��*3*056�*9>�27?3.15,-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1�271,+��,+-.*+�/0+1�231.99�@��;27*352+��,+-.*+�/0+1�6,-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1�.8<�*9��*+1*+��*3A*328.*+��,+-.*+�/0+1�;B<1��,+-.*+�/0+1�=/;.+8-6.3,���>�*3+B2;;��,+-.*+�/0+1��3*<1*+��,+-.*+�/0+1�07?3.2��,+-.*+�/0+1�,3?<-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1�,)*+��,+-.*+�/0+1�*3-,8��,+-.*+�/0+1��03627��,+-.*+�/0+1�<9,1��,+-.*+�/0+12;.+5��,+-.*+�/0+12-8��.1.+5��,+-.*+�/0+12-8�C0--,:��,+-.*+�/0+1 +9.,;1��,+-.*+�/0+1+).3*+7,+8�
5,+D<��,+-.*+�/0+1--,:��,+-.*+�/0+1/2;4.34��,+-.*+�/0+1�;*0D,-8,3-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1�3,28,3��B,+8��,+-.*+�/0+1�3,28,3��2+D6,-8,3��,+-.*+�/0+1�3,,+B.D6��,+-.*+�/0+1��B<+,11��,+-.*+�/0+1E2D4+,<��,+-.*+�/0+1E277,3-7.86�2+1�/0;627��,+-.*+�/0+1E23.+5,<��,+-.*+�/0+1E233*B��,+-.*+�/0+1E2),3.+5��,+-.*+�/0+1�E,389*31-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1E*0+-;*B��,+-.*+�/0+1F-;.+58*+��,+-.*+�/0+1G.+5-8*+�0A*+��627,-��,+-.*+�/0+1�27?,86��,+-.*+�/0+1�2+D2-6.3,��*0+8<��,+-.*+�/0+1�,.D,-8,3-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1��,B.-627��,+-.*+�/0+1�.+D*;+-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1 �*+1*+��,+-.*+�/0+1�
086*3.8<�*86.2+��,+-.*+�/0+1��,3-,<-.1,��,+-.*+�/0+1�,38*+��,+-.*+�/0+1�,B627��,+-.*+�/0+1��*39*;4��,+-.*+�/0+1�*386�2-8�CD*8;2+1��,+-.*+�/0+1�*386��*34-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1�*38627A8*+-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1�*88.+5627-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1�:9*31-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1��*B<-��,+-.*+�/0+1�,1?3.15,��,+-.*+�/0+1�6*+112��<+*+��29��,+-.*+�/0+1C63*A-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1C*7,3-,8��,+-.*+�/0+1C*086��*34-6.3,��,+-.*+�
086*3.8<C*086B234��,+-.*+�/0+1C8299*31-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1C83286D;<1,��,+-.*+�/0+1�C099*;4��,+-.*+�/0+1C033,<��,+-.*+�/0+1C088*+��,+-.*+�/0+1 CB2+-,2��,+-.*+�/0+1�,,--.1,��,+-.*+�/0+1�*B,3�E27;,8-��,+-.*+�/0+1�<+,�2+1�H,23��,+-.*+�/0+1H2;8627�/*3,-8��,+-.*+�/0+1H2+1-B*386��*3*056��*0+D.;��,+-.*+�/0+1H23B.D4-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1H,-8��.1;2+1-��,+-.*+�/0+1H,-8��*34-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1H,-87.+-8,3��,+-.*+�/0+1H.;8-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1H*3D,-8,3-6.3,��,+-.*+�/0+1I�JJKILJMNOPQIRSMTSUV
��CC��**;�*31,3�8*��*2-8��,+-.*+-��238+,3-6.A���C��,+832;�*D2;��,+-.*+-��238+,3-6.A�*+1*+��FW�*386,3+����CH2;,-��,+-.*+��238+,3-6.AXYZ[X\[]̂_Ỳ âb\cdefaYe\g]eh\gỲ ]i\idijd̀f
Page 52

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

DF/24/26 
Investment and Pension Fund Committee  
1 March 2024 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2024-25 

Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value  

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  

 

1) Recommendation 

 
That the Committee be asked to adopt the Treasury Management Strategy for 2024/25 as 
set out in Appendix 1. 
 
 

2) Introduction 

 
2.1 In December 2021, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

(CIPFA) published a revised Code of Practice for Treasury Management and a 
revised Prudential Code. As a result, the Committee adopted the revised Devon 
County Council Treasury Management Policy and Practices as the overarching 
framework for the treasury management of the Pension Fund’s cash allocation. No 
changes are proposed to these policies for 2024/25. 
 

2.2 The policy requires the Investment and Pension Fund Committee to consider a 
treasury strategy report for the management of the Fund’s cash allocation, setting 
out the strategy and plans to be followed in the coming year.  

 
 

3) Treasury Management Strategy 

 
3.1 The Treasury Management and Investment Strategy is shown in draft at Appendix 1. 

It sets out the current treasury position, cash investments, prospects for interest 
rates and the investment strategy. 

 
3.2 The strategy is broadly consistent to that agreed for 2023/24 and is purely in relation 

to the management of cash, not the rest of the Fund’s investments. Pension Fund 
cash balances are generally kept at a low level with the main purpose being to 
provide the required level of liquidity. However, given that rates of over 5% can now 
be achieved on cash investments, the Committee has agreed that higher levels of 
cash, up to 4% of the Fund, can be held pending the drawdown of private market 
commitments. 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



 

 
 

4) Conclusion 

 
4.1 The Committee is asked to approve the adoption of the Treasury Management 

Strategy for 2024/25. 
 
 
Angie Sinclair 
Director of Finance and Public Value 
 
Electoral Divisions: All  
 

Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers 

Nil 
 
Contact for enquiries: 
Name: Mark Gayler  
Telephone: 01392 383621 
Address: Room 196 County Hall 

Page 54

Agenda Item 9



 
Appendix 1 

 

Treasury Management Strategy 2024/25 

Introduction 

The Treasury Management Strategy sets out the Devon County Council Pension 
Fund’s policies in relation to the management of the Fund’s cashflows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions and investment strategies. 

The Pension Fund has adopted the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy) Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services. A 
revised Code of Practice was published by CIPFA in December 2021. As a 
consequence, a revised Treasury Management Policy Statement and a statement of 
‘Treasury Management Practices’ (TMPs) consistent with those for Devon County 
Council were approved by the Investment and Pension Fund Committee in February 
2022 as the overarching policy framework for the management of the Pension Fund’s 
cash allocation. No changes are proposed for these policies for 2024/25. 

This Treasury Management Strategy document sets out: 

 The current treasury position, debt and investments; 

 Prospects for interest rates; and 

 The investment strategy. 

 

Schedule of Investments 

The following schedule shows the Pension Fund’s fixed and variable rate 
investments as at 31 March 2023 and as at 31 December 2023 (current). 

Table A – Schedule of Investments 

 
 

Actual 

31.03.23

Interest     

Rate

Current 

31.12.23

Interest 

Rate

£'m % £'m %

GBP Deposits

Fixed Rates 

Term Deposits < 365 days 15.00 4.22 125.00 5.62

365 days & > 0.00

Variable Rate

Call Accounts 0.00 1.39 5.15

Money Market Funds (MMFs) 44.70 4.08 37.77 5.32

All GBP Investments 59.70 4.12 164.16 5.55

USD Deposits $'m % $'m %

Variable Rate

Money Market Funds (MMFs) 1.10 4.91 1.67 5.44

All USD Investments 1.10 4.91 1.67 5.44

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



 
Appendix 1 

 

The Pension Fund’s cash balance is generally kept at a low level sufficient to support 
cashflow, to ensure that pension payments are met and to fund investment 
commitments when required. The Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement has a target 
1% allocation in cash to meet these requirements. However, with interest rates now 
at over 5%, additional cash may be held up to 4% of the Fund as a low-risk 
investment pending the drawdown of that cash for private market investments. The 
remainder of the Pension Fund’s investments are allocated to other asset classes 
beyond the scope of this treasury management strategy. 

The recent investment performance of the Pension Fund’s cash has improved as a 
result of rising interest rates, as the Bank of England has sought to contain inflation. 
The Bank of England continued to raise the base rate during 2023, taking it up to 
5.25%, the highest level for 15 years. This has had an impact on the rates available 
for investment, which have gradually increased over the last two years.  

Prospects for Interest Rates 

Forecasting future interest rate movements even one year ahead is always difficult, 
and the current economic environment and recent volatility in rates has exacerbated 
this. The factors affecting interest rate movements are clearly outside the Council’s 
control. Whilst short term rates are influenced by the Bank of England’s Base Rate, 
long term rates are determined by other factors, e.g. the market in Gilts. Rates from 
overseas banks will be influenced by their national economic circumstances. The 
County Council retains an external advisor, Link Asset Services, who forecast future 
rates several years forward. Similar information is received from a number of other 
sources. 

Having taken interest rates to their highest level in 15 years in August 2023, the Bank 
of England's Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) kept Bank Rate unchanged for a 
third consecutive time at its December meeting. With the market anticipating cuts in 
rates during 2024, the MPC concluded that was too early to conclude that services 
inflation or pay growth were firmly on a downward path.  

Nevertheless, current market expectations, following this meeting and the previously 
released weaker than anticipated employment and growth figures, are for an initial 
cut in interest rates in early Summer 2024, followed by further cuts in rates during the 
Autumn. 

The following table outlines current expectations for movements in the Bank of 
England’s base rate. 

 

Table B – Base Rate Forecasts 
 

 

 

Dec (act) March    June     Sep     Dec March

Base Rate 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2025

Capita 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.00% 4.50% 4.00%

Capital Economics 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 4.75% 4.25%

Page 56

Agenda Item 9



 
Appendix 1 

 

Investment Strategy 2024/25 – 2026/27 

The Devon Pension Fund continues to adopt a very prudent approach to 
counterparties to whom the Fund is willing to lend. As a result, only a small number 
of selected UK banks and building societies, money market funds and overseas 
banks in highly rated countries are being used, subject to strict criteria and the 
prudent management of deposits with them. The lending policy is kept under 
constant review with reference to strict criteria for inclusion in the counterparty list. 

The Treasury Management Strategy will continue to be set to ensure a prudent and 
secure approach.  

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee is required under the guidance in the 
CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice to approve an Annual Investment 
Strategy. 

The overall aims of the Pension Fund’s strategy continue to be to:  

 Limit the risk to the loss of capital (security); 

 Ensure that funds are always available to meet cash flow requirements (liquidity); 

 Maximise investment returns (yield), consistent with the first two aims; and 

 Review new investment instruments as they come to the Local Authority market, 
and to assess whether they could be a useful part of our investment process. 

The overriding objective will be to invest prudently, with priority being given to 
security and liquidity before yield. 

Under the Markets in Financial Instruments (MiFID II) directive, local authorities are 
now classed as retail clients by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). This has 
implications for the range of investments that are available to local authorities. While 
bank and building society deposits are unaffected by the regulations, some banks 
have determined that they will only take term deposits from professional clients, and 
a range of alternative forms of investments are only available to professional clients. 
However, if the local authority meets criteria set by the FCA, then it can apply to the 
financial institutions with which it wishes to invest to request that the institution 
concerned “opts up” the local authority to elective professional client status. The 
Pension Fund has made applications and been opted up to elective professional 
client status where required. 

Those counterparties who have confirmed that they will treat the Pension Fund as a 
professional client under the MiFID II regulations are set out in Table C below. 

Table C – Counterparties that have “opted up” the Council to elective 
professional client status 

Counterparty Counterparty Type

Blackrock Money Market Fund

Aberdeen Standard Money Market Fund

Insight Money Market Fund  

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



 
Appendix 1 

 

In addition, brokers Tradition, Tullett Prebon and Imperial Treasury, and our treasury 
advisors, Link Group, have opted up the Council and Pension Fund to professional 
client status. The majority of bank and building society deposits are unaffected by the 
MiFID II regulations. This list only includes those counterparties relevant to the 
Pension Fund’s treasury management strategy and the management of cash. The 
Pension Fund has also opted up to elective professional client status with the 
external investment managers it uses as part of its wider investment strategy. 

Subject to the MiFID II regulations, a variety of investment instruments are available 
to the Local Authority market. In addition to the notice accounts and fixed term 
deposits available from UK and overseas banks, it is also possible for the Pension 
Fund to invest through its treasury management strategy, for example, in UK 
Government Gilts, bond funds and property funds. These alternative instruments 
would either require the Pension Fund to tie up its cash for significantly longer 
periods, thus reducing liquidity, or would carry a risk of loss of capital if markets go 
down.  

The Pension Fund has considered these alternatives but, given the wider 
investments of the Fund and the need for liquidity with respect to the Fund’s cash, 
has concluded that these less liquid forms of investment should not form part of the 
Fund’s treasury management strategy. 

Security is achieved by the creation of an ‘Approved List of Counterparties’. These 
are the banks, building societies, money market funds and other public bodies with 
whom we are prepared to deposit funds. In preparing the list, a number of criteria will 
be used not only to determine who is on the list, but also to set limits as to how much 
money can be placed with them, and how long that money can be placed for. 

Banks are expected to have a high credit rating. The Council uses the ratings issued 
by all three of the major credit rating agencies, Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & 
Poor’s, made available to the Council through its external Treasury Advisors. These 
are monitored daily.  

The lowest rating published by any of the agencies is used to decide whether an 
institution is eligible for inclusion. Where the counterparty is only rated by two of the 
major ratings agencies the lowest rating published by either of the two is used. This 
rating also determines the maximum amount which can be loaned to an individual 
counterparty. Non-Eurozone overseas banks that meet the criteria are included from 
countries with a high Sovereign rating.  

The time length of all deposits with financial institutions will be managed prudently, 
taking account of the latest advice from the Council’s external advisors.  

Money Market Funds have a portfolio comprised of short-term (less than one year) 
securities representing high-quality, liquid debt and monetary instruments. Many 
money market funds are now regarded as a more secure form of investment than 
bank deposits, as they diversify their investments across a range of financial 
institutions to spread the risk, and will therefore be used where appropriate.  

Money market funds must have an ‘AAA’ rating to be included on the counterparty 
list. They may be CNAV (Constant Net Asset Value), LVNAV (Low Volatility Net 
Asset Value) or VNAV (Variable Net Asset Value). Yields and prices will be 
monitored on a daily basis to ensure that there is minimal risk of loss of capital.  

Page 58

Agenda Item 9



 
Appendix 1 

 

The Pension Fund will also make use of the US Dollar money market fund used by 
the Fund custodian. Cash will only be held in US Dollars where distributions are 
received from investments denominated in the currency and pending drawdown of 
commitments to US Dollar denominated funds. 

Other public sector bodies are principally arms of Government, or other local 
authorities, and although not rated are deemed suitable counterparties because of 
their inherent low risk. 

The ‘Approved List of Counterparties’ specifies individual institutions and is formally 
reviewed at least monthly. Notification of credit rating downgrades (or other market 
intelligence) is acted upon immediately, resulting in any further lending being 
suspended.  

The following Table D summarises the current ‘Approved List’ criteria.  

 

Table D – Counterparty Approved List Summary 

Counterparty Type Fitch Moody's
Standard 

& Poor's

Credit 

Limit

UK Banks with >30% UK Government ownership

not below A- & F1 A3 & P-1 A- & A-1 £50 million

Other UK Banks

not below AA- & F1+ Aa3 & P-1 AA- & A-1+ £50 million

not below A- & F1 A3 & P-1 A- & A-1 £30 million

UK Building Societies

not below AA- & F1+ Aa3 & P-1 AA- & A-1+ £50 million

not below A- & F1 A3 & P-1 A- & A-1 £30 million

Overseas Banks

Sovereign Rating ofAAA Aaa AAA

and not below AA- & F1+ Aa3 & P-1 AA- & A-1+ £50 million

and not below A- & F1 A3 & P-1 A- & A-1 £30 million

UK Public Bodies

Central Government 

– Debt Management Office Unlimited

Local Government

 – County Councils £10 million

– London Boroughs / Metropolitan Authorities £10 million

 – English Unitaries £10 million

 – Scottish Authorities £10 million

– English Districts / Welsh Authorities   £5 million

Fire & Police Authorities   £5 million

Money Market FundsAAA Aaa AAA £30 million  

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



 
Appendix 1 

 

Where the short term rating of a counterparty is one notch below the stated criteria, 
but the counterparty meets the long term rating criteria, they may still be used subject 
to the advice of our external advisors (Capita) who will take into account a range of 
other metrics in arriving at their advice. 

The credit ratings shown in the table for banks and building societies allow for greater 
sensitivity in recognising counterparty risk. Liquidity in investments is the second key 
factor in determining our strategy. Funds may be earmarked for specific purposes, 
and this will be a consideration in determining the period over which the investment 
will be made. 

The counterparty limits shown in the table also apply at a banking group level. This 
ensures that the Pension Fund is not exposed to the risk of having maximum sums 
invested in multiple institutions owned by a group that encounters financial 
difficulties. 

Borrowing Strategy 2024/25 – 2026/27 

The Pension Fund will not normally need to undertake borrowing. There may, 
however, on an exceptional basis be a requirement for short term borrowing to aid 
cashflow. If short-term borrowing is required, this will be targeted at an average rate 
of 5.25%. 

 

Page 60

Agenda Item 9



 

 
 

DFP/24/27 
Investment and Pension Fund Committee  
1 March 2024 
 

ACTUARIAL AND INVESTMENT CONSULTANCY CONTRACT 
PROCUREMENT 

Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value  

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 

determination by the Committee before taking effect.  

 

1) Recommendation 

 
That the Committee be asked to note the outcome of the procurement exercise for a 
contract to provide actuarial services to the Devon Pension Fund for the period from 1 April 
2024 to 31 March 2030. 
 
 

2) Introduction 

 
2.1 The Devon Pension Fund requires the professional services of an actuary in order to 

carry out the triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund and a variety of other tasks. The 
current contract is due to expire on 31 March 2024. 
 

2.2 At the June 2023 meeting of the Investment and Pension Fund Committee it was 
resolved to undertake a joint procurement with the Somerset Pension Fund, using 
the LGPS National Framework for Actuarial Services, in order to award a new 
contract for the period from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2030. A joint approach with the 
Somerset Fund was agreed as the benefits administration for both the Devon and 
Somerset funds is undertaken by Peninsula Pensions as a shared service. 
 

2.3 This report sets out the process undertaken. The outcome of the procurement 
exercise will be reported orally at the meeting. 
 

 

3) Procurement Process 

 
3.1 The use of the LGPS National Framework means that an initial exercise had been 

undertaken on behalf of all LGPS funds to appoint providers to the framework. 
Individual funds can then use the framework to undertake a “mini-competition” 
between the providers appointed to the framework in order to award a contract.  

 
3.2 Four providers under the National LGPS Framework were given the opportunity to 

participate in a mini-competition exercise, in accordance with the framework 
agreement. The specification for the mini-competition specified that submissions 

Page 61

Agenda Item 10



 

 
 

would be judged 80% on quality and 20% on price. Only two of the four providers 
submitted a tender. 

 
3.3 Each submission was independently evaluated and awarded scores for quality by an 

evaluation panel comprising the Head of Investments, the Head of Peninsula 
Pensions and the Somerset Funds & Investments Manager, supported by the Devon 
County Council Procurement Team.  

 
 

4) Conclusion 

 
4.1 The outcome of the procurement process is still subject to due diligence checks. 

Subject to the completion of those checks it is anticipated that the outcome of the 
tender exercise will be reported orally at the meeting.  

 
  
 
 
Angie Sinclair 
Director of Finance and Public Value 
 
 
Electoral Divisions: All  
 

Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers 

Nil 
 
Contact for enquiries: 
Name: Mark Gayler  
Telephone: 01392 383621 
Address: Room 196 County Hall 

Page 62

Agenda Item 10



 

 
 

DFP/24/28 
Investment and Pension Fund Committee 
1 March 2024 
 

PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY - EMPLOYER 
PERFORMANCE 

Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value  

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 

determination by the Committee before taking effect.  

 
1) Recommendation 

 
       The Committee is asked to approve the revised Pension Administration Strategy. 
 
 
2) Introduction   

 
2.1  Peninsula Pensions (PP) collaborates with Employers to provide an excellent 

administration service for all scheme members. The Employer & Communication 
team’s key role within PP is to offer training, support, and guidance to all employers 
to ensure that they are fully aware of their responsibilities and can meet them. 
Despite this, there are some employers that fail to engage with the team, resulting in 
numerous requests being made for information.  This impacts both on the resource 
required by PP to deal with these requests, and the quality of service provided to 
scheme members.  

 
2.2  The current pension administration strategy(PAS) sets out the timescales for 

provision of information from employers to the administration team, in addition to the 
statutory timescales relating to provision of information to scheme members from PP 
within the Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) 
Regulations 2013. They also include the ability to charge fees where an employer is 
underperforming, which to date has not been put into practice.   

 
2.3  Peninsula Pensions has considered other administering authority Pension 

Administration Strategies and contacted them for further discussion. From these 
discussions, it is apparent that usually one fine is sufficient for providers to improve 
their overall performance and engagement and prevent future breaches occurring. It 
is also apparent that employers (and their payroll providers) prioritise the submission 
of pension information to administrators that enforce charges, ahead of those who do 
not charge for late submissions. 

 
3) Key revisions to the Pension Administration Strategy document 
 
3.1  A revised Pension Administration Strategy is attached at Appendix 1. The intention is 

to implement the revised strategy from 1st April 2024 and approval is being sought 

Page 63

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

from both the Devon and Somerset Committees accordingly.  Peninsula Pensions 
has made amendments to the Pension Administration Strategy and consulted with 
employers accordingly for both the Devon and Somerset LGPS Funds.  The 
consultation period ran from 16th November 2023 to 31st December 2023 and 
feedback received has been included at Appendix 2. The feedback table also 
includes the responses from Peninsula Pensions.   

 
3.2  The revised Pension Administration Strategy has taken account of feedback 

received, and includes some key additions and changes to improve understanding in 
relation to support, expectations, and a move to instigate fines for individual 
employers.  The latter will avoid all employers essentially covering the additional 
administrations costs for under performance of the minority. The key changes 
included are: 
 Introduction of Employer fees for underperformance/lack of engagement.  

 Peninsula Pensions Communication Policy Paper (Appendix A of the Pension 

Administration Strategy)  

 Introduction of Audits on individual employers and their responsibilities 

3.3  Peninsula Pensions where possible, wish to encourage employers to produce the 
information relating to members that have left the scheme, prior to the date that they 
leave the scheme, in line with the Pension Administration Strategy.  This will enable 
the team to calculate pension benefits and arrange payments due in a timelier 
manner to ease transition of members from employment to retirement without delay.   

 
3.4  Peninsula Pensions are working with Audit colleagues to strengthen the new process 

and provide assurance around both the quality and timeliness of data provision from 
individual employers. The aim will be to have a database in place which stores the 
data that Employers provide, highlighting performance within the prescribed 
parameters. When completed, the summary dashboard from the database, and 
reports relating to the new internal administration targets agreed, will form part of the 
report delivered to the Pension Board in future.    

 
4.  Summary 
 
4.1 It should be noted that the intention of these amendments is to ultimately improve the 

service that scheme members receive, allowing for timely administration of their 
pension benefits in line with the statutory timescales.  The Pension Fund should not 
be funding the additional administration costs caused by lack of engagement by 
certain individual employers.  The charges will be used to purely cover the additional 
administration work that Peninsula Pensions has undertaken, as opposed to 
benefiting from them financially. The implementation of the charges is a last resort, 
where an employer has either failed to engage, or continues to underperform with 
their responsibilities.   

 
 
 
Angie Sinclair 
Director of Finance and Public Value 
 
 

Page 64

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

Electoral Divisions: All  
 
Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers        Nil 

Contact for enquiries:      
Name: Rachel Lamb        
Telephone: 01392 383000   
Address: Great Moor House 
  

Page 65

Agenda Item 11



�� ������ � ���������	
���������
�
	����
���������������
�������� ��������������� !"�#
Page 66

Agenda Item 11



��������������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����!�
���"�#������$����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��%������&������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'��(�����������!�(��)���"�����*��
"����������	�
��������������������������������������������+��(�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,��-����������.������!���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,��/�����-������������0�)����*��
"�����������������������������������������������������������12��(�����"���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������11��3��������!�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������14���(������5�(�6�-������
��-��������������������-
��"�(������5�7�6�-����������0����������� � � � � ��(������5���6����)��!��	
��(��������������������� � � � �� � � � � � � � � � �
Page 67

Agenda Item 11



��������������	
���	��������������������������	������
�	�������������
�	������
����������	
�	������
��������	�������������
����	�������������������������� ���������	���!�������������
��	�"������	�
��#�"	��
�	���$��!�����%��	&���������'���()*+,-./0123-���
������� �����
�	����������	
�	�������	�������������
����	����������������()456723-8�	����	���#��#
���������
������!����$�9�����
����������

�����	� &���������������������� ���������!�����%��	&�%������()*+,-:1;<0<=*,><0?-:/*+@><*A23-��� ���������B����&��#������&�
�������	���	��&�	����������� �
�$���9����������	����	������������"������	
�	�����	
�	�#&��	�	����	��	�����#�	������������������
��
�������	����
���	�8�
����
������#������	C�����	���D���������D�������#�CB���	&����������������	
�	������
����$���!�����
&������������������	
�	������
����������	�	���
������� ���	&����������
�����
������
#�����	���$��	����	���E���	�8�
F��#�������� �
���������
��	��	�F������
�D�8����� �	8����	�����
��
������� �����
�������
��#�	�������������������	
�	������
�����	�����	�	�������
������������	������ �
����$�"��	������	����	������
�������� �
��� &�	���'��D����������	����&�
����
#����
�C
�	��	������������&�
�����	������	
� 	����
�	�D��	����������
&���G����	�
��	��	�����
�������������	����	C�����	�����
�������$��%������������!�����������������	�	����8�	�������&�
��8�	����	���'��D�	�����	�	����	����F��	���
���	��#����8�
F��#�
���	��������D����
�������������&D��������
���#
�����	����
������B���	&����������
&����	������������������	
�	������
���������#�	�	��������&�
������	���'��$��"����&����	�����	
�	�#&����������	����������	���
������	������&�
�$�9������
	�F��#����	��	�8�	����	������������"������	
�	�����	
�	�#&�8���� ��
�#��
�&�
����8��� &�	���'��$���������
���	�����������	�����	
�	�#&����

������&��
���������
�
�B�
����	����	���H�#��	�������	��	� ���8D���
�����	���	������	��
�������	�������
��	�����
����������	���I����&�
�G���������	���������������������8� ��	�$���H����8�������������������������9���'���8����
����8�	���������&��	�	����	�������F��
���������������
��
��	�������8��#�����	�
��������#������	��������������
���	����	��
Page 68

Agenda Item 11



��������������	
��
��
�����
��������
��
��
�����	�
�����	���
����
��
��������
���
��������
��
��
��������

���
������������
�����	
��
������
�
��
���������
�����	
��������
��
��
 �����������
 �����	
�����
���
������
��
��
!�"��
#���	
$������
%���
������&

'
 (�"�������
$����	
���
#���������
)�����
'
 #������������
)����	
'
 %������
)����	
)�����
'
 *�"�����
)����	
)�����


+�������	
%��������


+��������
,-
��
��
.($)
+���������
/012
�������
��
.($)
������������
������	
�
�������
�
�������
34567897:;<=:8>?@<:<;5A>5<=:8;5A>57BCDE8��������
����������"�
��������F
�����������
��������F
���
�����
���
������������
���
�����	����


+��������
G0
��
��
.($)
+���������
/012
������
��
������������
������	
�
����"��
����
����
��
�����	���
������	
�����
����
��"�
����
��������
�������
��
��
�����	���
������	H�
��"��
��
�����������
��
����	���
��
��
��������
�����
����
+����������


+��������
G1
��
��
.($)
+���������
/012
������
��
������������
������	
�
����	
������
�
���
��	���
��
������
������������


+��������
G/
��
��
.($)
+���������
/012
���
��
���
��
�����������
���
��
���������
IJKLMNOPQMRQLQSTUJVJQVJVWJIXSQINPUMSQLOYQ����������
��
��
.($)�


+��������
G-
��
��
.($)
+���������
/012
�����
��
 �����������
 �����	
�
������
�
��
)������	
��
)��
������
��
�����	��H�
��������
��
����
��
���������



����
�������
���
����
��������F
����������F
���
�����"��
�	
��
!�"��
$������
Z����
���
��
*�"�����
���
$������
%���
#������
���F
��
����F
��
������
��
�����
����	
�
���
�[�����
���
�����
�����	���
��
!�"��
#���	
$������
%���
����
1
 ����
/0/\�

+�����
]������


+�����̂�������
��
�
����������
���
��
��������
�
������
����
��
��
.($)�
 �����������
 ��������
���
�����	���
��"�
�
�����
���������
�
������
���
�������
�������
���
��������

Page 69

Agenda Item 11



��������������	
���	�����	���������������	������������	�����������	���	����
	�����	������
��	�������������	���������������	���	�	����
���������������	���	�	� ���
�����!����	�����"!����	�����"�#$�%&'()(*+$�	��������	�	� ���
�����,
��%&'-�	��.	�����	.��������/�������������	
�����.���.�������.�0����1���,�.����������,��������	��������.�������	�������
�.������������������	�����������������234567489:;<=>859?5@<=4:A2;<=B<CD���	�����E�.���	�
��������	�	� ���
�����F	��������������,�.����������,��������	���;GG548HG9I4:A5JB23B<52345K><=D5L2345M7N@OPQ5;5R9HI59?5J3BR35BA5H>SGBA34=59<52345 �������	� ���������������0�1���,�.����������,���������������������������	.��������	��������	
������TU#���.���.�������.�0���� �������	� ��������.�������	���������.����	�����	���
����	��	

�	���	����������	����������������		.���������	�	�����
�����������	����������������������	���	�.��������������������
��.������
�������	�������
�����������
��.��.�.���0����.�������"	�������������	�����	������������$�	�����������������������������
����	�	��V������������,�.����������,�������0��.�����������������������	�����	�������	��������	�����������������������.����	���	

�	�������.	�������������
��.��	��.��0� ��	�������������W����.�������.	����� ��������F����X��
�	��Y�,������%&%Z�Y��.�������������"����������0
�.$0���1���,�.����������,���������	��	����	������������������
��.��.�.���������	

�	���	�����.��������.	�������	������������������0�1�������������
����
���
������	�����	����	�������������������	���.�������
����	�������
�����.	���0��,���������W�����	��������������������,�.����������,��������	����.����������W����������������	���

�������	�.�����	���������
�0�1������
�.�������
�������������,�.����������,���������������������������.����������.���������������������������0�� �������	� ���������������������.����������	��	�
�����	�����������
�	�������������.�����
�������������	������	����	�	��V���.������	��������������������
�������.����������	�������	�
������.�����������.���.����	���
�	����0��[�������	����
�������������
����������.����������
�������������
���������������
	�	�������������	�������V�������������.	������
	����������������������48HG9I4:DA5A4R������������������0��\���.��������	���
��
����	����������	�	��V������������������
���	
�� �������	� �������������������	�0�1���������	����� �������	� �������������W�������.�����������������	����������	�����	����������	��������.����������V���.������������������������
��.��.�.���0��]����	���.���������������	
����������	�������� �������	� �������������������������	��)��
�������������	�������.���������������������������������
Page 70

Agenda Item 11



��������������	
�������������������������������������������������������� ��������	������!����"��������������������������#��������$�� �����%��	���������������&�
������������������������ ��������	������!����"������#����	��������	����������%��	�����������������'�������$��(���������$�� �������  ����������# ���'�������������� ����������������&���)'��������$����������������'� �����%��	����������������������������������������#���#������'' ��(�� ����������(����������� ��� �����$�� ���������� �����������*����##��#�������������'��������$���*����$�'������(�$���'' ��&��%��	����������������������#�����#������������ �����+,��'����	�������� ��+--.&������������'� ����������	�
�������/�������������'���#����������������������$�� �����0.�,,,������� ����'��������(�����������#����0.,�,,,������������� ��&��	�����������$���#�����������#�����*�������������1�������������#����$�������������������������������������������������'����� �����������������*��� �����$���$2 ����������'�%��	��������3456789:;<����������#�*����'���(���������������'�� ������� ������#����������#��'����������(����&��%��	�������=>3456789:;<?8@A5B6C?><6CD<>CE89?>@>C7<A85B?F<E89<A4G5B?<��(� �� ����� ���� ���$��  ����(������'����*��������H�����#�HII***&��#��������������&��(&��IJI����I��#��������������I'���I��#���I#�'I ��#���� J#��� �J#�$�� J��(� J#�����&���/��K�����'����������$�������*�����'�%��	���������������� ���$�'�����(������'����*��������H�����#�HII***&��#��������������&��(&��I����������������L������ ��������%�����(����'��������1�������� ���J'' ��(������������������(� ������������������#����$�������'����������������������������$������������#�����������*�������*�����(��������(������������''���������������������������������$��������������������#������� �(�����##��#������(���'���(� ���������������������1�������������&��	��������	���������������� ����M�#�����N�L������ �������%���*���*����*����*�����#���������������������1��##���������������#����$��������������*���������	
�����������&��
Page 71

Agenda Item 11



��������������	
��	����	
���������	����	���������	�����	���	�	
��	
���	���	������������������	����	
���������	
�	��
	����� ���������������	�	
�!�������	����	
�������	�� ���	�����	������������"�#�������������$%&'()&*+(,(')&*-..(/%01�����������	
�	������	��
��
����������
	 �
��� ��������	����2��������	
�� ���	�345�!�**5	��������5	������������	�����������6�����	�����
��������������� ��������������� ������	����	
�����	���
	����������
	���
		�����
	��������	�����	�!����������	�����������	�5	��������5	�������7�����������5�������	���������8��	���9�8!���������	
��
����� �:��		��� ���������	
�2������	��������
	��

�� 	����
�� �������	��	�
!���	�����	
�	����	
�
	������������	���������� ;��<����
�	
������	��	
��
��	��	����<�=�����5�����<�345��>���
	��������<������2�?	�
�
	���
		�����<�@��	
����>�����	�A	���������5
��	��
	���5	��������5	�������������������5	������3�������B22��	
�4
����"53B4#�		��� �!������	�>	����5	������=��������������������	����	
�C�		��� ���	
	��22��	
���
����	���2�
���������=����=�����	�1�@��	��	���5	
2�
���	1�����������������	��2�
���	�=���!����8��	�����	������	�	�		��� �����	����	����	
C��������������������	���
����� 		�����������	���	����
� 	������������	�
	��
�	������2�
���
���2�	���������	
��5	
2�
���	�A	��
��������2�
������	�	� � 		��!�����������	
�>���
	������5������������	����	
����
	���
	������
����	1���������������������������		����2��������
	 �
��� ���	�	9	
���	��2��	
���������
	�����
��2�����������������	������	����������	�345��
	 ��������!���	������������		��������	�D	������	
�
	��	��������	
	�
	���������
	���	E���	�
	���	�������������		��������	��	��������	�=����������	�
	��������������	��������	����		�����������	�	������ ������
�������������	�������2���	�	22	����	����	!��9���	�������	�2����������	�5	��������5	��������	��� 	������	
�����
	������6�5	��������5	������!��
Page 72

Agenda Item 11



��������������	
�
�	
������������������
��	��������� !"!#�"�$%���&��%���$'(#�!�)�%*+,#-!+��%..� +!�)�%���$'(#���/"�-!),+"�+#�$�$&�-",!'�#-���+!+(�$��+�+#�&���.!+"�$*"+�&���#+!.!���+#�+,���$'(#�����(� +-#�! %((��#-�!��0-!+!�)1����2�+�-�%(�3!"'*+��4�"#(*+!#��5-# ��*-����6% ,��$'(#�!�)�%*+,#-!+��!"�-�7*!-���+#��#$!�%+��%����%$��+,��'�-"#��+#�0,#$�%''(! %+!#�"�*���-�8+%)��9�#.�+,��2�+�-�%(�3!"'*+�"�4�"#(*+!#��5-# ��*-�"�",#*(��&��$%��1�:,���%$�;�<#&�+!+(��%��� #�+% +���+%!("�#.�+,!"��#$!�%+���'�-"#��$*"+�&��=�'+� *--��+�0!+,�+,��>*��1����$!�!"+�-!�)��*+,#-!+��%���6$'(#��-�4�"'#�"!&!(!+!�"���:,��?@58�4�)*(%+!#�"�!���+!.!�"�%��*$&�-�#.�-�"'#�"!&!(!+!�"�.#-�+,��>*���%���6$'(#��-"�0,! ,�0!((���%&(��*";�+#)�+,�-;�+#�$#A��.#-0%-��.#-�+,��&���.!+�#.�+,��>*���%���#*-�8 ,�$��$�$&�-"1�B��0!((�% ,!�A��+,!"�&�C��� D�E(�%-(����.!�!�)�+,��-�"'� +!A��-#(�"�#.��$'(#��-"�%���+,����$!�!"+�-!�)��*+,#-!+��D�8�++!�)� (�%-�%���% ,!�A%&(��"+%��%-�"�#.�"�-A! ��(�A�("�.#-�+,��.*� +!#�"� %--!���#*+�&���$'(#��-"�%���+,����$!�!"+�-!�)��*+,#-!+��D�8�++!�)�#*+� (�%-�'-# ��*-%(�)*!�%� ��.#-�+,��"� *-��%����..� +!A���F ,%�)��#.�!�.#-$%+!#��&�+0�����$'(#��-"�%���+,����$!�!"+�-!�)��*+,#-!+��D�G#�!+#-!�)�"�-A! ����(!A�-�;�!���+!.�!�)�'##-�'�-.#-$%� ��%����"+%&(!",!�)�%�'(%+.#-$�.#-�+,��'-#A!"!#��#.�"*''#-+�+#�!$'-#A��'�-.#-$%� ��0,�-��-�7*!-���D�E#�+!�*#*"���A�(#'$��+�#.�-�"#*- �"�A!%�+,��*"��#.��!)!+%(�+� ,�#(#)��%���"+%..�+-%!�!�)�.#-�&#+,�+,����$!�!"+�-!�)��*+,#-!+��%����$'(#��-"�D��''(�!�)� ,%-)�"�0,�-��%���$'(#��-� #�"!"+��+(��.%!("�+#�$��+���%�(!��"�+#���"*-��+,%+�" ,�$��$�$&�-"�%-���#+��!"%�A%�+%)��;�%���!��%��!+!#�;�+,%+�+,��-�"*(+!�)�%��!+!#�%(�%�$!�!"+-%+!A��"+-%!��!"��#+�%�&*-����#��%((��$'(#��-"1��HIJKL�5��!�"*(%�5��"!#�"�%-���#+M-�"'#�"!&(��.#-�A�-!.�!�)�+,��%  *-% ��#.�%���!�.#-$%+!#��'-#A!����&��+,���$'(#��-�.#-�+,��'*-'#"��#.� %( *(%+!�)�&���.!+"�*���-�+,��'-#A!"!#�"�#.�+,��?# %(�@#A�-�$��+�5��"!#��8 ,�$��%���+,��3!" -�+!#�%-��5%�$��+"�4�)*(%+!#�"1�:,!"�-�"'#�"!&!(!+��-�"+"�.*((��0!+,�+,���$'(#��-1��NOPQIRRMSQITUVKQW�X�.#-��$'(#��-"�0,#�,%A����(�)%+���+,��-�"'#�"!&!(!+��+#�%�'%�-#((�'-#A!��-;�.#-�+,��'-#A!"!#��#.�!�.#-$%+!#���!-� +�+#�5��!�"*(%�5��"!#�";�%�
Page 73

Agenda Item 11



��������������	�
�����������		����������������	������������
���������������������������������������������������������	��������������������	���������������������� �����������������		���� ��������	���������������������������������
��������������������������������������
������������������������������������	��������������!���	�"� ��������#������$�
�	������	����		�������������	�������%�����	�������������������������	���������&�������������������	� �	�����������������������&�'���%�����(���)���������*���������������	��������������������������������	�������	���+��	�����������&������������		������	������������,������������������������������������	���������� ����&�����	����������%��������,���������������������		�������������������������������������	������������+��	���
�����������������������#����������������	�������		��	���� �	 �������������� ��������+��	��������������������������������	������	���
������	���������� ����������!"#-���
�	��������,��������������#�����������.������
��(���-�����
������
�����������������������������������	�������������
�����	�������������!"#-���
�	��������������#%-��'�	�������� ����������������������������������������������	������		������������/�0�(���%��������
�%���������������	������������������������������		�������������������������������������������
�����,��	���������������������������-�����
���0�(���%��������
�%���������		���
�	��	������������������������������������	��������������
�������� ����������������	��������������������0�(���%��������
�%���������		������������������	��� �������������������
���������������
�������������	����������	�����������	����������	�������������������������������������0�(���%��������
�%������������������������������������
�����������	����������������������������������1��	������$�
�	������2345��)����	��������
������������������������	�����������������������������#������'����������,������	��������0�(���������������������	�������
�������������������������������������������		���������������������� ������������#������)����6������������#������'��������������������������		���	���������,��	����0�(���%��������
�%���������		��	�����
�	��	���������������	��������
����
��� ���	���������������������
������������������� ��������	���
����������
������������
Page 74

Agenda Item 11



�������������������	
���������
���������������������������������������
����������������������
������������������
�����������������������
�������
���
���
�������
�������
��������������������������� ��
���������!"#$%&'%()"**+'"#$%,+-.(,,(&)%&/%0"#"%&'%!"#$%1"2.$)#%�����
�������
�3�������������������������4���������������3��
����������
�����
5�������������������6��
��������
�������������������������������
���������������������������7
��������
3���
��6��
�����������������
�������������������899:��������;���
�������
����<�5������
��=>��
��=?��������@AB��C>?D��5������
��5�E�������
�����
5������������������������������E���
������
�������
��������
������������������������
��������
�������
��������3���������������������
��������������
��������
�����7
����������������������
��3��������������
����������5����������������
�
F�������
������������������������
�����������
��������
53��
����������
�����
5�����
5�5�������B�
�
�����B�
���
�3�����"00(#(&)"!%���5����
�����
��G�H����������������3���I���J����C>CK�B�
�
�����B�
���
������������
�����������������������
����������
����J
���������
����������
������
���������
�������
������������������������������������
��E�������
��������
��3�����������5���5������������E����������E��
5�������������������������
�����������������B�
�
�����B�
���
������L�M��������������������3������
5��������N�O����
�
F�������
��������������
������
����3��������������
�3����������������3��6���������
��
�����������
�
5P������
5�������
�M�����������
��������
�������
������������
��������������3�������5�
���
5������������������
�������
�����������G������������4������B�
�
�����B�
���
���������E�����������N�O��7��
������E���
��������
������
��
����
��3�������������������
�����
5��������
���������
5��������E�����������3�B�
�
�����B�
���
��������������������������
�
�����3������
5����L�M��������N�O����
�
F�������
�����������P��E�����
����
�������M�������������4�
��������E����������N�O�M����������
��������
���������
����������������������
����������������
�������
��
����������
����������������
���������
������
Page 75

Agenda Item 11



���������������	
	������	�
�	���
���������
���	��
���������������
�
�	��������
	�������������
������������������������� !"#��� #�� $� �%&'�#()��#&�(#*�# �'�%)��+,��-�.����������������
�.�������	�������������	�
�	�/������	���0������1�.��
�2�3�
����������
�
	���������	�������������.�����4���������1������	�
.����������.�������	������
������	1����
�	���5�	����������������.�����2��3�����������
�����
	�����������66�	���
�	���������/����������	�
��������������.������
���
7	
�
��	���	��7����������	��������
	7����3�����	�
�	��8�7�����2��9	��������	���������1�.�
	7�
�������������-�6
	
����
	7�-�����
�1�.1�3�����	�
�	��8�7�����4�������1��
�.����������	�������������	���6��1���������):#'%&#*�#+���&": %:�+#:;%:#:;�#������� !"#%':)�&#� #)&%':)�&#)"# �"��&")*��#$� #������12��-	1��
��7���6�	����7���
	7������6��	�����������1��
�.�����
����.1�����<�������1����<����������
��������7������=�>���������
�
�	�����������	�
�	���6
	
�����
�	�������71���������������	��������������>������?��	�������
�������-�6
	
����
	7�-�����
�1��	�������6��1����������6�
����
�������������
�
�	��
	�����1
	7��������
����	��
�	���	������������7���
�	������-�����
�����5���3���-�6
	
����
	7�-�����
�1��
�����
	���	�������14������
���	������������
�	����������	�
�	���	�4�����������
���2�3���������1��
������6
	��������������	��
�.

�
���
	������������������6��1����	���
��������������������
������	��
.��
�	���������.�����
�������������.��0��	�������@1�������
��2��3��������������
������
���������6
	
�����
�	������������6����������7����
����1����������	�
�	���	�4��	������������1���5���������������
	��������	��
	�������
	7������6��1� "!#'�&: )*A:)�&# %:�",��9	��������	��������	��6��1����������������������������
��4�����������1�
����0�
������������������������
	����������������������6��6�6.����
	������
	�������������
	72�3�����������
	7��6��1����
�.��
�.�������	1�������
����������
�
	7����6�������������
	7����������
��4�
	���
	7������������
�	��������������2��B�
��	�����7���
	7�������������
	7����������
���
����������
��
	������������ !"#"�':)�&#�$#�A #(�*"):�����.���2��
Page 76

Agenda Item 11



��������������	
�������
���
����
���������	
���
�������
��
�	�������
�������	��
�����
���
�����
��
�����
����
��
�������
��
���
�	�� �����
�������!
"�����
	���
����
�����
�����
����
����
�	�����
�	
�����	�
��
���
����
��
�	�
����	��������	
����
�	 �� ��
�	
������	�
����
���
�������!

#��������	�
�
��� ���

"�	�	����
"�	���	�
������
$%"&
�	�
��������
������
'
"�	�	����
"�	���	�

�����
�	��������	
��
��
��������
�	
��		�����	
���	
�	
���������	�
��
���	�
��	�������
�	�
���	
��
���
��������!
$���
�	������
���
��(������	�
��
�
�����
�	�
��)�����	�
���������
�����������
��
��
������
���
���
	��
��������
����!
$���
�� ����
���
�������
��	��������	
����
�	�
����������
��	�*�����	���
����	�!


+,-./012/3,45672,/84029/012/:;.<5<602,<5=/:>01-,<0?/614@@/A2,.<0/012/B@<=<C@2/B.A@-?226/0-/C2/-,/0-/,2.4<5/.2.C2,6/-7/012/DE12.2/45;/0-/A4,0<E<A402/46/4E0<F2/.2.C2,6/-7/012/+>5;G/+,-./0140/;402/012/:;.<66<-5/H-;?/614@@/-A2,402/46/<7/<0/I2,2/45/2.A@-?<5=/4>01-,<0?/7-,/012/A>,A-62/-7/012/J2=>@40<-56/45;/614@@/2K2,E<62/012/,26A-56<C<@<0<26/A,-F<;2;/7-,/<5/012/J2=>@40<-56G
LMNOPNQRSTN
���
U�	�
����
�V���
��	��������	
����	��
��
��
����
�,-./012/3,45672,/8402
� �	
��
���
��������	
�������	�
���
	��
���	
������
�	�
�V������
��
$��	����
W���!
X$��
YZ"[
\]̂_
���������	�
��
�����
��������	
�������	��
��
��
��������
�����
�
$%"&
���
��������̀!

a�
��
���
����
��
���
���������	�
�	
�������
����
��
	��
�	��	
���
���������	�
�������
����
����
����
"�	�	����
"�	���	�
��
�V�����
���
���������
�����������
��(�����
��
���
��������
����!
a�
��	��������	�
���
	��
���
���
����
���
����
����	�
��
���
���
�	
��	��V
b
����
���!



a	 �����	�
�	�
"�	���	
U�	�
b��������
W� �	
b��	��
b��	���



cdefgggggggh
Page 77

Agenda Item 11



����������������	�
��������
����������������������
�������������������������������������������
�������������� ���!��!���������������"#$%����������������
����&��'�������������������!������&��� ���$&(��!����������
��������
���������

 �����'�!�������"#$����������!�������������������!��������!����)���������������������������������������������!���)�'�!������!���������'�����*����+���!������
�������,�������*+
, ���������!������'�!�����������������������������,���!��������������������!���������!�����&��
��������
���������������������!������
�����
�������,�������'�!����������,���!����
���������������!�'�����!��
�������,�������'�!�+�������!���!����!������-������,�!����&��.���������������������������������������������������!�����!���'�!��''������������������������

�������������/�����!�)����������������������!������������!�)���!���������������,������0����!�,�'�,�!�������!��������������&�.�����������������!���!�����!���)������)�����!���������������������'���'�!��������������'����!�����������!��������������!���&����"&�1�2���������.�����2���������'��������������������������!�����'����3�4�.���!����������!���������������������'�!�����������������������������������!������
��������
�������&�4�.�������������/�����!���������������������'���������!�����!�����������������!�'!���������������������������&�4�.�����������������!��������������!������������������������!����������������!�������&�4�.�������������!����������)�!���������)�����������!������������!�������������������������������������!&����&�������������������������

�������������'������������������������������������!������������/�����!�3�4�567869:;<=>?73�0����!�,�'�,�!������0,, @.!���'�!��������0����!�A���!�������.0A ���������!���!�����!����'�������������������������!�&�(�������������������/���'�!������B��!����������!���������������	����������������!�'���������!�2����!B��!��������!���������'���)�'�!��������!�'����)�
Page 78

Agenda Item 11



���� ���������	
���
	����	���������������������������	���	����
����������	�������	�����	���
��	����	�
���������������
���
����	������������������� �!����� �����	������	�����	��	���������������	�����������������������!"�##��$�� ��������
�����������	���������
���������	�����������������������	������%��"��&��
����	��������������	�������"�	
��������� �������	�!����������	���	 ��	��	������##�������&��
���	�	
��'��!���(����(��%�����	���������)*+�,-./01102345.67804.90:4;<.90:4=31>?.@013=<.A71B;345.;0.7CB31?�������
��������
�������	���������������	��
������	��������!������	"����	������	�������������	��������������������	������D�*��EF�GHHIE�F��+*�J�������������������	�����������
��	������!���� ����!	���������	������
��������������	������	����
������������� ����������'((K�'L�	�������	�����������
����������!����������������������"����������������	�����������"����	�!�����	������	���������&��
��	���� ���������������	��	���	�������"���%�� ��&���������	%��&��������%������	%��������	
&������!��������M�N�,����E��J�"����"�
��������	������	�����������&
����
�������������	�!	�������������!������������	"���������)*H,IO�EFD����PQ��J��
�������	"���������&�� ����	��
�����
���"����������	���	��	�
�������	��������������&��%�������������	
&�	
������"����������
�������������%���������!��	����������K�	���������	���%����������D�*��EF+PRF�ST�*�F,���E+�GE��J�����	����!�����������������������	������ �������������#UV����	%�����	����"����"�!������#UV���������	��%����!���%���'((K�'L�	�������	�����������������	������"���%������W�����������������&���	��
���� ��������� ����!�����
������	����&�"��������	�����	���������	��'((K�'L�	�������	���������K�	��	
�� �!���������X��Y	������Z
���������� ��[SSGE+SOF+PRF\�*�,�P�����]������	�����	���������	������	�������	��������� �!������
���!�����
����������
�̂�	̂�����������%�� �����&
����"��	�����������"�����&��������&
����	����	�������	����	���
�������_,+E��OF+PRF̀�*H,�S��O��Y	��
������	���	��������	
���!���������	���������������"�
����������!����%	����&�����������a��&	�� ������	���!������[SS������,��O������	�������	��������� �!�����������!������&�����	�������������!����"��������������!���&����"���������	������%��
���� ��������!�����������b��(�����	�����L�&�&������� ��c��R�+SdFD�ST+P��*������	�������	��������� �!���������
���������!�����������������!���&�������	�������	���	%�����
&&����	������	������
�����������������������	������e��HIP��F\�*���##������������%	
���	�����	����	�������	��������
��������������!������	����"�������&�������������%������%��������������	��������"���	���	��
������	�����
Page 79

Agenda Item 11



���������������	
������������	���� ������������������������ �!!� ��!���!!�"���#�!�������	�	
�������	����	����#$	���������#%"!��&	� ���!�
��������"�#����	#�!�&��	�!	��&	� �#���"�	
���������%�������'�()*�+�,�����-��.#%%�	���	#�� ��!��� ���	
#!
��� ������%	��	#�#$����	�	
��	$#�%��	#�� �!!�/������"�������������������0)�,����(�������1#�����������������	��2����3� #!�����%���/����4�	�����#�
��	$��� �	��	���	���� �#�5 ����������� ��	���	#�%�� #���& ��������	5������	�	$#�%��	#�#�����
	������6��7�
	�&����8"�������1 ���#%%�	���	#�"#!	���� �!!�/����
	�&������!!��#��& ��
���� ���������	5	$	����� �5���	���5�!��	#�2���� #!#5�2�#���#%%�	���	#�"����	������� ��9���#!	����	���%	��	#��1 	���#%%�	���	#�"#!	���� �!!�/��%����������	/!���#��!!��%"!#����2����3� #!����2����� ��"�/!	��� �#�5 �#���&�/�	�����:���� ��	5��#�� 	���#%%�	���	#�"#!	��2�����	%���#�$#���������"�����2������2�������#���/	!	���& 	!���$$���	
�!�����
	5�	������3� #!�����	�%���������!������#�"��	#�������!��������
	����������������
Page 80

Agenda Item 11



�������������	�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����!�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"��������#����������������$�%�������������&'()*+,-)./-01& 2134-356)*1&76381+&�����������������9�:������������;�����������������������������������������������������������<#����������������;��� =������$������������������!�������������������>������������������������������������������?�����$�����������@#���A�����9��������������������������������������������?�����$�����������������������������!������������@��������������������������@������������������ ��������������������������������������������������� =������$������������������!�������������������>�������$�����������������������������A�����������������#����������B����������������������#B���9�������������#B��C��������������������������������������� ������������������������������ ��������;�������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������9��������������������������������������������������������������� =������$������������������!�������������������>��������������$����������������������#B�����"��������@�����������9�>���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������DE�?��������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������������������C�������������������������������������$��������������������DE�?������������%���������
�"�����������>���9���������DE�?�������������������������������������F�������������F���!��������������������������DE�?9���������������������������������������������������������������������� #������DE�?����������������������������$�������������������������������������������������!�����������>���������������������%��������������������������������������������������������������������������F�������������������������� =������$�����������������������������������������������������������������
Page 81

Agenda Item 11



���� ��������������	
�	����	����������	��������	�������������������	����������������������� !"�#��$�%� &������'��������������������������
�����	�����(���������	������������������)�����	���(�*�+����
���������������������������	�����(����������	���������������������������,-�.��	�����	����/0�1����(��������������������	��	(��������������������/0�1�����	�������������	������������������������	����	�2�&������'����3���������(�4����������	�����&�	3�����������������������������		��(����	�����������������������	����	��������������
�	2� 5���������6�������������������������������������	����+����
���������������������������(������7������������������������		��(�����������������	����	2� &������'����3�����������������(�����5��������������������������������	��(������������	�����$8�!9��$:;9$�: �!;<=������!;�!;�!����
�	�>5��������5(	�����?��	��������������2� +����
����������������������������
����������	���������5��������5(	�����������������	�����������������������	�����	�������������������������	��	�������������	������5�������	��(�5����	��
2� &������6����3���	��	�������������������	
�����������������	�����	�������������������������	��	�������������	������5�������	��(�5����	��
����	����������@	��������������/��2��� &������'����3��������	��������62���
������������A�����BCDEFGHDIJHKL� MLNOHNPQDELRSQNTLF�U8�!V=WX�Y�: �!Z;$�![�5���
���������
�	�����	��������	��������������������(	�������������5�������	��(�5����	��
����������(��������
�	�������\�����������	�������
�����5�������	��(�5����	��
��	�������������	������
�����5�������	��(�5����	��
2� 5���
��������	�������
�����5�������	��(�5����	��
���������(���������	�����������������	
�U8�!V=WX�Y�� �!Z;$�![�4�������������	������������		��������
�������	��������	������	��������	����������������������'���5�	��������
��	2�5���]������� �)��'���5�	��������
��	����������	������=WX�Y�: �!����	������	
������
�
Page 82

Agenda Item 11



��������������	��
	����������
��	��������������������������������	��
 � �
���!�	�
��	����������������
	��"	��
���	���	��
	����������
��	��������#��$���%�
���
�"���%���&#%%'�(�)
����	���������	��**����	��
��+�#%%����
��*��������+�������,
���*����
��--��.�/-��01�������234���56�7�8�������391.��:� ;�������+������"���	��+���#%%��$$����	����*�
���$�$"���$���
��	��������,
���*���<�
	����%��$�
	�	��	���%�
���
�=
��(�;�$�	��$*�����>��$*�������
���
������	��
�����
	��"	��
���
���"$�	�	����
��
����
	��"	��
��+��$�	��	���#�$�
��	���
��#	����	� � ?��	���@A	���+�	���$�
	���+	�������	��
�+��$�*��������	���*���+����"��	���#�$�
��	���
��#	����	� �%��$�
	��+�#BC��(�;�$�	�#���	��
���B��
	����C�
	��"	��
��&#BC�'�	��	���#BC�*�������&�' �� ?��	���@A	���+�	���$�
	��+������
��	�������	��
�+��$�*����<�D���	���
,����	+����*��$�
	��	��	���#�$�
��	���
��#	����	���
����*��	��+�������*��$�
	��+�"�
�+�	��+��$�+��E�"�����	���$�
	>����
��
��>����"��
�����++����
�����	���$�
	>������������$�$"�����	�������������	�������������-�/��/�:�� F�	��
�G����D���+������*	��+��
������+��$�%�
�
����%�
���
�����	���%�
���
�=
��;�$�	����������*��$�
	���
����*��	��+�*�
���
�$�$"����H�� � �I�����	��
����C�$*�
��	��
,)
��
��$�
	 � F�	��
�G����D���+������*	��+��
������+��$�%�
�
����%�
���
�����	���%�
���
�=
��%��$�
	���
����*��	��+�=;J@KL��
��M#J@A����D����������	��
�"����+��+��$*�������"��	���#�$�
��	���
��#	����	���
��	���#�	��� �� F�	��
�G����D���+������*	��+��
������+��$�%�
�
����%�
���
�����	���%�
���
�=
��%��$�
	���
����*��	��+������	�������D����������	��
�"����+��+�	����$*������"��	���#�	�����
����

��	�����	��N���	�������
���
���	�D�
�"��	���#�$�
��	���
��#	����	� � F�	��
�G����D���+������*	��+��
������+��$�%�
�
����%�
���
�����	���%�
���
�=
��
Page 83

Agenda Item 11



�������������	�
����������
�����
���	���
�������
�����������	�������
�����
���
�������
��
���������������

�
��������� ��������

�������
�
����������
�������
��������
�����������
��
�������������
���	�
��������������������������
�������
�����������	��������
������������������
������
��������
����������������
����
�
�
����	
��� ��������

�������
�
����������
�������
��������
�����������
��
��������������� ��!
���"���#
������$%&'()*&+,*-.� /.01*023&'.45306.(�7����
������
�!
���"���#
������������
�������	��
�����
�����������
�
��!
���"���#
���������
��������
����������
���������������
������
���������������
��
�����
�����	�� 8	� 9�����������������
�	
���
����:���
����
�����;�
�
���
����
���������
�!
���"���#
������� :���
����������	��������;�
�
��������
��������
����������� ��

�������
�
��������
�;�
�	���<������������
����
�
����
����	
��������������
�	
���
����
����=���������
���
�������
��������
����������������
�
�������
�=���
���
����
����	��
��
���
�=��������
���	��
��������
�������
Page 84

Agenda Item 11



���������������	��
�������������������������������  �!"�!#$����%$!&���'�������(�)�����*+��)������������++���,�����������
���-�����.������/������+�0����+�-���.������-�,��1��.���*���2���������������3�/+�(�����+�����2������4�5����������/+�(���/��2�0�����/+�(����,������+��1-�6���+*0�0����/�������0��*����������/��2�0�0�,������,����������7-������+�2����))�,�
�����/�.�-�������,�++�����
����2�1�0��������89������0���-����*���.��*++�����������������������������2�0�
(�))�,������:���������������������0������'���,�
�����/�.��,�++����+*0���++���������������;*���0����������(�0���+��*�����.*+��������<=�0��++(��*++�0����+��,�*+0�
�������2�0�,������8������-�������
+��))�����00���������������
��������0�����*��0���
������0��++�,����������������������+����/����+����� 8������4���>������������������
�����/�0������������������������+��2��.-�����+�/�(�������+�*+����.�/���:?8��
����������0�@AB3�/�(�����/����:?8��
������������//��/�������CD�5����������/+�(�������*������.��������'������+�++�������0�+�����0�+�����E/������(-���/+�(�������*+0���������)�����*+��)������������.*�0�����,����*��0�+�(�����$�� $F� �!��G�H��I�J��J��I��K$F�K�!��G��I��J�I�#��#�#L�!�M$J�#$G��$���$N�!����F��!�K$F!���O���PP�'�����
+����/+�(��������*�������������������2���������QRSTUVVWXSXYZ[W\UVVU]̂_̀WYaẐTWb\̂_RVWQRSWQZT̂UcdeŴ_WRcĉŶU_W���������(��.�������.*+����(��������+�������0������������-�������,�++�����
����2�1�0�/��2�0�0���������+��������������������
�����+��2������������������.�2���
(�������/+�(��-�������
+��))����/��2�0��1�(��������������������������
��������0����������+��2��.�0�������fVYZT_RŶgZVSeŴ\WZ[QVUSZTXWhR_WRhŶU_Ŵ_YZT̂[WbQRSTUVVWTi_XdW����//���0�����������.+�������+(�/�(��*�-���������������*+0�/�������++(�
���*������0����+��������/��2���������))����+����,�����������+���� �j��2����*�0����.��kk�,������8�,��1���++�,��.�����+�/�(�/����0��j��2�����.��kkl��m������
������������/�������.*+���/�(-�,�����������/+�(����������*����+(�/��n����/�(��������0�����������������-�*/����8�������/����-����,������8�,��1���++�,��.�����+�/�(�/����044��A//+(�������������
�����+�����������/���*���������jo)��YUWYaZW[Z[pZTdXWQRSTUVVWTZhUTcq� 3+��������//+�������������8����������������
Page 85

Agenda Item 11



�������������	
�
�����	
���
���
��
	��������	�����	�������	��	�����������	������	�� ������	�
	���������	��������	��	�����	�	��
���������������	������
�����
��������
�	����		����
�
����	����	�	���
���������	����	��������������� ���	�������	����
�
�����	��
������
��������
���	��
�	�����!"#$%&!'()*#+&'%$$��,�	�	����	��	����	���
��	����	����	�	���
	���
�����������������
����	�-./0��	
	������
��1234��������������-./0��	
	������������������	��� �
������	
�
�����	
���
�������
�-��		 �����	����	���	�
��
�����	����������	����	��	���
����������
������
�/��		 ������
�������	������������	���
����1234�����������
��	5���	���������� ,����
�-��		 ����������	�����������������
���4
���	��	��	�����	�
�����	�������	������
��������2������
���	
���
�1�
��������
�������
�����	
�	��
������	�	�����2���� ,����
�-��		 �������	��	���
������� ���������	�������
���	�!"#$%&!'()*67)8'!97%:*������2���;������;�	��	���	��	������
����2������
���	
���
�1�
��������
�������
���
�2�1����������
�����������	�	��	��	���
�����������
��������
������
�	����	�����	
�
�����	
���
��� �
���	���
��������
���	�	�������		����
���������	�	��	��	����������	
�
�����	
���
������	����������
��������	
�	�
������	�	�����2����	���	
���
��	�����<2��=�� ,����
�/���
�������	���
������� ��2���
�	�������	��	������
����2>1����������	�	�"!"?!'()*#+&*@%$$%A7:B*!$!897%:C� 1���	
�	��	������
����2>1���
���
��������
����	���
������		����
����������	�����2>1�������	���
��
	������D	
	���E��������	����
�3	������
��<DE�3=��
�	����	���������	����
��������
��	���
��������	��	����
���
	���
��
����	������	������	
�
�����	
���
�������F
���
���	5���	�	
��
Page 86

Agenda Item 11



���������������	
��	��������������������	��������������	����������������������������������	�������	���	����������������������	�������������������	���	��������	��������	�������	���	����
��������
�	�	������������������ 

�����������������	��������	�����
����	�!"�	
��	�������#����������$������������	%������������	��&'(����
�	�	�
��������������������	���������������	���)*+,+-./01)*+-,2+-13*-42+-,5,/,671 8,-9/2-.:*1:*;./06,2+-1<1=*;0/13*>.,:*?*+61 @+6*:+0/1A0:;*6-1����

����������
����������������������������
���	�������	����������	��������	�	���	�� B������C������	��������
�������������
������ ����
���������������
������������������������������������
��01-606.62:71+26,D,906,2+10+E1�����������������F	�����������		%��������������������������������������������������
����������������G��	��������	���%���������	�����������	�	����
�%�����
������������H���		���������	������� B������C������	����I�����������	
���������������C������	������G��	��������������� ����		�	�����������������	�����������������	%������������	���G���������������
��������	���������������
�����	�����	
���������������������C����J	��������
�		��������������K����
������������������	�������������
��	���������������������������������	������
����������������	� �L�����	�����	
���	�����
����M��H�����	������N� O�P�	������	�����������������	��������	�O�Q��� 
������������� ��������	�����������������	����������������������������	��������	�R�����������S�������������	R���������������
��
��
�������	�
Page 87

Agenda Item 11



���� ���������	
��������
		�	�������	������	�������	
��������
	���	���	������	������
	�
	��	���	���������	��
�	�����	���	������	��������������	��	��	��
�	��	�������
	����	�����

�	 ��
�	����
�	 ��
�	����	�	�������	������	�������	
��������
	���	���	��������	�������	������
�	�
	��	���	���������	��
�	������	���	������	��������������	��	��	��
�	��	�������
	����	�����

�	��
�	����
�	 � ��	����			�	�������	�����������	���	!��������
	��	
�����	������	�����	����������	���������	������������	"�#$%	������
�	 &�����	'	�����
	��	��!��
�	�����	����	 	�	�������	�����������	���	!��������
	��	�	
�����	������	��	���	������	��	��(���	����������	)��
���	$�����������
	"�)$
%�	 &�����	'	�����
	��	��!��
�	�����	����	 	�	����������	������	���	������	������	������
	��	���
���	������
�������	
�
���
	���	���
�	������
	�������	���	
������	����	�����������	��	�	*+,-./01	������	��	������������
	�
	����
��	��	��������	�������
	��	���������	�������	��	�������
�	)������	����	����	���	������
	���������	���	������	�������	������������		 &�����	'	�����
	��	���������	������������	����	���
�������	
������	��
	�����	��	������	'	�����
	��	�	��!��
�	 &�����	'	���(
		�	����������	������	���	������	������	������
	��	���
���	������
�������	
�
���
	���	���
�	������
	�������	���	
������	����	�����������	��	��������	�������	�
	����
��	��	���������	�������	��	�������
�	)������	����	����	���	������
	���������	���	��������	�������	������������		 &�����	'	�����
	��	���������	������������	����	���
�������	
������	��
	�����	��	������	'	�����
	��	�	��!��
�	 	
Page 88

Agenda Item 11



��������������	
����
��
��	�������������	��	��	�������	�������������
��
	������	��������	���	�	����� �����������������

��������	��	�	�����	���	�������
	���������������	��������	���	������
��	��������	��� ����	�	������������������������	��
��	����������������������	���
	��������	�	��������	��	�������
	�	�����	����������������	���	 ���	��	���	�	��������!�����
��	��	�������	����������������	�����	������
������������	���������	�����	�������

��	������ �"�� ����������		#��� � �������	�	��������	��	�������
	�	�����	���������	
����������	��������������������!�������	�����	�������	���� � ����������		#��������	�	����������	��	���	�	��
�	� ����!����
�����������������	�����
����!����	� ������	
�����������	��	��	����
��	������
!������	��	�����	� � ����������		#��$%&'()*+*,%-(&.(%*'/,&'*)(0%12)&334(,'.&)51-,&'()*31-,'6(-&(1(5*57*)4/(�	�������������	��!�����	��	��	���	���� � ����������		#���������	����������

���������������������������	��	���	�	���	������	������	��
��	��!����	�����	�	��������

���	��	�	������������������� ��������������������	 �	����	������	� ����������		#��������	�	�����������������������+81'6*(-&(*9,/-,'6(5*57*)4/(�	�����
�	���
�!�����	��	��	���	���� � ����������		#��������	�	��������	��	�������
	�	�����	���������	
���������������	������	�	����!�������	�����	��� � ����������		#���:����;������	�����;�������������	�������
	�����	<	����������	�����	�����������	������	�������������	��	��
����������	�;������	����� �� =	�����
��=	���������

����������
��#�������	�	�
Page 89

Agenda Item 11



�������������	�
	��
�	�
���
���	���	�����
����	��
	������	��	��
	����
	��	�
���	��	��	��	��
������
	�
	������	��	��	���������
�	 ��
������
	��	����	��
��	���	����	���	�	���
	��	
����	��	������	����	��	�����	����	���������	 ��������
	!"#$	����
���	��
���
	����	������	�����������	�������	��	�	����	��������	��	���	���	�

��	��	���	��	�����	��	���	����	�������	��
���
���		 �%�	 &������	��������'	�����	
������	������	������

	��������	�����	(�����������	��	��
���	)���	*�������	+��������	�
���
	���������	������������	���
	,	�

�����	�����������	�������	��	�������
	�
	����	 	 �����
�����	�
���
	�����	���������	���������'	����	�����	�
���
	��	���������	-����					������.	/		&��	���	�
	��	����	����	������
	���	��	�����	��	
���	����
	��	�	�����	�����	���	��	���	����	��	&�����������	���	��
����	��
���	0���
	1��
���
��	��	2����������3	 ��������
�	4����'	���	�������������	��
	���
�	���	���	�
	����	��	�������'	�	����	����	��	�����	������
	�
	
�	���	�����		��
������	���	��������	��	�����
	����	�	������'	���	����	���
����	���	����	�������	����	������	���	����
���	��
���
	��
	����	����'	���	��	���������	��	����	��	������	����������	
��
	����	����	���	�������	����	��	������	��	��
������			56789:;<:=>?=@?AB:CD96?? A66? ?
Page 90

Agenda Item 11



������������	
��
	������������������
�����	����������
���	�
������	����	
������	��	�����
������	����������	�������
�	��
��	������	��	���	�� ���������������������������	�
��������������������
������������ ���	��
�	����	�� ���������	
��
	������������������
���
��
	����������������	����	
������	�!���������
��	����������	�������
�	��
��	����������"�	�����������������������������
�	���������	��������
��#������	��	���$�
���%�����&��
�����������'�����	�
���������
���
�	����	�
��(� ���������������������������	�
��������������������
������������ ���	��
�	����	�� ���������	
������	��� ���	��������	������	����	
�#������#��
��������	����	��)���� ��������������
����	�����������&������	���	�����	��	�����	����������!��� ���������	
������	�*+,-./0���	����	������������1#23���������	����
��	����
��
������
�	��
�&���
!����	����
�	�����
��	������������������
���	�����	�� ��������������
��	��������	���	������	����
��	����
��
������
�	�&������	���	�����	����	������������!���'������!�������
����	��
���	� ���������	
��
	������������������
���
������������!����	��������$���
��
����	
��
	��	������	������	�"�����	����	
���	����	������	�
��
������
���	�
��
�	���"
�	(���	�������
�	��
��	����!��	� ���������������������������	�
��������������������
������������ ���	��
�	����	�� ���������	
��
	������������������
���
�������	������	���	���������4��
��
������������������
�5�� �6��������������������������	�
�����6���������������
������������ ���	��
�	����	�� �7��������������	�
��	���3���
��8����������	
��
	������������������
���
������	������	&���	����	����
�����������
��������������
�����	������	�����&����������������
�����������������	���	
	�����
��	�
����	����	�	
�	���3���
���$�������	�
��	
������	�������	�������	�	��(� 9�	����	��������	���������
���������	��2�����	�
��:��
��	��������2�����	�
���6��;� ���������	
��
	������������������
���
��	������	��������!����
�������������	����6����4��
��	���3���
��������!�����
	�����	�
�� �6��������������������������	�
�����6���������������
������������ ���	��
�	����	�� ���������	
����
!���	����
�	����
�	����	�
���	
�	����������	����<	��
��	����
�	���
��
����������	�
��
��	����
�	����	�
��� 9�	����	��������	���
���������������� ����	
�	���=��4�
��3�������=����2�	��������>� ���������	
���
!����	����
�	����
�	����	�
���
����� ��������
�����
��������������	�
������������
�����
���
������������ ���	��
�	����	�� �
Page 91

Agenda Item 11



������������	
���
�������������������
�����	��	������
���������	���������	�����������������������
����	�����	
��	����	��������������� ���������	
�����
��	
��� ���	��	
����
����������� �������!�
���"������ �����������	��	
����������	�����
����������
���#���	����$����%��
���� ���	� �&��������������� ���	�����������	�
�����&��������������
������������ ���	��
�	����	�� �����	���	�������������������
�������'()*'(+(,)-.)/0(1��2�����������
�	����	������������	�
�����
�	��
������
��������������������
���������3�	
������������

%��4��	��
	��	�����
�	�5� �����������	���	���� ���	������6�2�������	�
������ ���	�!�������4����������
���
��������4��� ���	�#� ���������	
��������
�������
�����������������
�����	����	�������������������	�����
� 7�	����	��������	��
���������������� ����	
�	���8��%�
����4����8����9�	��������:� �;
����	��	���������	
���4�4����	�����������������
���������
�	��	��<�	
���
����������	���	��<�
����	���		��������	�	������4�<�
���������
�����	�
�	�������4<�
	���5� �&������
�����
������������	�
�����&������
�����
���
������������ ���	��
�	����	�� �����
	������������	
��
�������	��	�������
�����	����������������	����	���=;
�������	�
�=����	�
�3�	���=������	��	
����=����	�
�3�
��	���=������������������
���	�
�����	�
�=�
��	��������
��������	��	�
��>	��	�4����	����	�������������	���������3��������
	�����������������	�
���������	������
��5��&������
�����
������������	�
�����&������
�����
���
������������ ���	��
�	����	�� �������
���4������	��?�@���� ������
�	����	�
���	
�������	����
��	���2A����	������������
�������B	��
���
��
���4��
�	�5�2��������������������������
���4������	�
�����	�	�
���
	��
����	�5�7�������	����������
�	��
	��� ���	�<���������	�2A����	�3��
�	����	�
���	
����������	����$����%��
�����		���
����������4����
�	5����� 7�	����	��������	��
���������������� ����	
�	���8��%�
����4����8����9�	��������:� ��������������������	�������������������
���
��	���CD�>�������
����4���	
����
�����4�E�9;3�2�93�7;F����	
��������
������������ ��
��	�
��	����������������������������4�� �
Page 92

Agenda Item 11



��������������	��
���	���	������	��	���������	��������	��	����	������	����������	�����������	��	����	���	��	����������������	��	���������	 ����	���	���	��	�������	��	����	���	���	�������	�����	�����	����	��	��  !	"#$%&&"'"(#	��	��������	���	)�����	�����	����	������������			 	 	*+,-./*-,*01234564*781.9:;.**<	=������������	��	��	��������!	�������!	��������!	�������!	�����������!	���	�����	��	�������	����	����	����	���	��������	�����������	��	��������	��	���	>�������?�	@�����		<	A���������	BC	��	���	D@�E	A����������	� CF	������	����	��������	����	��	����������	��	���	���	����	�����	����	����	��	�	���
��
���	�����	����	���	���	����	��	���	����	��	�������	���	����������	���	�����
�������	������	G�	����	�������	��	�	����	���	��	�����	�����	������	��	�	������	��	�	�������	��	���	������	������	��	������	������?�	��������������	��	�������	���	�����������	��	���	H���!	���	H���	���	��	������	���	���	�������	��	���	��������	����				
Page 93

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

Appendix 2 
 
Feedback to consultation: 
In total 29 responses across both Devon and Somerset LGPS Funds were received, this 
included 4 of the employers who offer payroll services to other Fund employers.   The 
feedback has been considered and adjustments made to the Pension Administration 
Strategy where indicated below.  Peninsula Pensions are grateful to those Employers that 
have interacted with the Consultation and provided the feedback. 
 

FEEDBACK FROM ALL EMPLOYERS RESPONSE / CHANGE (if 
applicable) 

Change 
made to 
PAS (Y/N) 

Record Keeping 
  

No particular comments except that the 
aim should be to clearly state to 
MINIMISE the admin necessary for 
Employers.  Stop asking us to send 
information that you can copy across 
internally from the EAS5 forms to the 
CARE spreadsheet. 

Whilst understanding the 
viewpoint of this employer, with 
one member in the Fund, this 
situation is not common. Where 
there is more than one member 
with an employer, the position 
would be different, and the 
proposal would not work.   This 
will however be noted as an 
area to be considered further in 
future for smaller employers.    

N 

Page 94

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

I am very concerned by the whole tone of 
the document which comes across as 
confrontational and punitive rather than 
focused on building relationships, 
knowledge and understanding.  My 
comments will be very similar for each 
section but in particular the level of 
charges proposed are, to be frank, 
ridiculous between one publicly funded 
body and another. Fees escalating by 
£100 per day are out of all proportion and 
unjustifiable, taking resources away from 
children's education.  I ask you to 
reconsider and amend.   
It is in all our interests that the data held is 
accurate and updated in a timely manner 
but this is just one of many complex and 
time critical tasks undertaken by schools 
and inevitably there will be times when 
deadlines are not fully met - flexibility and 
working together to resolve is what is 
required in these circumstances not an 
immediate threat of exorbitant charges. 
Many of the data requirements in this 
document, relating to tasks that could be 
chargeable if notification is delayed, are 
notified to Peninsula Pensions by our 
managed service payroll provider, 
Somerset Council. Whilst we as the 
employer understand our responsibilities, 
we ask you to refer to the Council’s 
response to the draft strategy in respect of 
pages 11 to 13. We support their 
comments.  
A number of the requests are not 
practical. An example is notifying 
Peninsula Pensions of new starters within 
one month of their start date. Whilst this 
would always be our expectation there will 
be circumstances where a starter in the 
latter days of a month may not be added 
to the payroll until the following month 
because our HR/Finance Officer was not 
aware or the employee delays providing 
you with necessary information to set up 
their payroll record. A second example is 
an employee with a start date of the very 
early part of the current month could be in 
post more than a month by the time the 
report is produced and sent, even though 

The draft document is intended 

to clearly state the roles and 

responsibilities of both the 

Employer and Administrator to 

ensure that together the 

scheme member is provided 

with the best service possible 

and in line with the statutory 

requirements.   

The main intention is to 
continue to engage, work with 
and support employers, which 
we will emphasise further within 
the document. However, tools 
need to be in place to 
implement charges where 
appropriate for both lack of 
engagement and 
underperformance.  Whilst 
appreciating that resources are 
difficult across all areas of 
public sector, the fees 
escalating by £100 per day are 
associated with information 
affecting large numbers of 
LGPS active scheme members, 
and in order that they are 
looked after correctly 
considering both statutory 
timescales and good practice, it 
is imperative this information is 
received on time.   
 
Where employers are having 
difficulty with provision of 
information, then by contacting 
the team without delay, they 
can work with employers to 
reduce or stop future fees 
occurring.  There will be a 
formal document provided for 
completion for this purpose.     

Y 

Page 95

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

we do it as soon as possible after the 
payroll has been closed.   

Employer data is not always actioned 
following submissions sent to the 
Administering Authority, sometimes it 
takes over 3 months even though the 
submission has been made in the month 
the payroll is run.  I have Members on a 
regular basis complaining that their data 
has not been updated by the 
Administering Authority and this is 
frustrating when they wish to transfer 
another pension or view their records.  
New starters find this particularly 
frustrating as they are waiting for a 
significant time before they are added to 
the scheme. 

All new members joining the 
LGPS should receive a 
welcome pack from PP within 2 
months as set out in the 
Disclosure Regulations. If a 
member contacts employers 
with this complaint, please let 
PP know so that this can be 
investigated further.  

N 

Do the penalties work against PP as well 
as the employer 

PP performance is monitored 
regularly by Officers within both 
Funds, and in addition, is 
reviewed quarterly by the 
Fund's Pension Board and 
Committee. Any breaches are 

N 

Page 96

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

recorded, and where 
considered to be ‘significant’, 
are reported to The Pension 
Regulator which may result in 
fines being issued.   The 
ultimate review is the direct 
feedback from scheme 
members, and where they 
believe there has been 
maladministration, they are able 
to progress complaints via the 
Internal Dispute Resolution 
Procedure, or further to The 
Pension Ombudsman.  

Communication and Liaison 
  

Some communication with the Employer 
and Communications team can be 
frustrating when different team members 
advise different rules or requirements for 
the same requests they send to the 
employer, which leads to confusion.  
Communication is not always in good time 
which puts added pressure on resources 
for employers to respond.  Teams do not 
always respond promptly to queries.    

The Employer guidance section 
of our website is intended to 
provide the information required 
to enable Employers to meet 
their responsibilities. If the 
information required is not 
available, and a problem with 
communication occurs as 
outlined, then the Employer & 
Communications Team 
Manager should be contacted 
to resolve the issue and avoid 
any further future problems. 
Expected response times will 
be added to the strategy 
accordingly.    

Y 

No designated person from PP but 
demanding one from the employer? 

There is a designated employer 
and communication team 
whose primary work is to 
support, guide and train 
employers. Our Member 
Services teams are employer 
specific and can help with 
member queries accordingly. 
These details are held within 
the about us pages on our 
website and will be made clear 
on the document. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Y 

Page 97

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

Please can you direct me to the Fund 
approved wording for Contracts? 

The website is currently being 
updated to provide clearer 
messaging for new scheme 
members to assist with meeting 
the statutory timescales for 
provision of information.  A link 
will be provided once finalised.    

N 

Fund & Employer Responsibilities 
  

As well as monitoring and applying 
charges to employers for failing to meet 
deadlines, (I feel this is acceptable for 
those employers who are non-compliant)  
however, it is also rather unfair when the 
Administering Authority do not always 
update and administer records in a timely 
manner.  With Members having to 
constantly chase for their pensions or 
records.  I have had occasions where I 
have submitted Members details and 
when the Member contacts Peninsula 
they are told that the employer has not 
submitted their details when clearly we 
have.  The Administering Authority needs 
to also monitor their own deadlines and 
give out correct information to Members 
rather than just blaming the employer. 

Work processed within PP is 
monitored daily to ensure 
scheme members are 
responded to as soon as 
possible and within the 
statutory timescales. It is 
difficult to respond in relation to 
incorrect information being 
provided to members without 
knowing the context, however, 
should this occur in future, 
please contact the Employer & 
Communication team, who will 
investigate the position further.  

N 

I think employer performance targets for 
notification of new starters and leavers 
(under age 55) should be increased from 
1 month to 6 weeks. 
I would suggest a slight change to the 
wording of the last bullet point so it reads 
as follows: 
'Applying charges where an employer 
consistently fails to engage with the Fund 
to ensure scheme members are not 
disadvantaged'. 
I do not think conscientious employers 
should be charged for consistently 
providing data and engaging with the 
Fund.  There are anomaly cases which 
may slip the deadlines such as the late 
notification of a starter/leaver.  

When setting timescales for 
both employers and PP, the 
disclosure timescales are 
considered which must be 
adhered to, unfortunately the 
suggested increase in 
timescales would not permit 
time for the administrative work 
by PP to be finalised within the 
statutory timescale.  

N 

Page 98

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

Notify Peninsula Pensions of periods of 
unpaid absence not covered by Assumed 
Pensionable Pay (APP). 
Performance target is within 1 month, 
when is this counted from, please? 
 

Within 1 month of return to 
work. 

Y 

Provide monthly CARE data within 
required format. 
What is your definition of pay run? I 
understand the interface deadline to be 
14th of the following month. 

The content has been altered to 
make it clear that information is 
expected within 2 weeks of the 
pay period that it is paid in.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y 

Audit 
  

Suitable timescales for our response 
should be agreed in advance.  

Agreed N 

Outsourcing    

5% charge is once again disproportionate 
and unjustifiable. 
 

This charge has been removed.  
Instead, there will be updates to 
our outsourcing processes to 
ensure smoother transfer of 
staff and onboarding of new 
admission bodies.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y 

Page 99

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Underperformance Fees 
  

How have the fees/penalties been 
calculated. Regulation 70 of the LGPS 
Regulations 2013 allows '.......where costs 
have been incurred'. What are you 
including in your calculations? I think that 
you need to show why the frequency of 
subsequent charges ie Annual Allowance 
pay data is daily. 
 
Failure to notify PP of new starters joining 
within 1 month should be 2 months - If a 
starter joins on 20th of the Month and they 
are paid on 31st of the following month - 
they may not be on the return of the 
month they joined but on the second 
return. 
 
Both any retirement type, death in service 
notifications and resole member queries 
need to be longer timescales. In our small 
organisation I am the only one who 
completes forms and if I am on leave for 3 
weeks then the proposed timescales will 
never be met. 
 
Estimate requests in excess of 1 per 
member in a rolling year - if a member 
makes 2 requests does this mean as an 
employer I have to say no? 
 
   

This response takes into 

consideration all feedback 

relating to underperformance 

fees and the Occupational and 

Personal Pension Schemes 

(Disclosure of Information) 

Regulations 2013.   

 

The fees/penalties have 

considered the additional time 

and resource required. The 

daily rate across staff grades 

has been averaged, whilst also 

considering other south west 

administrators charge and 

ensuring consistency. If 

considered on an individual 

basis, it is likely that the 

charges would be higher.  

 

In relation to new starter 

members, it has been proposed 

that PP set up a specific new 

starter website page to satisfy 

the disclosure requirements. 

Employers can then link to this 

when roles offered, as part of 

the documentation provided 

with contracts.  Where 

employers share this 

information with members, a 

fee will not be invoked, 

assuming full starter information 

is received by PP within 2 

months of the start date.  

(Ideally this would be received 

within 1 month, to enable PP to 

add the scheme member record 

to our database and allow them 

access to the online portal).  

Y  

Page 100

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

 

The fee for estimates relates to 

employer led retirements e.g. ill 

health, redundancy.  One 

estimate for each type of 

specific ‘retirement reason for 

leaving’ will be provided. 

Scheme members are advised 

to use the Member Self Service 

online portal to calculate their 

pension entitlement.  

For information, a ‘strain’ cost 

only report for a group of 

scheme members is not 

included as an estimate request 

and can be obtained by 

contacting the Employer & 

Communications team 

accordingly.   

 

Retirements and deaths are the 

highest priority work type for PP 

and have set regulatory 

timescales. There is a duty to 

provide benefit information 

relating to these areas as 

quickly as possible to enable 

members to make future 

financial decisions/make the 

change from salary to pension 

as smooth as possible.  

To enable employers to 

automate information via their 

payroll system following their 

‘final pay period’, in addition to 

satisfying the regulatory 

timescales as administrators, a 

compromise is suggested 

whereby the timescale is 

adjusted in line with the 

aforementioned, provided that 

earlier notification of basic 

leaver information is given by 

the employer, to enable PP to 

provide key information to 

Page 101

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

scheme members ahead of 

their leaving date.   

Alternatively, if employers can 

action interim ‘payroll runs’ as 

opposed to one single monthly 

pay run, information could 

potentially be automated earlier 

for provision to PP in line with 

timescales. 

 

 

Timescales for all types of 

Leavers, and responses to 

enquiries have been adjusted 

accordingly to make consistent. 

 

The statutory timescales are 

quoted in ‘months’.  The 

timescales within the Strategy 

are therefore now quoted as 

either ‘months’ when relating to 

statutory requirements, or a 

period of ‘time’ when relating to 

either Peninsula Pensions or 

Employer internal timescales 

for ease/clarity as opposed to 

‘working days’. 

If staff leave start of month, processed 
end of month (in line with payroll date) this 
may not be processed within month of 
leaving.  We pay staff retrospectively, so if 
they left end of a month the final pay 
wouldn't be processed until next payroll.  
This would be more fair to be within two 
months of leaving date or within 15 days 
of last pay period.  To send an estimate 
then follow up with adjusted form, makes 
more work for us and LGPS. 
If staff are casual (e.g. invigilators), we 
review anyone who has not been paid 
within last 3 months and make them 
leavers as of last payment date, therefore 
this would be outside of the month 
timeline. 

  

Page 102

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

I am very concerned by the whole tone of 
the document which comes across as 
confrontational and punitive rather than 
focused on building relationships, 
knowledge and understanding.  My 
comments will be very similar for each 
section but in particular the level of 
charges proposed are, to be frank, 
ridiculous between one publicly funded 
body and another. Fees escalating by 
£100 per day are out of all proportion and 
unjustifiable, taking resources away from 
children's education.  I ask you to 
reconsider and amend.   
It is in all our interests that the data held is 
accurate and updated in a timely manner 
but this is just one of many complex and 
time critical tasks undertaken by schools 
and inevitably there will be times when 
deadlines are not fully met - flexibility and 
working together to resolve is what is 
required in these circumstances not an 
immediate threat of exorbitant charges. 
Many of the data requirements in this 
document, relating to tasks that could be 
chargeable if notification is delayed, are 
notified to Peninsula Pensions by our 
managed service payroll provider, 
Somerset Council. Whilst we as the 
employer understand our responsibilities, 
we ask you to refer to the Council’s 
response to the draft strategy in respect of 
pages 11 to 13. We support their 
comments.  
A number of the requests are not 
practical. An example is notifying 
Peninsula Pensions of new starters within 
one month of their start date. Whilst this 
would always be our expectation there will 
be circumstances where a starter in the 
latter days of a month may not be added 
to the payroll until the following month 
because our HR/Finance Officer was not 
aware or the employee delays providing 
you with necessary information to set up 
their payroll record. A second example is 
an employee with a start date of the very 
early part of the current month could be in 
post more than a month by the time the 
report is produced and sent, even though 

  

Page 103

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

we do it as soon as possible after the 
payroll has been closed.   

As stated we understand the charging of 
fees for non-compliance or under 
performance, however these should only 
be charged after extensive discussion with 
the employer as to why the non-
compliance has occurred.  Non-
compliance could occur for a variety of 
reasons and is not always willful or 
negligent.  As mentioned communication 
with the Administering Authority can be 
difficult and the lack of availability of a 
team or lack of internal communication 
can be frustrating. 

  

Additional charges need to be on a lesser 
timescale as these are too short 

  

The member has up to 30 days from 
returning from unpaid absence to decide 
whether to apply for additional pensions to 
cover, so the 1 month period of 
notification would not be possible. 

  

Page 104

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

Failure to notify Peninsula Pensions of a 
member leaving the LGPS (as opposed to 
retirement – relating to either termination 
of employment or opting out) within 1 
month £50.00 per member. This would not 
be possible for claims-based members as 
we leave the payroll record open for 8 
weeks following the actual leave date in 
order to late or outstanding claims.   This 
decision to delay PAYE closure was in 
conjunction with LGPS at that time. 

  

Failure to notify Peninsula Pensions of 
any retirement type within 15 days of 
retirement date £200.00 per member. 
We are not sure how we could meet this 
lead time.   Usually, retirement actions are 
negotiated around business and personal 
needs and our first notification of an 
intention to retire would be via a trigger 
workflow.  By which time and given most 
LGPS members are subject to one 
month’s notice – we would have missed 
the 15 days deadline.   

  

Failure to respond to requests to resolve 
member queries (for example queries 
related to annual returns or leaver forms) 
within 10 working days of request 
£50 per member request plus an 
additional £50 per member for each 
subsequent month late 
 
Small organisations, such as ourselves, 
may only have one member of staff that 
deals with pensions. If that member of 
staff takes a two-week holiday they would 
be away for 10 working days. Therefore, 
to enable small organisations to achieve, 
rather than set them up to fail and be 
fined, could we please request that this  
‘Description of Failure’ is amended to 
within 12 working days of request? 

  

Page 105

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

Failure to notify Peninsula Pensions of 
any retirement type within 15 days of 
retirement date 
£200 per member plus an additional £200 
per member for each subsequent month 
late 
 
If an employee were to retire at the 
beginning of the month, they would still 
receive salary on 25th of that month for 
the days worked. Therefore, to allow for 
action after 25th of the month, could we 
please request that this  ‘Description of 
Failure’ is amended to within 20 working 
days of retirement date? 

  

• There is no context the monetary 
amounts quoted for the charges and why 
some are higher than others.  
• The timescales proposed will result in 
employees at the Council duplicating work 
in order to ensure we receive no charge 
• The timescales proposed will limit the 
holiday an employee can take, or 
alternatively, result in us needing to train 
and potential pay an employee more 
money, to cover in the absence of the 
employee normally processing our 
pensions 
• We have no alternative provider to go to.  
Given we are all in this together, would it 
not be more effective to report on a 
regular basis any delays, then use this 
information to target specific employers 
that cause delays rather than all 
employers? 
 
Overall, whilst it is appreciated that 
consultation is happening, the proposed 
changes are not to the benefit of the 
Council and could result in us facing 
significant cost.  We have at times, had 
delays in you as a provider responding to 
queries and whilst this may cause an 
element of frustration we would not 
consider charging you.  It is for this reason 
we are not supportive of the proposed 
charges.  I should also note that because 
of your Christmas shut down the 
consultation in essence ends earlier and 
not on 31st December (assuming 

  

Page 106

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

consultation is a two way process until the 
end date).   

Starters are reported to Pensions via 
Altair reports on the 23rd of the month. 
We are only able to report once they have 
been set up on the payroll, unable to 
report if not set up on the payroll. 
Therefore potential fines for late starters. 
Would we still be fined?  

  

changes are reported via Altair reports for 
changes that have happened during that 
pay run. If for example, a manager does 
not change the hours on iTrent for one of 
their staff at the correct time, we are 
unable to report the hours change until it 
has been updated on iTrent and run 
through the payroll. This would create a 
potential fine. Would we still be fined? 

  

Page 107

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

Our Auto Rem process will fit this criteria, 
the Rems are run and produced on the 
23rd of each month (for employees that 
are made a leaver during that pay run). 
 
However any late leavers that we receive 
would potentially incorporate a fine and 
also Casual employees (Including bulk 
leavers where we do an exercise to 
remove casuals that haven’t been paid for 
a year therefore high numbers). It would 
not always be possible to produce a Rem 
for a casual employee within 1 month of 
their leaving date. 
 
Manual Intervention are now completed 
by the end of the month. However if we 
had a complex Rem to complete, if we 
kept pensions informed would they be 
able to waive the fee?  

  

If the leaver is at the beginning of the 
month will it still incur a fee as this will be 
produced as part of the auto rems.   
If it will then we will have to do a manual 
rem when processing the leaver. The Auto 
Rem will still be produced and need to be 
checked to ensure that the figures are the 
same as the manual rem that we would 
have done in advance. This is a 
duplication of work. Is there any leeway 
with this? 

  

Due to the large volume of queries, we 
receive we may struggle with this so will 
there be any leeway if there is evidence 
that we are trying to keep on top of these? 
Presumably, fees will just be for new 
queries after April and not for outstanding 
queries although we hope to clear all of 
these by then   

For pre- April 2024 cases, fees 
will apply if they remain 
outstanding, but will only be 
applied from 1 April 2024.   

 

Do you mean estimates that apply to 
retirement and redundancy estimates 
where we ask for strain costs? 

Please see earlier response. Y 

I assume this relates to employer led 
estimates (redundancy, flexible etc)? 
What if they are completely different types 
- e.g. employer looking at redundancy in 
April but member not selected for 
redundancy and then member interested 
in Flexible Retirement in December? It 

Please see earlier response.  Y 

Page 108

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

doesn't seem fair to be penalised for 
unpredictable situations within a year. 
 

The timescales given in a number of the 
“failures” in Appendix C are also of 
concern to us.  Examples are, but not 
limited to:  
 
Schools may not be available or know in a 
timely manner of a death in service to 
enable notification within 10 days, during 
a long school holiday period. This could 
also apply to a small employer with one 
administrator who is on holiday or other 
absence.    
 
New starters to be returned within one 
month of start date – this is not practical. 
Somerset Council and many of its 
employers have a pay date of the last 
working day of the month. A new 
employee with a start date near the end of 
the previous month or very early in the 
current month, is unlikely to be reported in 
time. Somerset Council payroll is finalised 
just a few days before payday. We have 
multiple processes to complete in the next 
week or so and it is unlikely that our 
pension returns will be completed in the 
timescales listed. This would also apply to 
many of our client payrolls.  
 
New starters with a payroll paid earlier in 
the month are also likely to be later than 
one month from start date in many 
circumstances. We have insufficient 
resource to stop our other payroll work to 
produce pension returns for individual 
payrolls. Our process is to do this for all at 
a similar time.  
 
To support our request for this deadline to 
be extended, we also note for new 
member records, Peninsula Pensions 
have 3 months to update their records and 
you will do this on receipt of the interface. 
We therefore do not see why the 
employer timescale should be within a 
month and what costs are incurred by the 
Administering Authority if it is later.  

  

Page 109

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

 
We suggest that the request for Annual 
Allowance data should have a date 
quoted. 
 
A charge for a non-quantified event is 
unreasonable. All charges should have a 
specified non-compliance.  
 
We suggest that you explain the transfer 
of fines, and when this may happen, in 
more detail. 
 
The final charge appears to be a catch all 
which may include “failures” detailed 
above and for which there is little or no 
quantifiable time.  
  
We do understand that a comment was 
made to one of our representatives at the 
meeting that the charging schedule isn’t 
being aimed at us (Somerset Council) but 
being instigated to target poor performers, 
but this does not remove the fact that the 
strategy states that all employers are 
responsible for meeting the unreasonable 
timescales given and we do support 
multiple fund employers.   

Failure to notify PP of other changes 
relating to an active member. As with new 
starters, this is not practical and needs to 
be a period after the pay day that this 
change takes effect from in the Payroll 
system as this will then also allow for 
retrospective changes and the change to 
appear on monthly payroll reports.   

  

With the on-line system being removed 
we are no longer able to do our own 
estimates and dates can shift – with the 
removal of the facility to do the estimates 
ourselves, we believe this number should 
be increased significantly.   
 

1 estimate per year per 
employer led retirement type 
should provide the required 
information in relation to strain 
cost for an employer to decide 
regarding retirement. There is 
also the strain calculation report 
for employers which can be 
provided by PP, to help when 
looking at potential costs. The 
members benefits should only 
increase, assuming follow up 

Y 

Page 110

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

estimates will be using a later 
date.    

Other comments    

Why isn't the aim of your Administration 
Strategy clearly stated to MINIMISE the 
admin necessary for Employers.  Stop 
asking us to send information that you can 
copy across internally from the EAS5 
forms to the CARE spreadsheet. 
And please stop using EGRESS as a 
'secure' email process.  If you can confirm 
the very confidential EAS5 information 
you can send other missives without 
making employers log on to another 
process just to view emails.  Using a third 
party platform runs the additional risk of 
data leaks, losses or ransomware of the 
external organisation and is simply over-
bureaucratic. 
 

 
 
Devon County Council Data 
Protection and Cyber Security 
officers advise all staff to use 
Egress in their day-to-day 
business to safeguard 
information and reduce the 
threat of data leaks etc 
mentioned.   

N 

This proposal completely undermines the 
good working relationship built up over 
many years with Peninsula and seems to 
be a fundamental change in the 
organisation's culture and approach.  Is 
this really what you are seeking to 
achieve? 
 
 

The aim is to always work with 
employers for the benefit of 
scheme members in a timely 
manner and in line with the 
Occupational and Personal 
Pension Schemes (Disclosure 
of Information) Regulations. 
However, where 
underperformance has arisen 
and there is lack of 
engagement, charges will be 
implemented to employers as 
set out below. 

N 

The proposed Administration Strategy 
does set out clear guidelines for 
Employers and the Administering 
Authority, however it does put a lot of 
emphasis on the Employer meeting all the 
requirements whilst we feel that there are 
issues with the timescales for the 
Administering Authority who are quick to 
blame employers for not submitting 
information.  Concern is therefore raised 
in these case where fees could be 
imposed. 

 
Where information is not 
provided within statutory 
timescales, then members will 
be advised that this is pending 
from the employer.   
 
If an employer and PP are 
working together to move a 
case forward within an agreed 
timescale, then there will be a 
discretion which can potentially 

 

Page 111

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

I sincerely hope that pragmatism and 
understanding is applied for employers 
who provide information on a consistent 
basis, not the administration of fines.  
Missing deadlines for certain scheme 
members will happen unfortunately and 
sometimes this is purely down to timing. 
New starters or leavers can sometimes be 
omitted from the monthly reports as this 
may be the timing of a manager 
completing the leaver process, the timing 
of an employee completing their new 
starter process or the time the monthly 
report is run. 
 
I completely understand the need for a 
cost-effective, inclusive and high-quality 
pension administration service requiring 
the joint working of both Fund and 
Employer but not at the expense of co-
operating employers who sometime miss 
performance target levels. 
 

be used to not impose the fee, 
and a form provided for 
completion for this to be 
considered. 

We are understanding of the need of 
performance targets that are enforceable 
and agree with the general aims of the 
strategy. Understandably, the strategy is 
from the perspective of the administration 
of the scheme but whilst employers may 
need change some things to fit in with the 
requirements, there does need to be 
some understanding of how employers 
operate in reality.  
 
With regards to the performance 
standards and additional charges, there 
does need to be clear guidance on how 
the determination on failures will be made 
and consistently applied, how and when 
they will be notified, and what the appeals 
process is. There is the possibility that the 
employer could be fined multiple times for 
the same failure (initial fee, fine from 
external organisation, additional staff 
charges and interest). This could 
potentially be deemed as excessive. 
 
There are inconsistencies in time 
measurements throughout the 
performance standards and additional 

The successful administration 
of the Fund relies on all parties 
understanding their roles and 
responsibilities and working 
together to achieve this. The 
strategy sets out performance 
targets to ensure regulatory 
timescales are also met.  
 
Documentation has been 
produced to ensure discussions 
involving any failures follow the 
same format and processes are 
being developed to be 
implemented from 1 April 2024 
to ensure consistency. This will 
include an appeals process.  
 
The strategy has been adjusted 
to incorporate weeks and 
months only.              

Y 

Page 112

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

charges. For example, in some cases a 
period of time is used 
(days/weeks/months), and other cases it 
is working days. Also, the terms pay run, 
final pay day, final pay period are used but 
they do have different meanings. It would 
be good to have some clarity on why 
different measurements and terms are 
used in different cases. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 113

Agenda Item 11





 

 
 

DF/24/29 
Investment and Pension Fund Committee 
1 March 2024 
 

COMMUNICATION POLICY 

Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value  

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  

 

1) Recommendation 

 
That the Committee be asked to approve the revised Communications Policy.  
 
 

2) Introduction 

 
2.1 The Communications Policy is one of the four statutory statements that the Fund is 

required to have in place. It sets out the Fund’s policies on the provision of 
information and publicity about the Scheme to members, representatives of 
members and employing authorities. It sets out the format, frequency and method of 
distributing such information or publicity, other key organisations that we 
communicate with, our values in relation to communications and the professional 
expertise available to the Fund. 
 

2.2 It is good practice to review and update the policy on a regular basis. The 
Communications Policy was last update in November 2019. The Policy has therefore 
been reviewed and a revised policy is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 
 
 
 

3) Communications Policy 
 
3.1 The Communications Policy has undergone mainly cosmetic changes as follows: 
 

 The format of the report has been amended to make conversion to a web page 
easier. 

 Job Titles and partner organisation names have been updated as required. 

 Paragraphs have been rearranged to improve layout and flow of the document. 

 Page numbers have been added and artwork removed. 

 

3.2 The revised policy was presented to the Pension Board for comment at their meeting 
on 30th January. Board members suggested that a reference to carrying out surveys 
of fund members should be included in the policy, reflecting the survey carried out in 

Page 115

Agenda Item 12



 

 
 

2022 on members views on how far the management of the Fund’s investments 
should take into account environmental, social and governance issues. An additional 
paragraph has been added to the policy on this issue. Subject to that, the Board 
were happy with the revised policy as presented. 

 

4) Conclusion 

 

4.1 The Committee is asked to approve the revised policy. 

 
 
Angie Sinclair 
Director of Finance and Public Value 
 
Electoral Divisions: All  
 

Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers 

Nil 
 
Contact for enquiries: 
Name: Charlotte Thompson  
Telephone: 01392 381933 
Address: Room 180 County Hall 

Page 116

Agenda Item 12



Devon Pension Fund  

Communications Policy 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Draft version presented to the Devon Pension Fund 

Investment and Pension Fund Committee 

on 1 March 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 117

Agenda Item 12



Devon Pension Fund 

Communications Strategy Statement 

Contents 

 

 

Background ................................................................................................................................... 1 

Purpose of this document ............................................................................................................ 1 

How the Fund connects with stakeholders .................................................................................. 2 

Communications with key governance partners.......................................................................... 5 

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee ............................................................................ 5 

The Devon Pension Board ............................................................................................................ 5 

Actuarial services .......................................................................................................................... 5 

The Brunel Pension Partnership Ltd. ............................................................................................ 6 

Other investment managers and advisors ................................................................................... 6 

Wider audiences ........................................................................................................................... 7 

Peninsula Pensions Communication documentation .................................................................. 8 

Complaint handling ...................................................................................................................... 9 

Data protection............................................................................................................................. 9 

Rights to information .................................................................................................................... 9 

Summaries of methods of sharing Fund information .................................................................. 9 

Summary of methods of sharing Fund information with members .............................. 11 

Summary of methods of sharing Fund information with employers ............................. 13 

 

Page 118

Agenda Item 12



 

Page 1 of 16 

Background 

The Devon Pension Fund is a part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (the LGPS).  

Established as a national pension scheme in 1922, the LGPS is one of the oldest public sector 

retirement schemes.  Approximately one million employees contribute to the LGPS in England 

and Wales - roughly 75% of the local government workforce.  The LGPS has 89 independent 

localised funds governed by specific legislation that defines participation, governance, 

operational standards, investment and actuarial practices, administrative requirements and 

how retirement benefits are provided and paid.   

The Devon Pension Fund is managed and operated by Devon County Council (DCC) who are 

appointed by statute as the Administering Authority of the Devon Pension Fund Local 

Government Pension Scheme.  The assets of the Devon Pension Fund are not owned by DCC 

and are a separate legal and financial entity from DCC.   

Devon County Council is the largest employer participating in the Devon Pension Fund.  Many 

other employers participate in the Fund; County Councils, Town and Parish Councils, colleges, 

universities, Multi Academy Trusts (who manage schools or academies) and many employers, 

large and small. 

The Devon Pension Fund employs specialised professionals to manage many of the practices 

and processes required to operate the Fund.  A list of these service providers, their contact 

details and a brief explanation of their roles is provided.  

The administration of members pension benefits is undertaken for the Devon Pension Fund by 

Peninsula Pensions, a shared pensions administration service - between Devon and Somerset.  

Purpose of this document 

The Devon Pension Fund encourages engagement between members and employers and its 

officers and representatives.  The sharing of information amongst all stakeholders promotes 

good fund governance and fund management as well as developing a greater understanding 

of the complexities of planning for retirement.   

This Communication Strategy Statement describes the intentions, processes and practices 

that facilitate good communication between all parties related to or engaged with the Fund 

and summarises the methods of connecting the stakeholders with information about personal 

benefits and the operation of the Devon Pension Fund. 

Occasionally different methods of communication will be deployed as circumstances require.  

This Communication Strategy Statement does not limit the methods that may be used by the 

Fund to produce effective communication with stakeholders. 

The Communications Strategy Statement is reviewed annually to accommodate changes to 

technology, legislation, actuarial requirements, or the practices of the LGPS and the Devon 

Pension Fund.  The next formal review is scheduled for 1 July 2025. 

  

Page 119

Agenda Item 12



 

Page 2 of 16 

How the Fund connects with stakeholders 

The Fund uses a range of communication channels and when deciding which to use 

consideration is given to the message, it’s customers, and the cost to the Fund. Each time, the 

aim is to use the most appropriate and efficient means for connecting with stakeholders, 

whilst delivering concise, clear and accurate information.  

To contain administration costs and embrace the use of technology, the fund aims to 

communicate as much as possible via electronically.  This helps to ensure that the Fund 

maintains contact with members and removes the need for member tracing services. 

However, members are given the option to elect to receive any communication via other 

means. 

Here are some of the common communication channels provided:  

Online information sources 

The Devon Pension Fund has made information available electronically for access by members 

and employers.  The most efficient source of information are the two main Devon Pension 

Fund webpages. 

a) The Devon Pension Fund: - Home - Devon Pension Fund   

This website provides useful and concise information about the Fund, including the: 

 Annual Report and Accounts – including the annual financial statements 

 Investment Strategy Statement 

 Funding Strategy Statement 

 Administration Strategy Statement 

 Actuarial Valuation Report 

 Fund Risk Register 

 Fund Statistics 

 Administering Authority Discretions Statement Information about the Responsible 

Investment objectives of the Fund 

b) Peninsula Pensions: - https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk  

The Peninsula Pensions website provides administrative information and guidance to 

employers as well as anyone who may be thinking of joining, is already a member, or may 

be a previous member or a pensioner member.   

Member benefit information 

After registration on the Member Self Service Portal members may: 

 view their current benefit information 

Page 120

Agenda Item 12



 

Page 3 of 16 

 model their own projected benefit calculations 

 update personal details  

 add or update Expression of Wish information 

 view pay slips, P60s and annual benefits statements 

 view newsletters 

 print nomination and other forms for completion 

 Interact with the administrator and raise questions or to upload or send documentation  

 find out about methods of increasing future retirement benefits through options like 

Additional Voluntary Contributions and Additional Pension Contributions 

For general queries members should complete the contact form on: Contact Peninsula 

Pensions - get in touch for help and advicehttps://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/  

Employer information and administration guidance: 

There is also a section for employers: Peninsula Pensions (Local Government Pension 

Scheme for employers - a guide (peninsulapensions.org.uk))    

Employers can obtain guidance and information on how to interact with the administrator 

to pay contributions, process member information (have benefits paid and access to forms 

and documents) and the practicalities of Outsourcing Services. 

c) The Local Government Pension Scheme website 

The LGPS web pages: https://www.lgpsmember.org/ contain information about many 

aspects of the overarching LGPS arrangements useful to members and employers. 

Member surveys 

The Fund interacts with members using on-line surveys to gather information and opinion 

from members.  This data is used to assist the Fund in determining strategic decisions and 

improving communication to members.   

Annual Benefit Statements, Pensioner Pay Advice and P60 

Active contributory members and deferred members have online access to their annual 

benefit statement showing current and prospective values of member’s benefits 

Pensioners receive pay advices in April and May each year. These show the effect of the 

annual pension increase and will include a P60 tax document summarising pay and the tax 

deducted from it for the previous year. 

A pay slip is also issued to pensioners if there has been a change of more than £1 to their net 

monthly income. 

Newsletters 

The Fund provides regular electronic newsletters:   

Page 121

Agenda Item 12



 

Page 4 of 16 

a) Employer Newsletters 

Employers receive quarterly electronic newsletters containing news and developments of 

a strategic and nature affecting the employer and the Fund.  Employers are encouraged to 

share the newsletter within their organisation. Special bulletins are published when 

necessary. 

b) Pensions Line Newsletter 

Peninsula Pensions distributes monthly Pensions Line Newsletters which is the main 

method of informing employers of regulatory updates as well as their responsibilities and 

processes to be followed to assist the smooth administration of the Fund.  These are found 

at:  Pensions Line Newsletters - Peninsula Pensions 

c) Member Newsletters 

The Fund regularly publishes member and pensioner newsletters and the Pensions Post 

sent directly to members.  These inform about investment performance, investment and 

ESG strategy, member related events, changes to pensions legislation or improvements to 

the methods of obtaining their personal retirement benefit information.  Recent back 

copies of these are available on the Fund web page: Fund Policies - Devon Pension Fund 

Employer Liaison 

Employer Communication Officers support employers in: 

 Administrative and actuarial funding queries and liaison with other parties to provide 

information and advice to employers. 

 Training and advice which are provided to Fund employers about administrative 

activities and tasks, tailored to the specific needs of any employer as well as actuarial 

and funding information. 

The Fund also holds an annual Pension Liaison Officer Group meeting for all employers, set at 

a technical level, providing opportunity for the exchange views and news and addressing 

technical benefit issues, as well as changes to the Fund Administration Strategy.  

Annual Employers Meeting 

Employer organisations can meet senior Investment and Pension Fund managers at the 

Annual Employers Meeting.  Pitched at the employer decision makers, these meetings provide 

formal and informal opportunities to exchange information and ask questions about fund 

performance, actuarial issues, changes to workplace pension’s law, and developments in the 

reform of public pensions and LGPS specifically. 

Annual Fund Member Consultative Meeting 

Early in the calendar year an Annual Consultative Meeting with Fund members is held.  The 

Chair of the Investment and Pension Fund Committee, senior Fund officers and management 

of Peninsula Pensions make presentations and answer questions. 

Annual Fund Report  

Page 122

Agenda Item 12



 

Page 5 of 16 

The Devon Pension Fund’s Annual Report and Accounts is available at: 

Fund Policies - Devon Pension Fund 

Archived annual reports and accounts can also be accessed via this website, as can a range of 

Fund publications, including the Investment Strategy Statement, Funding Strategy Statement, 

and the most recent Actuarial Valuation Report. 

Communications with key governance partners 

Pensions governance is all about monitoring pension schemes to make sure they are run in 

their members’ interests. Managers of the Devon County Council Investment and Peninsula 

Pensions teams work closely with the Investment & Pension Fund Committee and the Devon 

Pension Board to ensure that representatives are fully informed about Pension Fund matters 

and that they are fully supported in fulfilling their duties and responsibilities and able to make 

critical decisions. 

The Governance Policy and Compliance Statement: Important documents - Devon Pension 

Fund outlines the arrangements for the Devon Pension Fund as maintained by Devon County 

Council in accordance with Regulation 55 of the Local Government Pension Scheme 

Regulations 2013. Under this provision all LGPS Funds in England and Wales are required to 

produce a Governance Compliance Statement, revise it following any material change in their 

delegation arrangements and publish it.  

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee 

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee fulfils the duties of Devon County Council as the 

Administering Authority of the Pension Fund. 

The committee is made up of representatives from Devon County Council, Unitary and District 

Councils, other non-council employers, Trade Union and retired Members. 

Investment and Pension Fund Committee Meetings are held at least quarterly and are open to 

the public as observers, other than where information is exempt from public disclosure under 

the Local Government Act 1972. Committee agendas, reports and minutes are made available 

at: Investment and Pension Fund Committee - Devon Pension Fund 

The Devon Pension Board 

The Board meets four times a year, with meetings falling in between the meetings of the 

Investment and Pension Fund Committee.  

More information on the Pension Board along with terms of reference and meeting minutes 

can be found on the at: Committee details - Devon Pension Board - Democracy in Devon 

Actuarial services 

The Fund Actuary performs a three-yearly Actuarial Valuation of the Devon Pension Fund as 

required by LGPS Regulations. Assets and liabilities are measured and valued, and employer 

contribution rates are calculated that will achieve the long-term Fund Strategy. 

Page 123

Agenda Item 12



 

Page 6 of 16 

The Fund maintains communications with the Actuary and Employers throughout this 

exercise. All employers get the opportunity to meet the Actuary when preliminary results are 

known. 

The Actuary also provides us with information and advice on a range of issues affecting the 

Fund, especially when an employer organisation is seeking to join or, more rarely, exit the 

Fund. 

Actuarial Services to the Fund are provided by Barnett Waddingham: Barnett Waddingham 

(barnett-waddingham.co.uk) 

The Brunel Pension Partnership Ltd. 

Devon County Council is a shareholder of the Brunel Pension Partnership Ltd. (Brunel) which is 

one of eight national Local Government Pensions Scheme LGPS Pools. Brunel was established 

to manage investments for the pension funds of Avon, Buckinghamshire, Cornwall, Devon, 

Dorset, Environment Agency, Gloucestershire, Oxfordshire, Somerset, and Wiltshire in 

response to the Government’s investment pooling initiative, with the aim of bringing together 

over £30 billion of investments from the 10 likeminded funds. 95% of the Devon Fund’s 

investments are now managed by Brunel. 

The Devon Fund continues to be responsible for its own investment strategy, and for deciding 

the strategic asset allocation between different asset classes to meet local investment 

objectives. Brunel provides a range of funds for their clients to invest in and are responsible 

for selection and monitoring of the external investment managers who manage those funds. 

The Brunel Oversight Board, comprising the Chair of the Devon Pension Fund and the chairs of 

the nine other Brunel clients, meets on a quarterly basis to review the performance of Brunel 

and discuss other policy areas in relation to the operation of Brunel. This is a crucial body to 

ensure effective scrutiny of the operation of Brunel, and to act as a conduit of information 

between Brunel and the pension committees of the ten participating LGPS funds. Two Fund 

Member representatives, who have been selected from across the ten Brunel funds, also 

attend this board as observers.  

The Client Group, comprising the investment managers of the ten LGPS funds that participate 

in the Brunel pool, meets with Brunel on a monthly basis. The channel of communication 

between Brunel and the Client Group is vital to the effective management of the relationship 

between Brunel and the client funds and the effective management of the pooled 

investments. Communication within the Brunel Client Group is also crucial to the sharing of 

best practice and seeking further opportunities for collaboration to reduce costs and improve 

performance 

Further news and information can be found at: Home - Brunel Pension Partnership 

Other investment managers and advisors 

Investment performance is consistently monitored and evaluated against portfolio objectives 

and benchmarks. This is undertaken by the Director of Finance and Public Value’s Investment 

Team which has regular performance review meetings with Brunel.  

Page 124

Agenda Item 12



 

Page 7 of 16 

Around 5% of the Fund’s investments are managed outside of the Brunel investment pooling 

arrangements, either in illiquid investments initiated prior to the inception of Brunel or in 

investments in a local impact portfolio. These funds are managed by professional external 

fund managers. The Investment Team will meet regularly with these external fund managers 

to ensure they are meeting the Fund’s investment objectives. 

The Director of Finance and Public Value reports to the Investment and Pension Fund 

Committee on investment performance, covering strategy and the performance of Brunel and 

the other investment managers. Brunel will attend a briefing meeting with the Committee on 

a quarterly basis. The Committee has an experienced independent investment adviser, who 

will provide expertise and guidance on the Fund’s investment strategy and the performance 

of Brunel and other managers. Regular communication between the Investment Team and the 

Independent Investment Advisor is essential to this relationship. 

Every three years, the Fund will commission an external review of its investment strategy 

from a firm of investment consultants with LGPS expertise. Effective communication between 

the Investments Team, the Independent Advisor and the firm of consultants will ensure that 

the review is effective in making sure the investment strategy is fit for purpose. 

Wider audiences 

There are other groups and associations the Devon Pension Fund engages with in delivering a 

professional and competent service for its members. Each has its own needs in terms of 

message and media which the Fund will deploy to make sure that the meaning and 

significance is delivered strongly and securely. Here are some of them: 

Press and Media 

The Devon Pension Fund will actively engage with the press and other media organisations to 

ensure clarity of fact and fair representation.  Enquiries from these bodies are handled by 

Devon County Council’s Press and PR Office. 

The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities  

The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities is responsible for government 

policy on some public sector pensions including the LGPS. The Devon Pension Fund responds 

to consultation proposals for scheme changes.  

LGPS Scheme Advisory Board 

The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board (http://www.lgpsboard.org/) is a body 

set up under Section 7 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. The purpose of the Board is to 

encourage best practice, increase transparency and coordinate technical and standards issues, 

and provide recommendations to the Secretary of State. 

It will consider items passed to it from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 

Communities, the Board's sub-committees and other stakeholders as well as items formulated 

within the Board. Recommendations may be passed to the MHCLG or other bodies. It is also 

likely that it will have a liaison role with the Pensions Regulator. Guidance and standards may 

be formulated for local scheme managers and pension boards. 

Page 125

Agenda Item 12



 

Page 8 of 16 

The Devon Pension Fund will need to respond to initiatives undertaken by the Scheme 

Advisory Board, providing information where required, and feeding into the Board’s working 

groups. 

Local Government Association (LGA) 

The LGA (http://www.local.gov.uk/workforce) represents the interests of 375 local authorities 

in England and Wales to central government and other bodies; specifically in this instance 

with regard to local government pensions’ policy. The Workforce Team provide technical 

advice, a suite of guides, booklets and publications and a full programme of pensions training. 

The Fund obtains clarification and advice from LGA specialists from time to time. 

The Pensions Regulator 

The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 gave additional responsibility to the Pensions Regulator 

(http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/) to oversee the LGPS. The Regulator has issued a 

code of practice for LGPS funds to follow. The Devon Fund is required to report any significant 

breaches of the code of practice or regulatory requirements to the Pensions Regulator. 

The Pension and Lifetime Savings Association (PLSA) 

PLSA (http://www.plsa.co.uk/) speaks collectively for workplace pension schemes with the 

aim of influencing the direction of retirement provision. It has deep working relationships in 

Westminster and Whitehall. The Devon Pension Fund is a member of this organisations, and 

this helps us to be part of the national pension debate. 

The Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) 

LAPFF ( http://www.lapfforum.org/) seeks to optimise the influence of local authority pension 

funds as shareholders to advance high standards of Corporate Governance and Corporate 

Social Responsibility. The Forum has a number of business meetings and an annual conference 

or AGM each year which is usually attended by the Assistant County Treasurer – Investments 

and Treasury Management. 

The Society of County Treasurers (SCT) 

This is a forum of all Shire and Unitary Council Treasurers meeting regularly for the sharing of 

information and best practice on all financial matters including pension fund management 

(http://www.sctnet.org.uk/). 

Peninsula Pensions Communication documentation 

This document does not attempt to address or include all the Devon Pension Fund 

administrative communications matters.  Information relating to these topics are available on 

the Peninsula Pensions Website: https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk . 

 

 

 

Page 126

Agenda Item 12



 

Page 9 of 16 

Summaries of methods of sharing Fund information 

Below are summaries of the prominent methods used by the Devon Pension Fund to share 

information.  All reporting required by the Fund is in line with statutory timescales, 

specifically: The Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) 

Regulations 2013 (legislation.gov.uk 

Complaint handling 

The Fund makes every effort to get things right so that members do not have any complaints. 

However, should you have a grievance please contact us to resolve issues as quickly as 

possible. 

Members who are not satisfied with any decision made should contact Peninsula Pensions in 

the first instance either by phone, letter or using the contact us page on the Peninsula 

Pensions website.  The Fund will always aim to resolve issues informally though there is a 

formal complaint process known as the Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure.  This process 

has two stages though most complaints are resolved at the first stage.  Any complaint made 

will be treated seriously and considered thoroughly and fairly. 

More information can be found on the Peninsula Pensions webpage: - An employee’s guide to 

the Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure - Peninsula Pensions 

Data protection 

The Devon Pension Fund Administering Authority is a Data Controller under the General Data 

Protection Regulations. This means the Fund stores, holds and manages member personal 

data in line with statutory requirements to enable us to provide pension administration 

services.  

To enable the Fund to carry out its statutory duty, it is required to share member information 

with certain bodies, but only do so in limited circumstances. 

For more information about how the Fund holds member data, where this is shared and what 

rights members have, please see the privacy notice: Privacy and data protection - Peninsula 

Pensions 

Rights to information 

This document outlines the Fund’s strategy for communications with members, participating 

employer organisations and the wider LGPS world. It sets out our methods and principles for 

managing interaction and includes a summary of the key strands of communications. 

The Fund predominantly uses electronic forms of communication in the interests of economy, 

efficiency and environmental issues.  Members have the opportunity to receive paper copies 

by post.  Face-to-face and telephone communications will continue to be important channels 

for members to interact with the Fund and vice-versa. 

Page 127

Agenda Item 12



 

Page 10 of 16 

Print and electronic communications are designed with consideration for those with 

additional needs and large print, audio or Braille versions of all printed literature can be 

provided.  Please contact Peninsula Pensions with regards to any documentation.  

There is nothing in this Strategy Statement that affects rights to access or receive information 

under the Freedom of Information Act or the Disclosure requirements of the Local 

Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)available at  

Accessing your personal information - how to make a subject access request - Freedom of 

information (devon.gov.uk) 

 

Page 128

Agenda Item 12



 

Page 11 of 16 

 

Summary of methods of sharing Fund information with members 

Expectation Product Source Frequency Updated 

Knowledge of benefits  

Fund information and 

news 

Fund contact details 

Information Devon Pension Fund and Peninsula 

Pensions websites  

Peninsula Pensions member self-service 

portal 

Available online Within one month of 

significant changes 

Personal benefits and 

information 

Fund and transfer credit 

information for 

prospective and new 

members 

Welcome letter at entry 

Member self-service 

portal 

Annual member benefit 

statement  

Annual pensioner 

statement, P60 

Peninsula Pensions 

Peninsula Pensions website 

New members: on entry  

Active members: annual 

via email of web link 

Pensioners: annual 

pension pay slips by post 

As soon as practical after 

event 

Information about Fund 

finances, triennial 

actuarial valuation, 

investment performance, 

and general investment 

principles 

Fund Annual Report 

Fund annual financial 

accounts 

Annual Member 

Consultative Meetings 

Devon Pension Fund website 

 

DCC Investments Team 

Annual - for financial 

information 

When audit, statutory 

and actuarial work 

completed 

Ways to improve 

personal pension benefits 

Information about 

Additional Voluntary 

Contributions and 

Additional Pension 

Contributions  

Peninsula Pensions website Available online Within one month of 

significant changes 

 

 

P
age 129

A
genda Item

 12



 

Page 12 of 16 

Expectation Product Source Frequency Updated 

 

Information about 

pension matters 

Pensioner Newsletter Email and post and websites As required As required 

Information about 

pension benefits in 

payment – after 

retirement 

Pensioners pay advice  Annual or within one 

month of any notable 

change 

April & May annually, 

including P60 for 

previous year 

Within one month of 

significant changes 

Representation on the 

Investment & Pension 

Fund Committee 

N/A Member and employer newsletters As vacancies occur, 

nominations for 

positions are advertised 

As required 

Investment & Pension 

Fund Committee meeting 

papers and minutes 

DCC Archive  DCC archive: 

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/ 

Available online As required 

Representation on the 

Pension Board 

N/A Member and employer newsletters As vacancies occur, 

nominations for 

positions are advertised 

As required 

 

  

P
age 130

A
genda Item

 12



 

Page 13 of 16 

 

Summary of methods of sharing Fund information with employers 

Expectation Source Frequency 

Fund literature, guides, forms; policies and 

reports 

Peninsula Pensions website Updated as required 

Information about changes in legislation and 

revisions to fund requirements.  

Latest news and investment performance 

updates. 

Pensions Line newsletters 

Quarterly and special bulletins 

Fund website 

Updated as required 

Information about fund finances Fund annual report & financial accounts  Annual and archived reports via the und 

website  

Information about the Fund’s progress, the 

pension landscape, developments, news, and 

information exchange.  

Employers Meeting / Forum Annual and unique events according to need 

Information about actuarial matters including 

funding levels and employer contribution rates. 

Annual Employers Meeting 

Devon County Council officers 

As required 

Technical information about administrative 

activities and tasks 

Specialist Training 

Pension Liaison Officer Group  

On demand 

Annual and as need arises 

Enrolment of employees Information, template letters, forms, and 

flowcharts 

Project guidance 

Online 

Dedicated specialist support 

P
age 131

A
genda Item

 12



 

Page 14 of 16 

Expectation Source Frequency 

Representation on the Investment & Pension 

Fund Committee 

Fund website As vacancies occur 

Access to Investment & Pension Fund 

Committee papers and minutes 

DCC archive - 

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/ 

Available online 

Representation on the Pension Board Fund website As vacancies occur 

 

P
age 132

A
genda Item

 12



 

 
 

DFP/24/30 
Investment and Pension Fund Committee  
1 March 2024 
 

PRIVATE MARKETS INVESTMENTS 

Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value  

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  

 
 

1) Recommendation 

 
That the Committee be asked to: 
 

(a) Note the progress being made on the investment of the Fund’s private markets 
commitment. 

(b) Agree that no allocation be made to Brunel’s Cycle 4 Infrastructure and Private Debt 
portfolios.  

(c) Approve a £100 million allocation to Brunel’s Cycle 4 Private Equity portfolio. 
 
 

2) Introduction 

 
2.1 Private markets comprise investments not traded on a public exchange or market. 

They are an important part of the Devon Pension Fund’s portfolio as:  

 They are expected to generate higher returns as a result of the illiquidity 
premium available to producers of long-term capital. 

 They provide diversification of returns. 

 They provide access to investment opportunities not usually accessible through 
public markets. 

 They provide greater potential for outperformance through active, hands-on 
management. 

 Infrastructure assets in particular can provide inflation linked returns that will 
assist the Fund in managing inflation risks. 

 
2.2 The nature of private markets means that it can take time to build up investments to 

the desired level, as commitments need to be made to suitable funds, which are then 
drawn down as the funds identify suitable assets to purchase. Brunel’s infrastructure, 
private debt and private equity portfolios operate on the basis of a two-year cycle, 
and client funds are required to make commitments at the beginning of each two-
year cycle, with the opportunity to “top-up” their commitment one year later. No 
additional commitments are permitted between these dates. Cycle 1 was launched in 
2018, cycle 2 in 2020 and cycle 3 in 2022. Cycle 4 will be launched in 2024, and 
commitments for cycle 4 must be notified to Brunel by the end of March. 
 

Page 133

Agenda Item 13



 

 
 

2.3 The purpose of this report, therefore, is to review the Fund’s current allocation to the 
private markets portfolios – Infrastructure, Private Debt and Private Equity – and to 
determine whether further commitments need to be made towards Brunel’s Cycle 4 
portfolios. 
 

2.4 The Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement shows a medium-term target allocation to 
private markets of 30%. This includes a longstanding 10% allocation to Property, 
which is not addressed by this report. 1% of the medium term target allocation was 
top-sliced from each of Infrastructure, Private Debt and Private Equity to create a 3% 
target allocation to a Local Impact Portfolio. The current progress towards achieving 
the target allocations is summarised in the following table. 
 
Private Markets Allocations 

Asset Class Medium Term 
Target 

Allocation 

2023/24 
Target 

Allocation 

Current 
Allocation as at 

31 Dec 2023 

Infrastructure 9% 9% 9.2% 

Private Debt 4% 4% 3.4% 

Private Equity 4% 3% 1.4% 

Local Impact Portfolio 3% 1% 0.3% 

 
2.5 This report provides the Committee with further details on the individual private 

market portfolios and the current position on the commitments made. It does not 
consider the position on the Local Impact Portfolio, which is addressed in a separate 
report on the agenda for this meeting. 

 
 

3) Infrastructure 

 
3.1 Infrastructure funds are long term funds, typically with a life of 15-20 years. Before 

the set-up of Brunel, the Devon Fund had invested in five infrastructure funds, and 
will remain invested in those funds until they reach the end of their fund lives and 
have sold off all their assets. In addition, the Fund committed £175 million to Brunel’s 
first infrastructure cycle, £310 million to Brunel’s second infrastructure cycle, and 
£100 million to Brunel’s third infrastructure cycle. The Devon Fund’s total current 
commitments are set out in the following table.  

 

Page 134

Agenda Item 13



 

 
 

 
Notes 

1. Where the Fund is denominated in another currency, figures are based on foreign 
exchange rates as at 31 December 2023. 

 
3.2 When the cycle 3 commitment was agreed the target infrastructure allocation was 

10%. The Committee have subsequently agreed to top-slice 1% from the allocation 
to fund the local impact portfolio, bringing the target down to 9%. The current 
allocation has therefore reached its target, with significant commitments still to be 
drawn. 

 
3.3 It is unlikely that 100% of the remaining commitments will be drawn. That which is 

drawn will be offset to some degree by the return of capital from the pre-Brunel 
funds, two of which are scheduled to close by the end of 2024. Nevertheless, the 
existing investments and committed capital should be sufficient to maintain the 
Infrastructure allocation at around the 9% target for the next 2-3 years.    

 
3.4 It is therefore proposed that no allocation be made to Brunel’s cycle 4 Infrastructure 

portfolio. 
  
 

4) Private Debt 

 
4.1 Private debt is a broad term that refers to any investment in privately negotiated 

debt. Borrowers often choose private financing because it can be customised to their 
needs or when public debt is not available. Private debt funds focus on direct lending 
to private companies, providing an attractive opportunity with a shorter investment 

Infrastructure Commitments as at 31 December 2023

Total 

Commitment
1 

£'000

Current 

Valuation 

£'000

Remaining 

Commitment 

£'000

Pre-Brunel Investments

Archmore (UBS) IIF 38,375           10,025         -                 

Igneo European DIF 42,915           22,013         -                 

Hermes IF 47,275           3,472            -                 

Hermes IF 47,275           38,335         -                 

Aviva IIF 40,000           28,891         -                 

Aviva Ground Rents Fund 20,000           13,992         -                 

235,839         116,728       -                 

Brunel Infrastructure Portfolios

Cycle I 175,000         155,704       29,695           

Cycle II General 155,000         122,557       39,809           

Cycle II Renewables 155,000         100,173       57,627           

Cycle III 100,000         22,744         76,416           

585,000         401,178       203,547        

TOTAL 820,839         517,906       203,547        

Page 135

Agenda Item 13



 

 
 

term than infrastructure investments and a regular yield. The Devon Fund’s current 
investments and undrawn commitments are shown in the following table. 

 

 
Notes 

1. Where the Fund is denominated in another currency, figures are based on foreign 
exchange rates as at 31 December 2023. 

 
4.2 The current investment stands at 3.4%, compared to the 4% target allocation. 

However, there is still a substantial Cycle III commitment to be drawn. The Golub 
Fund still has 4-5 years left to run and is unlikely to return significant capital in the 
medium term. While Arcmont is nearing the end of the fund life and has returned a 
significant level of capital, it is still likely to be 3-4 years before all capital is returned.  

 
4.3 The Private Debt allocation should therefore reach its 4% target through the 

drawdown of the current undrawn commitments, and should maintain that level for 
the following 2-3 years once the target is reached. It is therefore proposed that no 
allocation be made to Brunel’s cycle 4 Private Debt portfolio. 

 
 

5) Private Equity 

 
5.1 Private equity is a broad term that refers to any investment in privately owned equity 

i.e. not listed on a public exchange. Typical investments include venture capital to 
new or growing businesses and buyouts with the intention of turning the company 
around. These can be very attractive investments, often producing higher returns 
than listed equity, and also producing an income yield that is attractive to mature 
funds such as the Devon Fund who need cashflow to meet pension payments. 

 
5.2 The Devon Fund made its first commitment and investment in private equity through 

Brunel’s cycle 2 portfolio, committing £125 million, with a further £150 million 
committed to cycle 3. The current position, including the undrawn commitments, are 
shown in the following table. 

 

Private Debt Commitments as at 31 December 2023

Total 

Commitment
1 

£'000

Current 

Valuation 

£'000

Remaining 

Commitment 

£'000

Pre-Brunel Investments

Arcmont Senior Debt Fund I 90,000           36,566         -                 

Golub Capital International Fund 11 60,464           51,479         -                 

150,464         88,045         -                 

Brunel Private Debt Portfolios

Cycle II 100,000         65,904         36,264           

Cycle III 180,000         38,398         141,983        

280,000         104,302       178,247        

TOTAL 430,464         192,347       178,247        

Page 136

Agenda Item 13



 

 
 

 
Notes 

1. Where the Fund is denominated in another currency, figures are based on foreign 
exchange rates as at 31 December 2023. 

 
5.3 While significant commitments were made to both cycle 2 and cycle 3, the sum 

invested is still only just over 1%. It is hoped that the rate of investment will increase 
over 2024, but as with all private markets investments the full commitment is unlikely 
to be drawn.  

 
5.4 A key risk with private equity investments is vintage risk. This is the risk that if the 

investment is made at the wrong point in the economic cycle, then it may not achieve 
the desired outcome. Therefore, private equity investments should be spread over 
different vintage years in order to diversify the risk. The strategy has therefore been 
to build up the commitment gradually in order to manage vintage risk. Therefore, the 
intention was to continue to allocate to each cycle and build up the commitment 
slowly. 

 
5.5 While it may be possible that the current level of commitment could take us up to the 

4% target allocation, given the slow progress of drawdown and the need to commit 
to every cycle to manage vintage risk, it is proposed to allocate a further £100 million 
to Brunel’s Cycle 4 Private Equity portfolio. 

 
5.6 Another point to bear in mind is the Government’s intention that all LGPS funds 

should have an ambition to invest 10% in Private Equity. This is yet to be enacted 
into regulation and guidance, but the Government response to the previous 
consultation document confirmed their intent to do so.  

 
5.7 When the formal regulatory guidance is issued, we will still need to be happy that an 

increased allocation to private equity meets our fiduciary duty to manage the Fund to 
achieve the required investment return at the appropriate level of risk. It is suggested 
that this should be considered as part of the next external review of the Fund’s 
investment strategy, which is due in the run-up to the 2025 Triennial Valuation. 
Should a higher allocation be agreed, there would still need to be a gradual build-up 
in order to manage the vintage risk. 

 
 
 
 

Private Equity Commitments as at 31 December 2023

Total 

Commitment
1 

£'000

Current 

Valuation 

£'000

Remaining 

Commitment 

£'000

Brunel Private Equity Portfolios

Cycle II 126,941         68,887         58,025           

Cycle III 150,000         3,238            146,743        

TOTAL 276,941         72,125         204,768        

Page 137

Agenda Item 13



 

 
 

6) Conclusion 

 
6.1 The Committee is asked to note the progress being made in deploying the capital 

previously committed to the private market portfolios. As set out, it is not proposed to 
make any allocation to the Cycle 4 Infrastructure and Private Debt portfolios. The 
next opportunity to invest in infrastructure and private debt via Brunel will be when 
Cycle 5 is launched in April 2026. 

 
6.2 The Committee are asked to approve an allocation of £100 million to Brunel’s Private 

Equity Cycle 4 portfolio. There will then be an opportunity to top this up in April 2025 
if deemed appropriate. 

 
 
 
 
Angie Sinclair 
Director of Finance and Public Value 
 
Electoral Divisions: All  
 

Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers 

Nil 
 
Contact for enquiries: 
Name: Mark Gayler  
Telephone: 01392 383621 
Address: Room 196 County Hall 

Page 138

Agenda Item 13



 

 
 

DFP/24/31 
Investment and Pension Fund Committee 
1 March 2024 
 

LGPS UPDATE 

Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value  

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  

 

1) Recommendation 

 
That the Committee be asked to note the developments affecting the LGPS 
 
 

2) Introduction 

 
2.1 This report is brought to the Investment and Pension Fund Committee to provide an 

update on the latest developments affecting the LGPS. 
 
 

3) The Pensions Regulator (TPR) code of Practice 

3.1 The long awaited TPR’s new general code has finally been laid in Parliament on 10th 
January and brings together and updates 10 existing codes of practice into one set 
of consistent expectations on scheme governance and administration. The code is 
expected to come into force on 27th March. 

3.2  The new general code sets out in detail what TPR expects of a scheme that is 
required to maintain an effective system of governance. This brings together many 
key aspects of running a scheme, not least in terms of risk management. The detail 
of what constitutes an effective system of governance will be dependent on the size 

and complexity of the scheme.  

3.3  The TPR will expect schemes to be able to demonstrate that they have appropriate 
procedures and policies in place. Officers will review the new code, identify any 
actions points and will provide a report to the Pension Board in due course. 

 
 

4) LGPS- Next Steps on investments consultation 
 

4.1  The Government has now responded to the consultation held last summer (reported 
to the board in October 2023) that contained a number of proposals concerning the 
future of pooling and the investing in assets to support levelling up in the UK.  

Page 139

Agenda Item 14



 

 
 

4.2 After having considered the responses, the government has indicated that it intends 
to implement the proposals that were set out in the consultation to accelerate and 
expand pooling, and increase investment in levelling up and in private equity as 
follows: 

 set out in revised investment strategy statement guidance that funds should 
transfer all assets to their pool by 31 March 2025, and set out in their ISS assets 
which are pooled, under pool management and not pooled and the rationale, 
value for money and date for review if not pooled. 

 revise pooling guidance to set out a preferred model of pooling including 
delegation of manager selection and strategy implementation. 

 implement a requirement in guidance for administering authorities to set a training 
policy for pensions committee members and to report against the policy. 

 revise guidance on annual reports to include a standard asset allocation, 
proportion of assets pooled, a comparison between actual and strategic asset 
allocation, net savings from pooling and net returns for each asset class against 
their chosen benchmark. 

 make changes to LGPS official statistics to include a standard asset allocation 
and the proportion of assets pooled and the net savings of pooling. 

 amend regulations to require funds to set a plan to invest up to 5% of assets in 
levelling up the UK, and to report annually on progress against the plan. 

 revise ISS guidance to require funds to consider investments to meet the 
government’s ambition of a 10% allocation to private equity. 

4.3 With respect to pooling, the Government has set out that their immediate priority is 
for existing assets to be pooled, whilst the aim of consolidating into fewer larger 
pools is a longer term ambition. The Devon Fund has already pooled 95% of its 
assets with Brunel, including all listed assets. 

4.4 Brunel have commissioned PWC to do some research on the benefits of scale, with 
a view to informing any action required in response to the Government’s agenda. 

4.5 When the formal regulatory guidance is issued in relation to the ambition for a 10% 
allocation to private equity, we would still need to be happy that that meets our 
fiduciary duty to manage the Fund to achieve the required investment return at the 
appropriate level of risk. It is suggested that this should be considered as part of the 
next external review of the Fund’s investment strategy, which is due in the run-up to 
the 2025 Triennial Valuation. 

 
Angie Sinclair 
Director of Finance and Public Value 
 
Electoral Divisions: All  
 

Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers 

Nil 
 
 

Page 140

Agenda Item 14



 

 
 

Contact for enquiries: 
Name: Charlotte Thompson  
Telephone: 01392 381933 
Address: Room 180 County Hall 

Page 141

Agenda Item 14





Document is Restricted

Page 143

Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.





Document is Restricted

Page 213

Agenda Item 20
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.





Document is Restricted

Page 261

Agenda Item 21
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.




	Agenda
	A G E N D A
	Meetings Information and notes for visitors
	Getting to County Hall and Notes for Visitors
	Membership of a Committee
	Committee Terms of Reference
	Access to Information
	Public Participation
	Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings
	Declarations of Interest for Members of the Council
	WiFI
	Fire
	First Aid
	Mobile Phones
	Alternative Formats
	Induction Loop available


	3 Minutes
	5 Devon Pension Board
	6 Brunel Oversight Board
	Brunel Oversight Board Meeting Minutes, 25.01.24

	7 Internal Audit Plan 2024/25
	8 Investment Management Report
	9 Treasury Management Strategy 2024/25
	10 Actuarial Services Tender Outcome
	11 Pension Administration Strategy
	12 Communications Strategy
	13 Private Market Allocations
	14 Local Government Pension Scheme Update
	19 Brunel Business Plan and Reserved Matters Requests
	20 Local Impact Portfolio Update
	21 Brunel Climate Change Policy Implementation



